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SIAM STEEL

Dear Shareholders of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited,

From 2013 to the first half of 2014, slow global economic
recovery and domestic economic deceleration have affected the
consumers’ confidence. It brought about pressure and
carefulness with money so that their purchasing powers were
decreased. These have an impact on the Company’s business
operation as to unexpected turnover. The situations of which are
closely tracked down by the Company’s Committees and
management, whilst the Company’s policies, and directions,
business operation plans have been adjusted together with the

continuous decrease of production costs.

The Company expects that the direction of the second half
of 2014 will tend to be better than in 2013 since the political
situation in Thailand has been improved. The consumption
would then be better in succession. The Company firmly believes
that in the near future, the Company’s operation will
be profitable as formerly was. However, we realize that the
business may experience difficulty or more intense competition.
The Company still assures interested persons that the Company
has scrupulously implemented business operation policies as
well as maintenance of the quality of products, human resource
development so as to enhance knowledge, performance skills
and to maintain corporate governance.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, and all the Company’s
personnel, | would like to extend my gratitude to all of the
shareholders as well as customers, trading partners, patrons,
and institutes from both governmental and private sectors, who
have always put their trust in and provided the Company with
good supports, and would like to confirm that the Company will
be committed to and maintain business ethics and good corporate
governance in order to forever be an organization with
sustainable growth and value to societies and Thailand.

%

(Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul)
The President
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Joyadintynomsiou
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2556/2557 *
2013/2014 *

2555/2556 *
2012/2013 *

2554/2555 *
2011/2012 *

NAN1IALAWIU (WHLN)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (thousand baht)

eldsINanmMsIeLasusng Total revenues from sales & services 2,141,922 3,558,815 4,479,375
Alsdmdin Gross profit 310,315 609,965 936,929
ils (enu) qnd Net profit (loss) (227,642) 9,331 346,313
s (enuw) ans (Iwmstwanwizuauism) Net profit (loss) (Separate financial statement) (271,772) (62,832) 274,519
FIUTNITNY (WHLN) FINANCIAL POSITION (thousand baht)

Funiwdsu Total assets 2,911,461 3,404,933 3,699,934
wﬁaui’su Total liabilities 381,079 669,016 894,917
dauvavitiadiu Shareholders’ equity 2,530,382| 2,735,917| 2,805,017
nuaanzidouuazsanaiszudo Registered and paid up share capital 593,126 593,126 593,126
Janaaawu (U1N) PER SHARE (BAHT)

Ha@hﬁuﬁmﬂ% Par value 1 1 1
yareuy T Book value 4.27 4.61 4.73
Ml (eanu) deviu Earning (Loss) per share (0.38) 0.02 0.58
Wuiluna Dividends - - 0.19
anuansalunsimls Gesag) PROFITABILITY (%)

Sasrilsiudu Gross profit margin 14.49 17.14 20.92
gagnnls (21971) q‘n% Net profit (loss) (10.63) 0.26 7.73
STHANALLNUADAUNSTNETIN Return on total assets (7.07) 0.34 9.20
F0IINTNYIUTUNE Dividend payout = - 41.00

Consolidated Financial Statement

*%

logsoaunifidszguifaviuazaydd

WMIRunN - seuszazandyd fs nangnaw - dguiau
- The fiscal year of July - June

dwiutl 2556/2557 vismeeansliuiuna Wasanuanseiuiusautliyd 2556/2557 Ana2anugnianizuasuisesm 271,772,426 1

For 2013/2014 The suspension of dividend resullts for the fiscal year 2013/2014, the separate financial statement showed the net loss 271,772,426 Baht,

its had been withheld until approve by the Annual Shareholders Meeting.

dwiull 2555/2556 vismeeasRiuliuna Wasannuanmssiiuiuseutliyd 2555/2556 Anananugniianizuasuiem 62,831,610 1

For 2012/2013 The suspension of dividend resullts for the fiscal year 2012/2013, the separate financial statement showed the net loss 62,831,610 Baht,

§115uT 2554/2555 dakutunaany 41% maoﬁﬂizgw%mwwmaw%ﬁw 274,519,181 1N

For 2011/2012 Dividend payment at 41% from profit in separate financial statement 274,519,181 Baht
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POLICIES AND OVERALL BUSINESS OPERATION
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SIAM STEEL

Company History

Sri Charoen Industry (1979) Company Limited was established
in 1953 by a group of Kunanantakul and Karuijit, which later on
was converted into a public company on December 27, 1993
and was registered to change its name to Siam Steel
1996. The
Company operates the business of manufacturing and selling
furniture under the trademarks “LUCKY”, “KINGDOM” “OKAMURA”
“CHITOSE” and “PILOT” and “LUCKY” Hi-tech Building System.

International Public Company Limited on July 1,

Company’s Vision, Missions, and Goals

The Board of Directors resolved to approve the vision,
missions and goals which were declared and effective from
May 14, 2013 as follows:

Vision: To be the organization gaining acceptance in
manufacturing and development of furniture, prefabricated
buildings, and related products that can speedily meet the
market’'s demand, and has constant and sustainable growth.

Strategic Goals
« Stable financial statement with constant and sustainable
growth.
» Efficient management structure.
« Qualified persons.
» Meeting the expectation of stakeholders.

Missions

» To increase the competence in sales and marketing
whereas the market’s demand must be specified and met.

» To make the customers satisfied with the goods and
services whereas the quality, punctuality, and reasonable
prices shall be emphasized.

» To expand the commercial alliance to cover both within
and outside the country whereas the opportunities in
business growth will be jointly created.

» To manage and administer the capital and expenses
efficiently.

« To increase the return on fixed assets and current assets.

» To enhance the organization management mechanism to
increase the efficiency in working.

« To increase the capability of the employees.

» To meet the expectation of the employees and shareholders.

e To comply with the laws and related regulations on
business conduct.
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S feusuian ME¥un1s5usessruudIunsTantsae-
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(Wezwnelng) a1
W.f. 2553
- U3y lRSUINgsAT RIS UTRIMNNSURATELADRIANDE
aiilay (CSR-DIW Continuous Awards 2010) ANN1IATFIU
nuTURnTeUYasEilsznauMIgAaMNITHAAIAN (Standard for
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR-DIW)) ANNNINLT9%
AARINNITHN NITNTNYATINNTTN
- Waudigweu ldTuseTamsianiduaniudsznauns
ﬂaamq%%%’s:é’uﬁ’nwﬁw (Platinum) andineunaen
ATUaYUMIEILEINGUNIW(ENE.)
.. 2554
- #suiResfTnsiusesmnntufnrausadeanathenaiios
(CSR-DIW Continuous Awards 2011) @1HNH1ATINU
ANNFURATELBIKLTZNaLNTRREUNTTHABRIAN (Standard for
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR-DIW)) ANNIHITIU
PARINNITUNIZNTNYATINNTIN
W.¢l. 2555
- weausigwen 1@suTeda Asnsnsavanndugaudszney
MIFSNLEIN FENW S2AURNINTD ndsinaunasmuatiuayy
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Achievement Award @114 Workplace Conditions Assessment
(WCA) ann Intertek testing Services (Thailand) Ltd.
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Significant Changes and Growth

2007

- Forbes ranked as one of the best 200 companies with sales
of 1,000 Million US Dollars in Asia.

- In July, certified Thai Labour Standard (TLS.8001) at a
fundamental level as to comply with standards for Corporate
Social Responsibility by Department of Labour Protection and
Welfare, Ministry of Labour.

2008

- In April, declared as Taxpayer Recognition categorized as
the Highest Taxpayer for the year 2008 from Somrongtai
municipality, Samutprakarn Province.

- In May, certified by Management Standards of HIV/AIDS
in the workplace at gold level from Department of Labour
Protection and Welfare, Ministry of Labour and Department of
Disease Control, Ministry of Public Health.

2009

- In September, received Certificate certifying social
responsibilities in accordance with Standard for Corporate Social
Responsibility: CSR-DIW from Department of Industrial Works,
Ministry of Industry.

- In November, certified by the Occupational Health and
Safety Management System (TIS 18001) and (HOSAS 18001)
from Bureau Veritus Certification (Thailand) Company Limited.

- In December, certified by Environmental management
System (ISO 14001) from Bureau Veritus Certification (Thailand)
Company Limited.

2010

- Received Certificate certifying continuous social
responsibility (CSR-DIW Continuous Awards 2010) in accordance
with Standard for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR-DIW)
from Department of Industrial Works, Ministry of Industry.

- In June, awarded for Smoke Free Workplace at platinum
level from Thai Health Promotion Foundation.

2011

- Received Certificate certifying continuous social
responsibility (CSR-DIW Continuous Awards 2011) in accordance
with Standards of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR-DIW)
from Department of Industrial Works, Ministry of Industry.

2012

- In June, awarded Health Promotion Establishment from
Thai Health Promotion Foundation and received Certificate of
Achievement Award regarding Workplace Conditions Assessment
(WCA) from Intertek testing Services (Thailand) Ltd.
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- In October, received honorary award from Department of
Alternative Energy Development and Efficiency, Ministry of
Energy as an Exemplary Training Factory in subject to Personnel
Development Practical Project so as to improve energy
efficiency of machine and equipment in air compressor systems.

2013

- In July,

» Received honorary award from Alternative Energy
Development and Efficiency, Ministry of Energy as to participation
in energy management development under Thai law enlarging
to global energy management (ISO 50001).

« Received Guarantee of Standard for Preventing and
Solving Drug Problems in the Workplace and honorary Certificate
of Minimising Accidents of Work according to Poochaosamingprai
Free from Drugs and Occupational Accidents” in cooperation
with Office of Samutprakarn Labour Protection and Welfare.

- In September,awarded an honorary award of CSR-DIW
Continuous Award 2013 “The Social Responsibility Industrial
Promotion Project Enhanced to a Continuous and Sustainable
Cultural and Green Network”.

- In November,

» Received Certificate of Prototype Organization of Making
Carbon Footprints for Greenhouse Gas Reduction Service under
“Carbon Footprint Organizational Promotion in Industry” from
Greenhouse Gas Management Organization (Public Organization)
and National Science and Technology Development Agency.

« The results of the annual general meeting of shareholders
for the year 2013’s Quality Evaluation held by Thai Investors
Association scored 100 full marks, satisfying “Excellent” criteria.

e The result of Thai Listed Companies’ Corporate
Governance Survey Project for the year 2013 held by Thai
Institute of Directors overall satisfied “Very Good” criteria.

2014

- In January, received the Certificate of TGO Guidance of
the Carbon Footprint for Organization from Greenhouse Gas
Management Organization (Public Organization) and National
Science and Technology Development Agency.

- In March, received the Certificate of Green Industry at the
3¢ level; Green System, Systematically Environmental Management,
Monitoring and Evaluating and Revising for Continuous Development
from Ministry of Industry.
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sfiunslag
Company Name

UNA.FONARADULADTIUTULUA

Siam Steel International Plc.

uSHneas

Subsidiaries Companies

va.AsasydwanSudunua

Sri Chareon International Co.,Ltd.

va.aenlanyszBunadiuduuua

Siam Okamura International Co.,Ltd.
I

1A, gEnNaRa lad

Siam Steel OC Co.,Ltd.

UIHNIIN

Associated Companies

va. aeulanysada

Siam Okamura Steel Co.,Ltd.
UNAgULIMARANEEN

Siam Steel Service Center Plc.

3NN
Other Companies
va. a5 luf(Usznealne)

Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

- Y oe
vawwnloie dla logdud ada
(Wszinelng)

Panasonic Eco Solutions Steel

(Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

STRUCTURE REVENUES

fuum
Million Bath
WA/ soullifd %nstaiu ala
Nature of Business The Fiscal 2BIUSEN Revenues
Year Proportion
Acquired '§jo557 %  1l2556 % 12555 %  W2s54 %
% 2014 2013 2012 2011
aaaiians (n.a - {.9) 1,183.57 22.03 2,381.76 17.56 3,384.02 22.90 3,291.24 25.58
Sales of furniture (Jul = Jun)
ewaiiaas (n.a - §.9) 100%  13.37 026 1350 0.10 19.06 0.13 1068 0.08
Sales of furniture (Jul - Jun)
aaaiiens (n.a - {.a) 51% 1,005.61 19.55 1,179.39 870 1,09553 7.42 778.37 6.05
Sales of furniture (Jul = Jun)
mﬂmmsﬁwﬁa;;ﬂ nilsrutias (n.@ - #.81) 51% 6.87 0.13 - - - - - -
Sales of pre-fabricated building (Jul - Jun)
aneaiians (1.9 - 5.9) 40%  NA* - 81303 6.00 91078 6.16 916.40 7.12
Sales of furniture (Jan - Dec)
mﬂua:am%\ﬁ%uahuiam%uéiu (H.0 - 5.9) 22.76% N.A* - 6,223.86 45.90 6,553.73 44.35 5,296.54 41.15
Sales and Installation of (Jan - Dec)
elementary
PUNAATMTIARDUWAEAN (N - H.8) 5% 1,398.67 27.19 1,303.12 9.61 1,258.44 852 1,147.80 8.92
Sales of Melamine Laminated  (Jul - Jun)
products
mwa?ﬂqqﬂnsm‘iw%wﬁlﬂunws (18- 5.@) 5% 1,586.73 30.84 1,64551 1213 1,554.29 10.52 1,426.48 11.10

noass (Apr - Mar)
Sales of electrical construction

material

NG

* delsififioyaitinsnndslalatiyTvassondind 2557

The date is not completed

6 USE senuaRaduieasiuTuLUa 109 (NrnTu)
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5,144.82 100.00 13,560.17 100.00 14,775.85 100.00 12,867.51 100.00
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COMPANY’S SHAREHOLDING STUCTURES

LITN aﬂwamaaumaﬂwﬁw,l,ua ANa (NW1TU) 1@6\1711«{1%
ﬂa&lﬂ‘-}ﬂ’]‘i@]’]ﬂ 9 @\m

Siam Steel International Public Company Limited has invested

in a group of the following businesses:

T.ﬂsqa%wmsamumm 139 aewadadwandiuFuuua e (N¥ANAW)
Investment Structure of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited
a4 Sudi 30 Hgueu 2557
As at June 30, 2014
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13HNY LﬂuwwammeammﬂLWaiuLaaimanLLauLWaiuLaai
14 mﬂ“lmmawmamim “LUCKY" “KINGDOM" “OKAMURA"
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aunds2a9d “LUCKY” Hi-tech Building System uagl#usnissu
anuasneln amuﬁ@me}ﬁ%mmidﬂﬁmm 159U @aufnm
aondun3Su lsewenuia awnadu uazvinenmesny Wudu

dnSuuSundas Aa USEN amu‘[amm“aumaimmmma
mn@ uaz LUIFN ﬂimsmaumaimmmma Ciehifo mmuﬁiﬂaﬂ
AeilasAunisamingesiiaes “LUCKY” “KINGDOM”
“OKAMURA” “CHITOSE” waz “PILOT” uUSHEN amm@m Tod
mmﬂ mLuuﬁﬁﬂaLﬂmﬂumiammﬁmmimLiaiﬂ RN
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UIEMTIN Aa U3Em aeulanyszada 4aie uaz ma:m
auduInmananasy ajnﬂ (1) ﬂi“ﬂaUﬁiﬂQVILﬂﬂ’JLuaﬂ
Auman wiawdaduman 9 Mnedies uazaduayunsdiiu
NUUDILTENY

Each company will be managed by its own management
team in accordance with the policy set by the Board of Directors
of such company.

Business Activities

The Company is the manufacturer and seller of “LUCKY”
“KINGDOM” “OKAMURA” “CHITOSE” and “PILOT” steel
furniture and built-in wooden furniture including “LUCKY” Hi-tech
Building System: the prefabricated building system for
multi-purpose as well as interior decorative works for all buildings
which include office, hotel, educational institute, financial institute,
hospital, airport, etc.

The business lines of subsidiary companies which comprise
Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd., Sri Chareon International
Co., Ltd. are the seller of “LUCKY” “KINGDOM” “OKAMURA”
“CHITOSE” and “PILOT” furniture and also providing the related
services and Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd. engage in business relating
to the distribution of prefabricated buildings, partitions, industrial
parts and related products, which supports the Company’s
business operation.

As for the business line of the associated companies; Siam
Okamura Steel Co., Ltd., and Siam Steel Service Center Plc.,
they have involved in the business related to steel and other
products that support the business activities of the Company.

v -
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The Company is the manufacturer and seller of “LUCKY”
“KINGDOM” “OKAMURA” “CHITOSE” and “PILOT” steel furniture
and built-in wooden furniture including “LUCKY” Hi-tech Building
System: the prefabricated building system for multi-purpose as
well as interior decorative works for all buildings which include
office, hotel, educational institute, financial institute, hospital,
airport, etc.

The Company who has attained I1ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
HOSAS 18001, Standard for Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR-DIW) certificate as well as was approved to use the Green
Label and Thailand Trust Mark on furniture. of the Company and
received the Certificate of TGO Guidance of the Carbon Footprint
for Organzation From Greenhouse Gas Management Organization
(Public Organization) and National Science and Technology
Development Agency and received the Certificate of Green
Industry at the 3" level; Green System, Systematically
Environmental Management, Monitoring and Evaluating and
Revising for Continuous Development from Minjstry of Industry.

The Company’s core product groups comprise 7 main lines

as follows:
1. Desks & Tables

Cabinets, Lockers and Combine Furniture System
Chairs
Safes
Partitions
Shelving System

N o oD

Other groups, such as Bleachers and Folding Stages, etc.

Furthermore, the Company has also manufactured and sold
“LUCKY” Hi-tech Building System. This is a prefabricated
multi-purpose building system suited to variety of uses. The
application of “LUCKY” Hi-tech Building System can be divided
into 3 groups as follows:

Permanent Buildings such as accommodation unit for oil &
gas industry, mining camp, business hotel, convenience store,
showroom, etc.

Temporary Buildings such as mobile office, mobile clinic,
kiosk, mobile toilet, etc.

Special Buildings ; specifically designed for each usage such
as emergency shelter, telecom shelter, warehouse units,
soundproof rooms, etc.
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SIAM STEEL
Dear Shareholders of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited,

The Risk Management Committee, consisting of 4 members
who are all independent directors, namely Mr. Manu Leopairote
as Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, Mr. Supong
Chayutsahakij, Mr. Lec Sicoravit and Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul
as member of the Risk Management Committee, has been
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company with
a period in office for 3 years.

The Risk Management Committee has performed duties as
per the scopes, duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board
of Directors of the Company which are prescribed in the charter.
During the accounting year of 2013/2014, 1 meetings of the Risk
Management Committee were held, all of which were attended
by every member. The essence of the meetings can be
summarized as follows:

1.To follow up all agencies ‘risk management schedules
presented by the management covering Strategic Risk,
Operational Risk, Financial and Accounting Risk, Compliance
Risk, and Information System Risk. Also, the results have been
reported to the Board of Directors or accordingly.

2.During the past year, the performance of the whole Risk
Management Committee was evaluated by self-evaluation
comparing with the good practice guidelines and the charter, the
results of which satisfied the Risk Management Committee. The
performance was effective and in compliance with the prescribed
charter and the results have been reported to the Company’s
Board of Directors for acknowledgement.

”?(M

(Mr. Manu Leopairote)
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
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Raw Material Procurement Risk

Quantity of Raw Material : The Company might encounter
risk on shortage of steel as raw material. However, as the
Company had long operational experiences in the steel industry
for over 61 years, This makes the Company’s having contacting
networks with raw material suppliers. Currently, the Company
procures local high quality of raw material steel and imports small
volume from abroad. From the past year’s operation, the
Company has never experienced in and raw material shortage.

Raw Material Pricing : There was no fluctuation of the prices
of steel and raw material, which are used in the production
process, in the past year. The Company did not set up any loss
reserve for the decrease of the product prices. However, the
Company is very cautious and at all times uses its experience
in procuring high quality raw material with reasonable prices,

quantities and at appropriate times from various sources.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Fluctuation of foreign exchange rate might affect the Company’s
business operation whereby the company has closely monitored
situations concerning foreign exchange rate and manages such
risk by setting up the selling price of the products taking into
consideration the foreign exchange rate situation at that time
and reducing the risk by making foreign exchange forward
contracts with the bank.

Products Distribution

The Company might encounter the product distribution risk
as, at present, there has been an increasing number of the
business competitors. However, due to the Company’s constant
increasing of the distribution channels towards the local market
and its policy in expanding its products towards foreign markets
broadly, makes the Company’s products well known and
accepted. Therefore, such product distribution will be minimal.
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Website www.furnituresystem.com Wag
www.luckybuilding.com

E-mail center@siamsteel.com

Tnsdwn 0 2384 2876, 0 2384 3000, 0 2384 3040

Insans 0 2384 2330

Company’s name

Established

Listed on the Stock Exchange

SIAM STEEL

Siam Steel International Public Company
Limited “SIAM”

B.E.1953

December 27, 1993

Type of Business

Manufacturer and seller of “LUCKY”
“KINGDOM” “OKAMURA” “CHITOSE” and “PILOT”
furniture and “LUCKY” Hi-tech Building System:
the prefabricated building system.

Head Office And

Factory 1

Factory 2

Factory 3

Factory 4

Factory 5

Factory 6

Registration Number

Registered Capital

Paid-up capital

Location 51 Moo 2, Poochao Rd., Bangyaprak,
Phrapradaeng, Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
Location 51/7 Moo 18, Poochao Rd., Bangyaprak,
Phrapradaeng,Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
Location 51/8 Moo 18, Poochao Rd., Bangyaprak,
Phrapradaeng,Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
Location 51/12Moo 18, Poochao Rd., Bangyaprak,
Phrapradaeng,Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
Location 64/1 Moo 5, Bangsamak, Bangpakong,
Chacheongsao, 24180 Thailand

Location 64/5 Moo 5, Bangsamak, Bangpakong,
Chacheongsao, 24180 Thailand

0107536001664

593,125,849 Baht

598,125,849 Baht

Number and type of Share totally issued

Website

E-mail

Tel.

Fax.

593,125,849 common shares which
a par value of Baht 1 each.

www.furnituresystem.com and
www.luckybuilding.com

center@siamsteel.com
+66 2384 2876, 2384 3000, 2384 3040

+66 2384 2330
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v3Eny faviuluvidndas Vs ot Company ‘shares in Subsidiary and Associate company
u3ENsiag Subsidiary Companies
1. U3EN amu‘[amadszﬁuma%mi‘fmma 3110 1. Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd.
’a’uﬁq@m:tﬁﬂu 20 FuAN 2539 Registered date Mach 20, 1996
ﬂiztﬂﬂﬁqiﬁ’ﬂ g diaasatinew wasiiians | Nature of business Distribution of office furniture and
A lufians15042 (PUBLIC INTERIOR public interior furniture
FURNITURE) Office location 3199 Maleenont Tower, 19" Floor,
Adediinen 3199 21ANTHIAUUN N8BS Rama 4 Rd., Klongton, Klongtoey,
%u 19 DUUNITIN 4 Bangkok 10110, Thailand
LUIARDIAY LUAARDILAE Tel. +6626615474-9, 2661 5505-8
NPNWHRIUAT 10110 Fax. + 66 2661 5261-62
nséwn 0 2661 5474-9 Branch 700/2 Moo 1, Klongtamru,
0 2661 5505-8 Muangchonburi, Chonburi 20000,
Insans 02661 5261-62 Thailand
GRU TGN RET! 700/2 md'ﬁ' 1 fNUANADIAINY Tel. + 6638457135
dnaLilasray3 Jendavays 20000 Fax. + 66 38457133
Tnséwdt 03845 7135 Number and type of shares totally issued
Insans 03845 7133 200,000 common shares with a par
%ﬁmuuawﬁmaaﬁuﬁﬁmﬁw‘lﬁué’aﬁg\mm value of Baht 100 each.
Wuanaisy 411w 200,000 A Number of shares hold by the Company 101,993 shares
Had1vuaz 100 Um Percentage equity stake 51
shmuﬁ:w?;u%ﬁ'mﬁa 101,993 #u
Fagaznsnanu 51

2. 138N asadgdwaesiuiuuua na
2. Sri Chareon International Co., Ltd.

Sufiaanzdan 17 WeeNAN 2539
UsziAngsia Svsheasilaasdiineuuaztugiu | Registered date May 17, 1996
iwasfianieaeg Nature of business Distribution of office furniture and
fAxodvineu 64 qu:"?i 18 FNUAUNHLIUNWIN furniture parts
aLNaNIZUTZULAg ﬁ’q%‘?@ﬁgﬂﬁﬂmms Office location 64 Moo 18, Bangyaprak, Phrapradaeng,
10130 Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
nsfwy 0 2722 5680-81 Tel. + 66 2722 5680-81
Tnsans 02722 5684 Fax. + 66 2722 5684
’51%’3%%&3‘1111@1%aﬂﬁ:uﬁﬁ1ﬂﬁ1ﬂiﬁu5’]%\1wuﬂ Number and type of shares totally issued
AnaNTR A19m 7,500,000 Hiu 7,500,000 common shares with a par
yadvuaz 10 Un value of Baht 10 each.
ﬁwuquﬁ:uﬁn?ﬁﬁ'mﬁa 7,499,993 #u
JagaznInaviu 100 Number of shares hold by the Company 7,499,993 shares
Percentage equity stake 100
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3. Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd.

Registered date May 3, 2013

Nature of business Supply of the following products to
the customers within Thailand and
the countries in ASEAN:-
Prefabricated building
Partitions and related products
Industrial parts and related products
Office location 51 Moo 2, Poochaosamingprai Road
Bangyaprak, Phrapradaeng,
Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
Tel. + 66 2384 2876
Fax.+ 66 2384 2330
Number and type of shares totally issued
200,000 common shares with a par
value of Baht 100 each.
101,997 shares
Percentage equity stake 51

Number of shares hold by the Company

Associated Companies

1. Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd.

March 3, 1988

Manufacture and distribution of OA

Registered date

Nature of business

furniture systems for mainly exportation.

51/5 Moo 2, Poochao Rd.,

Bangyaprak, Phrapradaeng,

Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand

Tel. + 66 2384 0075, 2394 4631,
2394 4247

Fax.+ 66 2384 0076

Number and type of shares totally issued

Office location

880,000 common shares with a par
value of Baht 100 each.

351,994 shares
Percentage equity stake 40

Number of shares hold by the Company
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2. Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited

Registered date September 30, 1985
June 8,1994

Manufacture and distribution of

Listed on the Stock Exchange
Nature of business
primary steel parts for various
industries, namely automobile,
furniture, electrical appliances and
electronic, and construction,etc.
Head Office and
Factory 1 Location 51/3 Moo 2, Poochao Rd.,
Bangyaprak, Phrapradaeng,
Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
Tel. + 66 2754 5865-7, 2754 5986-8,
+ 66 2385 9258-66, 2385 9251-2
Fax. + 66 2385 9241, 2385 9253
51/11 Moo 3, Poochao Rd.,
Bangyaprak, Phrapradaeng,
Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand
Tel. + 66 2394 7841-9, 2755 9694-8
Fax. + 66 2385 9243, 2385 9274,
2755 9904-5
60/6 Moo 3, Mabyangporn,
Pluakdaeng, Rayong 21140, Thailand
Tel. +66 3889 1175-8, 3889 1751-4
+ 66 3889 1179
Number and type of shares totally issued

Factory 2 Location

Factory 3 Location

Fax.

63,999,988 common shares with a par
value of Baht 10 each.

14,565,600 shares
22.76

Number of shares hold by the Company
Percentage equity stake

Joint-Venture

Siam Steel-Kanok Furniture Joint-Venture

Execution Date of Contract December 12, 2007

Parties and Joint Investment Proportions

Kanok Furniture and Decoration Ltd., join at 51%
Siam Steel International Plc., join at 49%

Objective of Joint Venture To engage the services for providing
the interior decoration in the office
building, governmental office center
project, Bangkok at Changwattana
Road.

Office Location 51 Moo 2, Poochaosamingprai Rd.,

Tambol Bangyaprak Amphur Prapradang,

Samutporakarn Province 10130, Thailand

Tel. 0 2384 2876, 02384 3000,

0 2384 3040

Fax. 0 2384 2330
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SIAM STEEL

Company Registrar

Thailand Securities Depository Co.,Ltd.

2/7 Moo 4, Capital Market Academy Building,
The Stock Exchange of Thailand, o™ Floor,
Thungsonghong, Laksi, Bangkok 10210, Thailand
Tel.  + 66 2596 9000, 2596 9302-11

Fax. + 66 2832 4994-6

Auditor

Mrs.Sumalee Chokdeeanant, CPA License N0.3322 and/or
Mr.Somkid Taitragul, CPA License No.2785

Grant Thornton Limited

Capital Tower All Seasons Place, 18" Floor,

87/1 Wireless Road, Lumpini, Pathumwan, Bangkok 10330,
Thailand

Tel. + 66 2654 3300

Fax. + 66 2654 3399

Internal Audit

Mr.Saksri Amphawon

Dharmniti Auditing Co., Ltd.

267/1 Pracharaj Sai 1 Road, Bangsue, Bangkok, 10800
Thailand

Tel. + 66 2587 8080

Fax. + 662587 2018

Legal Advisory

Mr.Yodhsawadtha Thanawitratthakool

51 Moo 2, Poochao Rd., Bangyaprak, Phrapradaeng,
Samutprakarn 10130, Thailand

Tel. + 66 2384 2876, 2384 3000, 2384 3040

Fax. + 66 2384 2330

More information of the Siam Steel International Plc. can be
obtained from the Annual Information Form (Form 56-1) at www.

sec.or.th or www.furnituresystem.com
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SHAREHOLDERS STRUCTURE

SIAM STEEL
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Taatuuisny dvnuaansidoudnuiu 593,125,849 un
\uduandliydiuau 593,125,849%u Hyadviuaz 1 v 1u
“(!WW]‘Y]ZLﬁﬂ%%\‘i"ﬁ’]ﬁl,l,ﬁ’ﬁ']u’au 593,125,849

Company’s Securities

The Company currently has the registered capital of Baht
593,125,849 divided into 593,125,849 ordinary shares at a per
value of Baht 1 each share. The Company’s paid-up capital
was Baht 593,125,849.

Anaviu . .
iwq%aﬂéuﬁﬁaﬁuﬁﬁaﬁuqﬂqm 10 78S Shareholders
2 Jui 30 ﬁqmﬂu 2557 The first 10 major shareholders as at June 30, 2014
a1eu i'm%aijﬁaﬁu 5m’mﬁw?iﬁa(ﬁ:u) Sasaz
No. List of shareholders No. of shareholding(s) %
1. naNAaNTUNNG
Kunanantakul Group
1.1 Wgude ADNHUNN 101,936,381 17.19
Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
1.2 WugIna AINTUNNA 98,015,033 16.53
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul
1.3 W19aIW9 AINTUNNA 4,877,769 0.82
Mrs. Orachorn Kunanantakul
1.4 WeatiuaTe AaNTUNNA 1,638,481 0.28
Mr. Anantachai Kunanantakul
1.5 wegasding ADITUTINa 1,110,897 0.19
Mr. Surasak Kunanantakul
1.6 wigtanans ADITUTNa 1,086,080 0.18
Mr. Ekasit Kunanantakul
1.7 wegls AMNTUNNA 1,037,472 0.17
Mrs. Urai Kunanantakul
1.8 WI9EINALN AnNTUNNA 100,000 0.02
Miss Kalaya Kunanantakul
1.9 wvaatean AONUUNNA 100,000 0.02
Miss Piyada Kunanantakul
1.10 wieREns AONUUNNA 100,000 0.02
Mr. Pisit Kunanantakul
FINNFHABNUUNNA 210,002,113 35.41
Total Kunanantakul Group
2. WEWIHANG WIBNUSLAT 178,571,429 30.11
Mr. Pongsak Pongphundacha
3. 3N Inadulfans dnia 16,472,500 2.78
Thai NVDR Company Limited
4. Clsa Singpore Pte-Custody 13,272,555 2.24
5. SUIMINTIUNW N0 (HATH) 12,043,809 2.03
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
6. Wanas a3l ladast 5,517,100 0.93
7. WBNTTe INIBNT9A 5,500,000 0.93
8 WeANATe 1nsnafa 4,525,000 0.76
9 WINENNT aniuasac 4,194,300 0.71
10. weBanTnt a3oidlainil 3,576,000 0.60
11, sedauau 9 139,451,043 23.51
2aa33N / Total 593,125,849 100
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SIAM STEEL

The Company has the policy of paying dividends to
shareholders at the rate of not lower than 40 percent of net
profit of separate financial statements after tax and legal
reserves, and such dividend payment does not significantly
affect the Company’ usual operation. In considering payment of
dividend, operation results, financial status, work-expansion plan,
etc. shall be taken into account. Moreover, such dividend
payment must obtain an approval from the shareholders’ meeting.

For the dividend payment policy of which will be provided by
the subsidiary, it depends on the operating performances of the
subsidiary and the resolution of the subsidiary’s shareholders
meeting year by year.
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REPORT OF THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FOR YEAR 2013/2014
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SIAM STEEL

Dear Shareholders of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited,

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, consisting
of 3 persons who are all independent directors, namely Mr. Lec
Sicoravit as Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Mr. Manu Leopairote and Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij
as member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
has been appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company
with a period in office for 3 years.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has performed
duties according to the scopes, duties and responsibilities
assigned by the Board of Directors, which are prescribed in
charter. During the accounting year of 2013/2014, 3 meetings
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held, all
of which were attended by every member. The essence of the
meetings can be summarized as follows:

1. Acknowledgment of remuneration payment of President
(Executive) since the Company experienced an operating loss.
Therefore, the Executive expressed his intention to decrease
his salary by 50% as from January 16, 2014 henceforth until
the Company’s operation performance is acceptable.

2. The criteria of bonus payments and the annual increment
rates of personnel’s salary were prescribed.

3. The remuneration of Directors and Subcommittees
was considered (details are reflected in this annual report
in remuneration of Executive Directors and Management
Executive topic).

4. Performance evaluation of the President, the Board
of Directors (individually by self-evaluation and performance
evaluation of the whole Board of Directors) and 4 Subcommittees
were acknowledged and presented to the Board of Directors of
the Company for acknowledgement.

During 2013/2014, the performance of the whole Nomination
and Remuneration Committee was evaluated by self-evaluation
comparing with the good practice guidelines and the charter,
the results of which satisfied the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The performance was effective and in compliance
with the prescribed charter and the results have been reported
to the Company’s Board of Directors for acknowledgement.

( Mr. Lec Sicoravit )

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Board of Directors

The Company’s Articles of Association prescribe that the
Company’s Board of Directors shall consist of no less than 5
directors whereby the Board of Directors currently has 11

directors comprising:
- 4 executive directors;
- 2 non- executive directors;

- 5 independent directors

The Board of Directors consists of distinguished persons
having knowledge, ability and experience useful for the Company
as follows:

20

aaun 8%a LAY NI YNAMENIINNTUTEN
No. Name Position n'litii'lﬂizqu/ﬂizquﬁwuﬂ (A3Y)
Total meeting Held/Meeting Attendance (Time)
1 WL T AONIUNNA nﬁumiééwmﬂmi 4/4
Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul The President
2 Wigny aenlnlsad n3TNNNTDETE 4/4
Mr. Manu Leopairote Independent Director
3 mﬁqwqﬁ' TEYATINNA NIINNTDTE 4/4
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij Independent Director
4 WIELEN FqUTIng NIINNNTDETE 4/4
Mr. Lec Sicoravit Independent Director
5 A3 QYN DITUNTINENS NIINNIDATE 4/4
Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul Independent Director
o Sa & te a
6 UWLANAYINE vl,niqm:y NITNNIDATE 4/4
Mr. Sakthip Krairiksh Independent Director
7 WD qmwﬁuﬂqa NITNNT 4/4
Mrs. Orachorn Kunanantakul Director
8 WILFIAND ADNTUNNA NIINAT 4/4
Mr. Surasak Kunanantakul Director
9 UIIUNTNT ﬁm’fﬂumaﬁ NITHNT 4/4
Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee Director
10 WILFING qmwf(uﬂqa NITNNT 4/4
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul Director
11 BTN DT anntunNa NITHNIT 4/4
Mr. Sittichai Kunanantakul Director
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Authorized Directors

There are 2 Group A Directors, which are Mr. Wanchai
Kunanantakul Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee.

There are 3 Group B Directors, which are Mr. Surasak
Kunanantakul Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul Mr. Sittichai Kunanantakul.

Any director from Group A Directors signs jointly with

anyother director from Group B Directors with the Company’s
seal affixed.

The Board of Directors has appointed Miss Supitsara
Sunthornwatanapong as a Company Secretary in compliance
with the Securities and Exchange Act (No. 4) B.E. 2008 and the
Company’s principles of good corporate governance, which shall
have main responsibilities as follows:

1. Providing initial advice to directors regarding provisions
of relevant law, regulations and practices;

2. Being responsible for supervising the Company to comply
with relevant laws, the Company’s regulations, rules and principles
of Good Corporate Governance;
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SIAM STEEL

3. Organizing the Shareholders’ Meeting and Board of Directors
Meeting as required by law and regulation and following up to
ensure that they are carried out correctly and regularly;

4. Preparing and storing the minutes of meetings as well as
coordinating with related parties to ensure that the resolutions
from the Board of Directors Meetings and the Shareholders
Meetings are adhered efficiently;

5. Being responsible for disclosing the Company’s information
and reports in line with SET’s and SEC’s regulations and other
relevant regulatory bodies.

6. Contacting and communicating with the Shareholders
and relevant regulatory bodies, which the Shareholders are able
to inquire or request any information at telephone no.
(02) 384 2876 # 2409 or email: supitsara@siamsteel.com;

7. Supporting for the training courses and giving information
available to performance of duties of a new director;

8. Executing any other duties as assigned by the Board of
Directors.

The Company Secretary has passed the training course in
the Company Secretary Development Program, No. 23/2007
and Effective Minutes Taking No. 15/2013 of the Thai Institute
of Directors Association (I0D)

Authority of Board of Directors

1. The Boards of Directors is authorized to manage the
Company in compliance with objectives, regulations and
resolutions of shareholders’ meeting.

2. The Board of Directors may authorize one or more
directors or any party on their behalf.

3. The Board of Directors has to organize one meeting
within three months at the Company’s headquarter or at any
branch offices or adjacent provinces.

4. The Board of Directors has to organize the ordinary
meeting of shareholders within four months after the end of fiscal
year, and call on the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting any
time upon proper grounds.

The Management Team shall be composed of 7 members as follows:-

AOUN N G
No. Name Position
1 WIE I aanTUNNA ALRTPLIRE
Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul President
2 WEgIANa AandUNNA FDIHINLMITEIUNER
Mr. Surasak Kunanantakul Vice President, Production
3 WHFING ﬂmwﬁqua ia\‘i%éwmﬂmimmmmﬂLl,azmimm@
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul Vice President, Marketing & Sales
4 | WEUNNS VUTULE sovf{dnnemaananudyd-nmatu
Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee Vice President, Financial & Accounting
5 |wwangdl WNNZFITION daanamllanla dvinderwenis
Miss Sunee Mowsuwan Senior General Manager, Office of The President
6 |WEIIUIALY L EL e #aamsmldanla deniweinsyasauazginis
Miss Wanpen Kuprasertwong Senior General Manager,Human Resources & General Affairs Department
7 | WNENIANUAT AITTAIT #aamamluemla dedyd
Miss Duangnate Duangrahong Senior General Manager, Accounting Department
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Authority of the Management

1. Making decision of the Company’s significant transactions,
setting up a mission, objectives, guidelines, policies which includes
overseeing the Company’s overall operation, outputs, customers’
relation and to be responsible to the Board of Directors.

2. Setting up organizational structure under his/her scope
of responsibilities, appointment and delegation of authorities of
the subordinates.

3. Setting up an efficient system and process of work
together with internal controls.

4. Approvals of expenditure for projects or investments
according to the limits approved by the Board of Directors.

5. Hiring, appointing, dismissing, setting up remuneration
rates, rewards annual increase and bonus to his/her subordinates.

6. Act as a Company’s representative in any related
business dealing with the external parties to an utmost benefit
to the Company.

7. Managing the Company’s general business.

The power was given to the management in approval of
any business operation specified by the Board of Directors,
except any acts which have conflict of interests to the Company
or any acts which require approval from the shareholders in any
related transactions or acquiring and disposing of the Company’s
assets which have to be in line with the SET’s regulations. The
Company is considering to specify the authority of the individual
management to comply with the Company’s business operation.

Authority of the President

1. As a management of the Company to oversee and
control the usual operation of its business and is authorized to
approve the Company’s juristic acts such as procurements of
goods, materials, tools, equipments and payments etc.

The power was given to the President in approval of any
usual operation of business specified by the Board of Directors,
except any acts which have conflict of interests to the Company
or any acts which require approval from the shareholders in any
related transactions or acquiring and disposing of the Company’s
assets which have to be in line with SET’s regulations.

2. Setting up a strategic plan, operation plan, budget which
also includes the efficient operation or action in accordance with
the policies, budget and goals approved by the Board of Directors.
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Company Secretary

The Board of Director has appointed Miss Supitsara
Sunthornwatanapong as a Company Secretary effective from
August 27, 2014. (Her qualifications are shown in the topic of
Board of Directors and Management Team)

Remuneration of Directors and Executives of 2013/2014

Remuneration of Directors

The Board of Directors has clearly formulated the remuneration
policy reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
taking into consideration of justification and reasonability in
accordance with the responsibility of the directors and the financial
status of the Company. The Company proposed the 2013
Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting held on October 30, 2013
for approval of remunerations for directors as follows:

a
FLALLLA
Details

UUIBLH (UIN)
Amount (Baht)

AUSNIINNIILIBNY

The Board of Directors

- APALLNUTIBLHY (DA

- monthly remuneration (per person)

- eudodszgn (daaunazaisiidnysaw)

Remarks

- meeting allowance (per person and per number of meeting attendance)

Ao Ay 1R v oa & P A& v oa Yo o | v oa v
RHIBLARG  LAWISNTTNNITUIBNY ‘VlVLNL‘iJ%Fd‘Ui‘WﬁLW]%% maﬁmﬂﬂimmi‘ﬂLﬂugusmﬂmummuLmusl,uml,mu\'iammmm
For the Company’s non-executive directors only as the executive directors already receive the remuneration for the executive position.

20,000

15,000

1. AUSNITHNNTATIARDY
Audit Committee
=1
- Wy
- meeting allowance

amznyInn1radas IHnudesedunislsesuuaznssuns (deaunazaisiidnyssm)
Subcommittees, paid to the chairman and directors (per person and per number of meeting attended)

15,000

2. AENITHNTATIRILASINAUAAIAD LN
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
- Lﬁaﬂizqu
- meeting allowance

10,000

3.AMNIINMIINUQUANAN T/UTTHNALIS
Corporate Governance Committee
- L‘ﬁﬁﬂizqu
- meeting allowance

10,000

4. ADKNTINNITUIIITANNLFLY
Risk Management Committee
A
- viaszn
- meeting allowance

10,000
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Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Subcommittee in accounting period of 2013/2014

(W28 = uIn)
(Unit : Baht)
AMSNIINNTT | AASNIINNTT | AMZNIINANT | AMSNIINNIT | AASAIINNIT
J U3 [SEPEL ] A3z ﬁwﬁ’nqua U313 -
ez MAKA flans/ ANMULFEN NN
AMABUUNK | UITHNALIA
(BOD) (AC) (NRC) (CGC) (RMC) (TOTAL NET)
1 weTugy qmwffqua - - - - _ -
Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
2 weny e lnlsast 300,000 60,000 30,000 10,000 10,000 410,000
Mr. Manu Leopairote
3 uﬂﬂqweﬁ ’ﬁﬂq(ﬂm‘ﬂﬁﬂ 300,000 60,000 30,000 10,000 10,000 410,000
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij
4 wedn Fu9INg 300,000 60,000 30,000 10,000 10,000 410,000
Mr. Lec Sicoravit
5 wnednanng Tnagna 300,000 - - - - 300,000
Mr. Sakthip Krairiksh
CRNERTLTeg sTanATingNa 300,000 - - 10,000 10,000 320,000
Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul
7 WwoIrs Aantiunna 150,000 - - - - 150,000
Mrs. Orachorn Kunanantakul
8 mﬂqié{’ﬂﬁr ADNIUNNA - - - - - -
Mr. Surasak Kunanantakul
9 UNUNNWT ‘vgmmumai‘ - - - - - -
Mrs. Naphaporn ~ Hoonthanasevee
10 wggna ARNTUNNA - - - - - -
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul
11 WeENdTY AaNTUNNA 150,000 - - - - 150,000
Mr. Sittichai Kunanantakul
934 / Total 1,800,000 180,000 90,000 40,000 40,000 2,150,000
A1ABUUNUKNLINT / Remuneration of Management Executive
Uana FUuvVBBIHARBLLNY AWINEU (A 1UUIN)
Personnel Remuneration Amount (Million Baht)
APBLUNUELIMT 1Wn 7 viu Ruen luda 20.15
Remuneration of Management Executive 7 persons Salary, Bonus
- ANAAUUNUDUVAINTINANT Slaidi- - Other remunerations of Director - None -

- AADUUNUBUTDILITNS
a o YV v a o g a U 1Y a U
mwwﬂmﬂwmamum‘sa\imﬂww%Lmammi Tagle
annuludasndiniasas 2 vaakuiian lull 2556/2557 13Ny
Vl,(;iﬁhslL'Tmau‘nuﬂamuﬁﬁaqLﬁm*"ﬁwﬁm%fuigu%mi 7 Yinu
FINNIEU 387,487.20 LN
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- Other remunerations of Executives

The Company has arranged for the Provident Fund for the
executives by contributing at the rate of 2 percent of their
salaries. In 2013/2014, the Company has paid the contribution
therefrom for Management Executive 7 persons in a total of Baht
387,487.20.
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Directorship in the Company : The President

Period of Directorship in the Company : 27/12/1993 (amount 20 years 6 months)

Age : 76 years

Education : Honorary Doctor’s Degree, Kensington University, USA.
Training Background : DAP 64/2007

Shareholding Proportion (per cent) : 101,936,381 shares (17.19%)

Family Relationship with the Executives :  husband of the 7", father of the 8"

Current Work Experience : Chairman, Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited

Chairman, Union Autoparts Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Panasonic Eco Solutions Steel (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Siam Fuji Ware (1988) Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Siam Goshi Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Siam Nippon Steel Logistics Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Siam Taihei Engineering Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Siam Okaya Chemicle Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Siam Steel Vietnam Co., Ltd.

President, Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd.
President, Siam Chitose Co., Ltd.

President, Sricharoen International Co., Ltd.
President, Unity Service Co., Ltd.

President, Hirokoh (Thailand) Ltd.

Director, Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background
Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience
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Independent Director / Chairman of the Audit Committee / Chairman of the
Risk Management Committee / Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Member / Corporate Governance Committee Member

8/11/2006 (amount 7 years 7 months)

71 years

Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business Administration, Thammasat University
M.Sc. in Economics, University of Kentucky, USA.

B.Sc. in Economics (Hons.), Thammasat University

DCP 30/2003, DAP 2003 (IOD)

None

None

Chairman, T.M.C. Industrial Public Company Limited

Chairman, Polyplex (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Chairman, Khon Kaen Sugar Industry Public Company Limited

Chairman, ARIP Public Company Limited

Director / Member of the Audit Committee, Thai Beverage Public Company
Limited (Singapore Stock Market)
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age
Education

Training Background
Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

Independent Director / Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee /
Audit Committee Member / Nomination and Remuneration Committee Member /
Risk Management Committee Member

8/11/2006 (amount 7 years 7 months)

73 years

Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business Administration (management),
Phranakhon Rajabhat University

Master of Management, Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration of
Chulalongkorn University

Master of Engineering (Electrical), University of Tokyo

DCP 8/2001, ACP 17/2007 (IOD)

None

None

Vice Chairman of the Executive Board, Bangkok Expressway Public Company Limited
Vice Chairman of the Board of Director, Bangkok Metro Public Company  Limited
Chairman, Bangkok Metro Networks Co., Ltd.

Director, SouthEast Asia Energy Co., Ltd.

Director, CK Power Public Company Limited
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age
Education

Training Background
Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

Independent Director / Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee /
Audit Committee Member / Corporate Governance Committee Member /

Risk Management Committee Member

8/11/2006 (amount 7 years 7 months)

57 years

M.B.A., Tarleton State University, Texas, USA.
B.B.A., Hosei University, Tokyo, Japan

DCP 42/2004, ACP 17/2007 (IOD)
None
None

President, Asia Plus Advisory Co., Ltd.
Director, CS Planner Co., Ltd.
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Docteur de Troisieme Cycle (Sciences de Gestion), Aix-Marseille Il / France.
D.E.A. (Sciences de Gestion), Aix-Marseille Ill / France.

M.S. (Ind. & Mgt.Eng.), University of lowa / USA.

B.E.(Ind.Eng.), University of New South Wales / Australia.

DAP 62/2007 (IOD)

2,108 #u (0.00%)
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background
Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

o8 USE aenuaRadweasiutuLUa 109 (NrnTu)
Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

Independent Director / Corporate Governance Committee Member /
Risk Management Committee Member

28/08/2009 (amount 4 years 10 months)

66 years

Docteur de Troisieme Cycle (Sciences de Gestion), Aix-Marseille Ill / France.
D.E.A. (Sciences de Gestion), Aix-Marseille Ill / France.

M.S. (Ind. & Mgt.Eng.), University of lowa / USA.

B.E.(Ind.Eng.), University of New South Wales / Australia.

DAP 62/2007 (IOD)

2,108 shares (0.00%)

None

Lecturer Special of Department of Industrial Engineering, Faculty of Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University.
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Directorship in the Company
Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background
Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

Independent Director

14/11/2012 (amount 1 years 7 months)

67 years

Honorary Doctorate Degree, Soka University, Japan.

Master Degree (Public Administration), Bangkok Thonburi University
Bachelor degree, (Political Science) Boston University, USA.

DAP 24/2004, DCP 79/2006 (IOD)

None

None

President of University Council, Rajamangaly University of Technology Krungthep
Chairman, Natural Park Public Company Limited

Independent Director, Thai Beverage Public Company limited

Independent Director, Adamas Incorporation Public Company Limited
Independent Director, Dhipaya Life Assurance Public Company Limited
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DAP 63/2007 (IOD)

4,877,769 %u (0.82%)
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

Director

27/12/1993 (amount 20 years 6 months)
69 years

Primary education

DAP 63/2007 (IOD)

4,877,769 shares (0.82%)

wife of the 1%, mother of the 8"-11"

Not serving as committees in any other companies.
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

USE aenuaRadweasiutuLUa 109 (NrnTu)
Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

Director, Vice President, Production
27/12/1993 (amount 20 years 6 months)

50 years

Bachelor of Economics, Asia University, Japan.
DAP 51/2006 (I0OD)

1,110,897 shares (0.19%)

children of the 1% and 7"

President, Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited
President, Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd.

Director, Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd.
Director, Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd.
Director, Sricharoen International Co., Ltd.
Director, Unity Service Company Co., Ltd.

Director, Siam Steel Vietnam Co., Ltd.
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Directorship in the Company
Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background
Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

Director, Vice President, Financial & Accounting
10/03/2006 (amount 8 years 3 months)
48 years

M.B.A. , Drexel University, USA.
Bachelor of Economics, Thammasat University

DAP 63/2007 (I0OD)

46 shares (0.00%)

children of the 1* and 7"

Vice President, Sricharoen International Co., Ltd.

Vice President, Unity Service Co., Ltd.

Vice President, Hirokoh (Thailand) Ltd.

Director, Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited
Director, Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd.

Director, Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd.
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience

Director, Vice President, Marketing and Sales

10/03/2006 (amount 8 years 3 months)

47 years

M.B.A., Philadelphia College of Textiles & Science, USA.

DAP 64/2007 (I0OD)

98,015,033 shares (16.53%)

children of the 1* and 7"

President, Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd.

Vice President, Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited
Director, Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd.

Director, Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd.
Director, Siam Steel Vietnam Co., Ltd.
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Directorship in the Company

Period of Directorship in the Company
Age

Education

Training Background

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Current Work Experience
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Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

Director

10/03/2006 (amount 8 years 3 months)

44 years

Political Science, Ramkhamhaeng University
DAP 68/2008 (IOD)

None

children of the 1* and 7"

Director, Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited
Director, Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd.

Director, Union Autoparts Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Director, Siam Okaya Chemicle Co., Ltd.

Director, Siam Steel Vietnam Co., Ltd.
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Executive in the Company

Age

Education

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Senior General Manager, Office of the President
54 years

Bachelor of Arts, Chulalongkorn University
8,427 shares (0.00%)

None
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Executive in the Company

Age

Education

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)
Family Relationship with the Executives

Senior General Manager, Human Resources & General Affairs Department
56 years

Bachelor of Arts, Thammasat University

527 shares (0.00%)

None
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Executive in the Company

Age

Education

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)

Family Relationship with the Executives

Senior General Manager, Accounting Department

55 years

Bachelor of Business Administration and Accountancy, Thammasat University
5,327 shares (0.00%)

None
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Executive in the Company
Dated of Appointment

Education

Training Background

Shareholding Proportion (per cent)

Family Relationship with the Executives

Work Experience
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Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

Legal Manager and Company Secretary

August 27, 2014

Master Degree of Laws (Criminal Law), Dhurakij Pundit University
Bachelor Degree of Laws, Chulalongkorn University

Thai Barrister at Laws, Institute of Legal Education of the Thai Bar
Company Secretary Development Program No. 23/2007,

Effective Minutes Taking No. 15/2013, (IOD)

None

None

Legal Manager and Secretary to the Board, Carabao Tawandang Co., Ltd.
Legal Manager and Company Secretary, Jack Chia Industries (Thailand)
Public Company Limited

Attorney at Law, P S Development Group of Companies Limited
Registration Officer, Tilleke & Gibbins International Limited



S1WLIUYaVAU:NSSUMsMnugianyms/ussennuia Us:91d 2556/2557

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE FOR YEAR 2013/2014

a ' va v a o a_ a ¢ o o o
38N ﬂquaﬂﬂﬁu VIBN ALGIHAARDULADILUAULUA ATINA (N‘H']“ﬂu)

AMNTINNIANUYUANINT/UTIENALIS "Lmumsl,l,mm
mﬂﬂm‘"miumsmw UsenauunssHMIIIIIL 4 Yinu B
\unssumsdaszrenan 1un mﬂqwoﬁ TEYATINAA Wualszau
n3sums wiesny Wealulsat weldn §u9ne wazes.yN
ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬁqa Hunssuns Afnuanszniseseiumue 3 1

AMLNITHNSINAUQUANANI/USTFNALS SRR
soun ninf uazassURnTeURlEUNBURME TN AD
nesunaLsEn SermunSlungiaslngluseuilinyd 2556/2557
Iidnldinmsszgnaniznssumsiiuguafiams/ussiiuna
Sruamuman 1 as I@aﬂﬁmﬁmmumsaNﬂiwwmumu asl

[
~

snazadnyldasii

1. wuwauulauwanwsnwnuaLLaﬂamiﬁa ANaITUILTI
0efins Midumedneoiones I@ﬂuaauwﬂiuﬂiaiuaaumaaﬂgmrﬁ
AMTNITNNNIYAE D I@F;IHIEJ‘LI’H;ILL@ afladonann lddmuald
NIINMT BUNITNMI A Au3vne wazwsinewnnauly
a\mnimaammaLﬁml,mmﬂumiﬂgmamamsam@ dng
Ianasuas aﬂLaiumiﬂgmﬂwﬁmmnma unwWInaUNNAY
NNIZHU Luumsmiaiwammuﬂlwmeuﬂmumumsuwrmu
Iﬂmmmﬂmmnmammmauua wanwiinerdnluel woil
HileAutiymas Lﬂué’ﬂmmuuwuﬂumsﬂgum ﬂimvmé’ivl,mﬂgum
mwuiﬂmsmsawaaﬁmussmmmua ammiwmwmuwm
UIEN awwmﬁmma‘[wwmm"mwmawsa:m Fosudoun
MIANLHDU NITWNIIH AUDINTLEANIS

2. uanazdaiaInldinslmiiumajifnusasmnssuns
fddwens anznsanms (Hunsoyaea Immiﬁswmummaﬂ
LLa“mﬁh“muwamiﬂgumm“ua\mmwmiumimﬂm“) WAz
ﬂm‘”miumsmaaﬂmmu 4 A Lﬂuﬂi“amﬂﬂammaﬁﬂa”
1 0% Lwa‘l‘ﬁﬂiiummmammvl,@wmsmmumuwamu EETEON
uazgLlaIsndg 9 TuszninsTifisusn Gsazgqelfnnsrinau
flszanSuanniu

3. Tulitrhuan AMNIINMIMALGUANANYUIIFNALG (4]
Nmiﬂiwmuwamiﬂgmmumwmu I@ﬂmﬁﬂﬁumu@maa aol¥
L‘ﬂi?;l‘uL‘YIEJ‘Uﬂ‘LILLu’J“/]’]\iﬂQ‘]_I@]“n@]LLa‘”ﬂJ;]‘Lmi Femaznssumsriniy
guaians/ussENiaLIa walalunansdszfiudonaafisinng
ﬂgummwmﬂi antnnuas Lﬂuvl,ﬂmungumﬂmﬁuﬂ"b LA
1d9s9ua0amenITNNTLIFNUE?

4159y iSunadsnfiugmmwmsdayssgaiifediu davdnd
2556 1aaaN1ANEILETH waa‘nuvlma uswmvl,@ 100 AZLULAN
G'I’j'\iaglummm “Guaer

SIAM STEEL

Dear Shareholders of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited,

The Corporate Governance Committee, consisting of 4
persons who are all independent directors, namely Mr. Supong
Chayutsahakij as chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee and Mr. Manu Leopairote, Mr. Lec Sicoravit and
Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul as member of corporate governance
committee, has been appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company with a period in office for 3 years.

The Corporate Governance Committee has performed duties
according to the scopes, duties and responsibilities assigned by
the Board of Directors, which are prescribed in charter. During
the accounting year of 2013/2014, 1 meetings of the Corporate
Governance Committee were held, all of which were attended
by every members. The essence of the meetings can be
summarized as follows:

1. To revise the written good governance policies,
organizational ethics manual, of which the Committees,
Sub-committees, consultants, executives and staff are required
to adhere to them as the practice guidelines. All levels of personnel
have been provided with knowledge on such matters and encouraged
to act accordingly. Awareness building for personnel since he/
she has started working is emphasized by preparation thereof in
writing and providing them with same with recommendations on
compliance by his/her superior. In case of incompliance with
aforementioned policies and code of conduct, it will be deemed
as a breach of the Company’s discipline and will be considered
for punitive action(s) pursuant to the Company’s regulations
which might be ranged from warning, suspension from work to
termination of employment.

2. Performance evaluation of the president, the board of
directors (by individual self-evaluation and performance evaluation
of the whole Board of Directors) and 4 subcommittees were
arranged and promoted to be conducted every year, at least
once a year, in order to have each director consider and review
results of works, issues and obstacles during the past year which
will result in the increased work efficiency.

3. During the past year, the performance of the whole Corporate
Governance Committee was evaluated by self-evaluation
comparing with the good practice guidelines and the charter, the
results of which satisfied the Corporate Governance Committee.
The performance was effective and in compliance with the
prescribed charter and the results have been reported to the
Company’s Board of Directors for acknowledgement.

4. The Company received the result of the annual general
meeting of shareholders for the year 2013 Quality Evaluation
held by Thai Investors Association with score 100 full marks,
satisfying “Excellent” criteria.
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Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

5. The Company received the result of Thai Listed Companies’
Corporate Governance Survey Project for the year 2013 held by
Thai Institute of Directors overall satisfying “Very Good” criteria
(formerly satisfying “Good”).

The Company is aware of the importance and intends to
promote the Company to be the organization which can
efficiently conduct its businesses with good corporate governance
and management by emphasizing the maximum benefits for
shareholders, taking into account the overall stakeholders with
virtue in carrying on the businesses, transparency and audit
ability so as to increase the confidence of shareholders, investors
and all relevant persons. The Corporate Governance Committee
is still determined to develop the efficiency in carrying on
businesses with good corporate governance and is confident
that the Company is able to achieve such goals.

?/W &3 0mp

(Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij )
Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
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SIAM STEEL

Policy Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors realizes the importance of operating
an efficient organization and intends to encourage the Company
to be diligent in its business operations and have good corporate
governance and management which emphasizes creating
benefits for shareholders and taking care of the interests of
investors. This is achieved by conducting an ethical, transparent,
and auditable business operation to inspire confidence in its
shareholders investors and all relevant persons.

The Board of Directors passed the resolution to utilize the
SET’s Principles of Good Corporate Governance for Listed
Companies 2012 and Thai Institute of Directors Association” s
Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies, which
had been reviewed by the Corporate Governance Committee to
be used as the guidelines for the Company’s business operation.
The significant principles in the fiscal year of 2013/2014 (July 1,
2013 - June 30, 2014) are classified into 5 parts according to

the Principles of Good Corporate Governance as follows:

Chapter 1-2 The rights of Shareholders and equitable

treatment of Shareholders

The Company always gives priority to the rights of shareholders
and the equity of all shareholders whether it be the basic legal
rights, the right to profit sharing from the Company, the right to
attend the shareholders’ meeting, the right to express one’s
opinions, the right to mutually make decisions on the Company’s
important subjects. Moreover, the Company has provided the
shareholders with the right to propose meeting agenda, to
nominate person or persons to assume directorship, and to raise
agenda matters in advance. The Company also provides
information under the topic of “Investor Relations” via the

Company’s website www.furnituresystem.com as summarized

as follows:

1. Notification of information in invitation letter to Shareholders
Meeting. Date, time, place and agenda together with all information
related to subjects for decision-making in the meeting will be
specified in the invitation letter for acknowledgement of the
shareholders. Facts and reasons together with the Board of
Directors’ opinion will be presented in each agenda for shareholders’
decision-making. Furthermore, the shareholders who cannot
attend the meeting in person can give a proxy to other persons
to attend the meeting on their behalf. There are 3 standard types
of proxy forms that shareholders can use upon the shareholder’s
purposes.
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2. An invitation letter to Shareholders Meeting and relevant
documents will be produced in Thai and English (for foreign
shareholders) and sent to the shareholders for information in
advance of at least 14 days prior to the meeting date. The
Company will also disseminate the same via SET’s news in
advance of not less than 1 month so that the shareholders can
study the mentioned information, the same as serviced to the
shareholders in written form, via the Company’s website.

3. Giving the Shareholders an opportunity to propose the
meeting agenda and to nominate the qualified persons for
election as directors in advance within the stipulated period. The
notification is made via the SET’s news and the shareholders
can study the information via the Company’s website. Furthermore,
such information has completely provided criteria, methods
including periods of the mentioned agenda proposing. However,
recently, no one has proposed any additional agenda.

4. Guidelines for Shareholders’ Meeting. The Company has
stipulated the guidelines for Shareholders’ Meeting as follows:
« Fixing the meeting date not to fall on any day of those
3 consecutive bank holidays or public holidays, and set
the meeting time that is convenient to the shareholders’

to attend.

» Using criteria of Record Date to enable shareholders to
have more time to study the meeting documents.

e Closing the share register book for 2 times; one is
closing for the right of the shareholders to attend the
meeting and the other for the right to receive dividends.
This is for the purpose of maintaining the rights of the
shareholders to choose whether to hold shares for
receiving the dividends or not.

» Arranging sufficient and appropriate number of officers
to facilitate the meeting during the 2 hours registration
time for attending the meeting and preparing stamp
duties for proxies free of charge.

* In the case where shareholders cannot attend the
meeting in person, the proxies can be given to any
person or independent directors. Two independent
directors are arranged to be appointed as the
designated proxies of the shareholders.

e Prior to convening the meeting, the Chairman of the
meeting or the Company Secretary shall clarify rules of
the meeting and voting procedures to the shareholders.

« Voting by Barcode system by using ballot in every
agenda. In order to be in compliance with good

practices of holding shareholders’ meeting, there shall
be a collection of ballots from all Shareholders and their
Proxies attending such meeting being adjourned. Thus
pertaining to the voting to appoint of a Director(s), there
shall be individually appointed for each Director and a
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» Voting Inspector shall be provided therein, being
volunteered by a Shareholder.

» Minutes of every shareholders meeting shall contain the
fundamental matters as follows:

- Opening time and closing time of the meeting.

- Numbers of shareholders who attend the meeting and
total amount of shares held by the attending shareholders.

- Lists of directors who attend the meeting and lists of
directors who fail to attend the meeting and the reasons
for absence.

- Summaries of important questions and clarifications
given in each agenda.

- Summaries of voting results in each agenda together
with the number of affirming, opposing and abstaining
votes.

- During the meeting, there shall be no sudden
dissemination of documents in which having important
information, no additional agenda items or change of
important information differs from what has been submitted
to the shareholders. Shareholders who attend the meeting
after its opening shall retain their rights to vote on agenda
matters that have not already been resolved.

- The minutes will be made correctly, completely and
publicized via the Company’s website enabling
shareholder’s examination.

5. Prevention measures against Directors, Executives, and
employees from improper use of internal information for their
own benefits or for the benefit of the others. The Board of Directors
has set the principles and codes of conducts in good corporate
governance policies in writing. (Details are shown in the topic of
Use of Internal Information.)

6. Disclosure of the Company’s shareholding structure in
clear, transparent, and auditable ways (Details are shown in the

topic of shareholding structure and management.)

Chapter 3 — Role of Stakeholders

The Company gives precedence to all groups of
stakeholders whether within the Company e.g. employees,
administrators or outside the Company e.g. customers,
shareholders, trade partners, creditors, communities and
societies to create good cooperation between the Company and
its stakeholders to benefit the business operation, to strengthen
the Company’s reliability ensuring the stability, to increase the
Company’ competitiveness and to achieve long-term goals.
Guidelines of which are clearly indicated in the corporate
governance policies and the Company’s code of ethics in which
the employees in all levels shall strictly comply with as follows:
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1. Shareholders

- The Company will report conditions and tendencies of
the Company’s business in the future to the shareholders on an
equal basis and in compliance with the Securities and Exchange
Act B.E. 2535

- The shareholders’ meeting will be held by the Company
taking into account of the equity of all shareholders. The Company
will refrain from any action considered as limitation ofthe Company’s
data and information access and limitation of meeting attendance
of the shareholders.

- Should there be any opinions or questions at the meeting,
the Chairman in the meeting will allocate an appropriate time to
listen and/or answer such questions and encourage all
shareholders to express their opinions equally.

- After the meeting has ended, the Company will prepare
the correct and complete minutes of shareholders’ meeting.

- The shareholders’ data and information will be kept
confidential as though so doing for its own data and information.

2. Customers

- The Company is determined to ensure the customers are
completely satisfied with the products by delivering products
having qualities compatible with the customer’s needs, and is
determined to provide the customers with services wholeheartedly,
at full capacity, equally, and fairly;

- Disclose the complete, accurate and true information
concerning its products;

- Strictly comply with the terms and conditions of the
agreements. If any terms and conditions cannot be complied
with, notification will be made to the customers in advance for
mutual consideration and resolution;

- Provide a clear and effective communication channel that
develops the customers’ understanding including giving advice
and support to the customers, listening to problems and promptly
trying to search for causes and solutions for the customers.

3. Business Partners and/or Creditors
The Company treats business partners and/or creditors
equally and strictly complies with obligations on basis of equity
for both parties.

4. Competitors
- The Company will not commit an act of defamation against
the competitors by making allegations without substantial
evidence.
- The Company will not search for confidential information
of the competitors in dishonest ways.
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5. Employees
The Company is well aware that all employees are
valuable assets and are important factors in the overall
accomplishments of the Company. Therefore, importance is
given on personnel administration and development as well as
creating good working atmosphere by:

- Complying with the applicable laws and rules related to
employees;

- Providing a human resource administration system which
gives equal opportunities to all employees without discrimination;

- Administering and managing remunerations and welfares,
such as, shuttle service, employee uniform, special allowance,
and provident funds at the affordable level and at the level that
is comparable to the same or similar type of business;

- Human Resource Development by continuous teaching,
internal and external training to enhance employee’s knowledge,
required skills and exchanging of opinions; besides, enhancing
employee’s quality of life in several projects; for instance, investing
in the right manner and debt management for happiness for the
Format Mental Delete Mood Project for development of emotion
and mind. The establishment of activity named
“Siam Steel Crews for Volunteers” is for building of social
responsibility.

- Implementing the Key Performance Indicator System
(KPI) which is jointly developed with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Jaiyos Co., Ltd. for evaluation of the employees’ work performance
to enhance the efficiency of the work performance result
management system; and

- Encouraging arrangements relating to environment,
health, and safety, such as, annual physical check-up, First Aid
room, accident insurance, firefighting systems and holding the
project “Health Promotion Premises” of Thai Health Promotion
Foundation to bring about knowledge, understanding, realization
of the importance of mental and physical health care.

6. Government Sector
The Company is determined to maintain good relationship
and cooperate with the government sectors within appropriate
scope.

7. Community and Society

- As a member of the society and community, the Company
realizes that it has the responsibility to provide cooperation and
support of social development on sustainable basis whether in
environment, safety, education, and social stability by giving
importance on community participation especially giving
consideration of community impacts which may occur due to
any Company’s activity.
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- Supporting and providing assistance which is appropriate
to the community and society especially in the surrounding
areas of the Company.

- Place emphasis on providing assistance in the development
of the quality of life in a sustainable basis whether in occupation,
sanitary and good local tradition as well as providing educational
support for children and providing social service activities.

- Using natural resources, material, or equipment efficiently
and effectively by taking into consideration of the impact on
environment and the quality of people’s lives i.e. selection and
use of the environmentally friendly materials which create less
pollution in the production.

- Encouraging the efficient energy consumption and
conservation.

- Raising conscious mind in the employees on social
responsibility towards society and environment.

8. Respect for Human Rights

- The Company will maintain confidential information of all
groups of stakeholders in which the Company takes part to
ensure such information is not disclosed to any third persons
unless it is disclosed due to an act in good faith or law
requirements or for public interest.

- To encourage the arrangement of working environment
that creates respect towards each other whereas the employees
must not perform any act which infringes or threatens others
whether by verbal, physical, or any other way whatsoever.

9. Procurement
The Company is engrossed in arranging the justified
procurement, lease and engagement without discrimination on
race or discrimination against size of business of suppliers and
is determined to encourage the use of goods or material made
in Thailand by

1. Evaluating the suppliers or service providers from
qualities, prices, quantities and management capacities;

2. Communicating with the Company’s goods/service
suppliers honestly and equally;

3. Complying with the manual of working procedures
concerning recruitment, selection, and evaluation of
sub-contractors taking into consideration of the Company’s
overall benefit;

4. Giving opportunity for competition among the traders,
as the case may be, by taking into consideration of fairness and
strict confidentiality treatment as well as not using any information
for their own benefits or for any other irrelevant persons;

5. Prohibiting the employees responsible for procurement,
leasing or engagement to deal with the party with whom they
are having personal involvement, such as, being the family
members, relatives, owners or partners.
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6. Providing transparent and accurate operation system
development whose methods can be continuously adjusted and
is compatible with change of the trading business technology.

The Board of Directors has set policies to enable those
wishing to inform or complain about the committing of an illegal
offence, breach of code of conduct or ethics, financial
misappropriation or defective internal control system, can
complain directly to the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee via email, then that whistleblowers’ identity will be

kept confidential.

Chapter 4 — Disclosure and Transparency

The Company gives precedence to the disclosure of the
Company’s information, both financial and non-financial information,
in a factual, complete, sufficient, timely, transparent, accessible,
equitable, and reliable manner as follows:

1. Disclosure of the Company’s information, annual report
and news are made through SET’s channel and the Company’s
website. Whereas, in the past year, the Company never had any
action taken against it by SEC or SET on the grounds of
non-compliance with their requirements regarding disclosure of
information.

2. The Company’s arrangement for the responsible person
for the disclosure of information, namely, the Securities Compliance
and SET’s and Investors Relations’ Coordination Section to be
its representatives in communicating and providing the Company’s
news of activities and information to the institutions, investors,
shareholders, analysts, people and government sectors. In the
fiscal year 2013/2014, the Company opens the opportunity to
meet the analysts and also to respond to their questions through
telephone or email periodically. The Company has also arranged
for disclosure of the Company’s information, the operation results,
financial statements, reports, both current and past, that are to
be submitted to SEC including reports on the results of the
Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on both quarterly
and annual basis, Code of Conduct and Business Ethics, Company’s
Articles of Association and CSR-DIW Report in the subject of
“Investors Relations” which are in Thai and English languages.
Any person who is interested in such information may read or
download the information from www.furnituresystem.com Such

information will be updated regularly.
If the investors and any related persons have any queries,
please contact the Compliance and Investors Relations’ Section.
» Miss Supitsara Sunthornwatanapong
Tel. (02)384 2876 ext. 2409 or
Email: supitsara@siamsteel.com
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3. The Company’s Management Structure. The Company’s
management structure consists of Board of Directors and 4
Subcommittees, namely, Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance Committee
and Risk Management Committee. The details of number of
meeting times and each attendance in the fiscal year 2013/2014
are as follows:

madnsandszan / dszguvionua (939)
Attendance / Meeting (Time)

‘J’]il"TJ‘a AMSNITINNT | AUSNITNNIT | ABUSNTINNIT AUSNIINNT | ADUSNIINNT
Name 135NY ATIAFOY | AITUIUASTINUA | MITUGUATAMY/ 1313
ANNDLLLNT UIIENALIR ANNLFEN
(BOD) (AC) (NRC) (CGC) (RMC)
1 weude AaNTUNNa 4/4 - - - -
Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
2 weny wwenlnlsast 4/4 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Manu Leopairote
3 WHANIA TIAFINNA 4/4 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij
4 wElan Fu9Ing 4/4 4/4 3/3 11 11
Mr. Lec Sicoravit
5 wadnanng Tnsgns 4/4 - - - -
Mr. Sakthip Krairiksh
6 A3yyN ﬁﬁmﬂﬂ'ﬂﬁqa 4/4 - - 11 11
Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul
7 WNaIuT ﬂmwﬁfu%qa 4/4 - - - -
Mrs. Orachorn Kunanantakul
8 quiﬁmﬁf faNTUNNA 4/4 - - - -
Mr. Surasak Kunanantakul
9 WIWUNNT ‘*qmcnuna% 4/4 - - - -
Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee
10 WagIna ﬂmwﬁfqua 4/4 - - - -
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul
11 WeaNIT faNTUNNA 4/4 - - - -
Mr. Sittichai Kunanantakul
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4. The Company has defined the scopes, authorities and
duties of the Board of Directors and Subcommittees as per the
details shown in the topic of Management Structure.

5. Report of Securities Trading. The Board of Directors sets
the policies for the Directors and Executives to submit copy of
evidence of the change of their securities holdings to the Company
Secretary every time such change shall occur. The Company
Secretary has the duty to disclose the report of the updated
securities holdings to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement
at every meeting. As such, there has been no such case that
the Company’s Directors and Executives improperly used inside
information for their personal interest or for other persons’ benefits.
(Details are shown in topic of Use of Internal Information).
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AUIUAY (Y1) NN
No. of shareholding (s) AN (a9)
329l (V)
8TANIINAT Number of IR
List of Directors 30 f1.¢. 2556 | 30 .. 2557 shares increase Remarks
June 30, 2013 | June 30, 2014 BEETEEEE)
during the year
(shares)
1 wgdudy ARNTUNNA mﬁma\aﬁwﬁuﬁ 7
Mr. Wanchai K kul fenvaeadui 8-11
. Yvanchal unanantaku 101,936,381 | 101,936,381 0 :h
husband of the 7,
father of the 8" - 11"
2wy e lnlsas
Mr. Manu Leopairote
3 wwgwed S HEERUIE
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij
4 wEan f§253ne
Mr. Lec Sicoravit
o Aa & &
5  wgenanineg Tnagns
Mr. Sakthip Krairiksh
6  @%uUN F9IHRTNENG
1% . 9 2,108 2,108 0
Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul
7 W9e5us ABNTUNNA N3N VBITTUT 1
Mrs. Orachorn Kunanantakul 4877 769 4877 769 0 N1TANTVBIEGUN 8-11
e e wife of the 1%
mother of the 8"-11"
8 wwaIEne atunna UASVOIENGUT 1 uaz 7
d ) A 1,110,897 1,110,897 0 i
Mr. Surasak Kunanantakul children of the 1*and 7"
9 WINUNINT Vj'mﬁnuzl,a"j P 46 0 Hmmaqdwﬁuﬁ 1uaz7
Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee children of the 1*and 7"
10 WegInwa ADNUUNNA 98.015.033 98.015.033 0 qmmméwﬁu'ﬁ' 1 U827
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul T T children of the 1*and 7"
11 wedndye ADNTUNNA qmwaadwﬁuﬁ 1 Uaz 7
Mr. Sittichai Kunanantakul B B " | children of the 1¥and 7"
1 92411l 2557
s
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Executives’ Shareholding in the Company as at June 30, 2014

IUIUAY (1) INWIUY
No. of shareholding (s) AN (a0)
szl (Vu)
NeTDHUITNT Number of RHBLAG
List of Executives 30 {.8. 2556 | 30 .4, 2557 | shares increase Remarks
June 30, 2013 | June 30, 2014 | (decrease)
during the year
(shares)
! WY ﬂm’]ﬁuﬂqa 101,936,381 101,936,381 0 Bormosindiuii 2 - 4
Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul AR R father of the 2™ - 4™
2 WagIfng ADNTUNNA UAIVDIAIAUN 1
: : : 1,110,897 1,110,897 o |" o
Mr. Surasak Kunanantakul children of the 1
3 wegIwWa aantiunna UATVDIAAUN 1
: ¢ 98,015,033 98,015,033 0 : st
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul children of the 1
4 UNUNINT ‘qmﬁnu:m’? 46 46 0 ymmmﬁﬂﬁuﬁ 1
Mrs.Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee children of the 1™
5  WeRMEN LARNZEITIO
) ‘ : 8,427 8,427 0
Miss Sunee Mowsuwan
6 WNEIIWRLY e PR 557 557 0
Miss Wanpen Kuprasertwong
7 WNENMNNLUAT PITTHIT 5 307 5 307 0
Miss Duangnate Duangrahong ’ ’

46

6. ﬁ'muwé’nmmsﬁmii’mmumiﬁd'auvl,é'l,awmn‘siumi
WAZHUIHNS Fadt
. msnsnulueiousn melu 15 u SuudSufiaas
nesMsLEENY Hnfavsialiinidunssimsviaiiuivnsuaigng
. sm\‘numﬂ,ﬂaammawam melu 30 Su swudiui
Nmimamuuﬂawammﬂﬂmnmmmmwmu
. aSwioly nn 1 1 el lessenslu 30 Tu siue
SuFudousune

AH0N 5 - ANNSUAATOUVDIAMINITNAS

W3tny Ienudrdnlunsuaasunuimndni uas GRREY
SuflnzauvesnmMINITHAT Lwaml,ainmwaﬂiimu wazLite
ealidelaunzatnonnaidasiu Wi anén fifadiu
p00U3ENy fRdmlddmds uazdoanlasau immunawu
miﬂmmﬂmmmwﬂiwmﬂ

USE aenuaRadweasiutuLUa 109 (NrnTu)
Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

6. Criteria on the Interest of Directors and Executives Report
are as follows:

» The first report to be submitted within 15 days as from
the date of the Board’s resolution approving to be the Company’s
Directors or Executives.

e The report of information change to be submitted
within 30 days as from the date of such change.

» The succeeding report to be submitted every calendar
year within 30 days as from the date of the end of December.

Chapter 5 - Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Company gives precedence to the Board of Directors’
performing of their roles, duties, and responsibilities in maintaining
the Company’s benefits, and for the transparency and to create
confidence to the employees, customers, Company’s shareholders,
stakeholders, and public society as well as investors both
within and outside Thailand..
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The significant principles in the fiscal year of 2013/2014
are as follows:

1. Setting Out the Policies of the Good Corporate Governance
and the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics in Writing, and
Review Them on an Annual Basis. The directors, sub-directors,
advisors, executives, and all employees must strictly adhere to
the Policy and the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics as
practical guidelines. All employees in all levels will be given
knowledge and support in such implementation. It also
emphasizes making new employees aware of the Company’s
rules and regulations from the first day of joining the Company.
These will be produced as a printed handbook and given to all
new employees. The supervisor shall give advice on the
implementation of such rules and regulations. In the case where
any person fails to comply with the forgoing Policy or the Code
of Conduct and Business Ethics, it shall be deemed as a
disciplinary offence. The penalty shall be in accordance with the
Company’s Work Rules and Regulations which are warning,

suspension, and termination of employment respectively.

2. Setting Out the Risk Policy and Framework of Risk
Management in Writing. The Risk Management Committee shall
be assigned to assess the efficiency of the internal control
system, provide the internal control system to ensure that the
Company'’s operation is under the framework of the least risk
management, which is acceptable, lawful, and in compliance
with relating rules, and monitor the efficiency of the internal
control system to be in compliance with the acceptable standards
such as The Committee of Sponsoring Organization (COSO).

3. Setting Out the Vision, Missions, and Goals, and Review
Them Every 5 Years as follows:

Vision : To be the organization gaining acceptance in
manufacturing and development of furniture, prefabricated
buildings, and related products that can speedily meet the
market's demand, and has constant and sustainable growth.

Strategic Goals
« Stable financial statement with constant and

sustainable growth.
 Efficient management structure.
 Qualified persons.
» Meeting the expectation of stakeholders.
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Missions

» To increase the competence in sales and marketing
whereas the market's demand must be specified and met.

» To make the customers satisfied with the goods and
services whereas the quality, punctuality, and reasonable prices
shall be emphasized.

» To expand the commercial alliance to cover both
within and outside the country whereas the opportunities in
business growth will be jointly created.

» To manage and administer the capital and expenses
efficiently.

e To increase the return on fixed assets and current
assets.

« To enhance the organization management mechanism
to increase the efficiency in working.

» To increase the capability of the employees.

« To meet the expectation of the employees and
shareholders.

e To comply with the laws and related regulations on
business conduct.

4. Policy of Holding Office of the Directors of the Company.
According to the Company’s Articles of Association, at every
Annual Ordinary General Meeting, one-third (1/3) of the directors
shall be retired. If the numbers are not a multiple of three, then
the numbers nearest to one-third of all directors must retire from
office. Therefore, the term of the office of directors shall not
exceed 3 years.

5. Setting Out the Policy of Holding Office of the Top
Executive. According to the Company’s regulations, the President
shall hold office of the President of the listed companies and
their subsidiaries for no greater than 5 companies. For certain
independence in performing the duties of the Company’s
Subcommittees, the President shall not be the director of any
such Subcommittee.

6. Policy of Holding Office of Directors in Other Companies.
At present, there is no regulation regarding the director’s holding
office in other companies as it is considered that as long as the
director can entirely devote his/her time for the Company’s
business, such as, setting out of the Company’s policies and
advising on the business conduct problems, in the capacity of
the directors and such director’s holding office in other companies
does not affect the Company.
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7. Structure of the Directors consists of Board of Directors
and 4 Subcommittees, namely Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance Committee,
and Risk Management Committee. For transparency and
independence in duty performance, all members in the
Subcommittees shall be independent directors. The Board of
Directors structure consists of persons having knowledge,
ability, experience in industry, accounting, finance, and have
academic qualifications for the benefits of the Company’s
business. (The details of the Board of Directors structure are
shown in the topic of Management Structure).

8. Internal Auditor Appointment. The Company has hired
Thamniti Auditing Co., Ltd. as its internal auditor to audit any
department’s performance to be in compliance with the approved
annual auditing plan, as well as to give advice, to monitor the
results of improving, and to report the internal auditing results to
the Audit Committee directly. Miss Reungnit Krisdee, the
general accounting manager, is responsible for supervising
and supporting the operation of the internal auditor.

According to the internal auditing report for the fiscal year
2013/2014 prepared by Thamniti Auditing Co., Ltd, no significant
mistake was found. The Company’s internal control is adequate.
The Company’s business conduct is completely in compliance
with the regulations and laws of the government agencies.

9. Conflict of Interests (Details are shown in the topic of
Insider Information.)

10. Arrangement of Board of Directors’ and Committees’
Meetings. The Company has formally scheduled the meetings
for the Board of Directors and 4 Subcommittees in advance
every year. In the fiscal year of 2013/2014, the Board held 4
meetings. In each meeting, the President, Board and Secretary
jointly reviewed agendas to ensure that important matters would
fully be taken into consideration during such meeting. Each
Director can independently propose any matter he/she considers
important to the meeting. Supporting documents for the meeting
with completed and adequate content for making decisions would
be sent to each Director at least 7 days in advance so that the
directors would have adequate time for reading before attending
the meeting.

Each Board of Directors’ Meeting normally takes not less
than 2 hours.

The minutes of Board of Directors’ Meeting consists of
subject matters namely date, starting and ending time of the
meeting, lists of attending and absent directors, summary of
subject matters of the considered agenda and the Board’s
resolutions of such agenda. The minutes of the Board of
Directors’ Meeting will be well kept by the Company and can be
easily searched whist it cannot be corrected without the
resolutions of the Board of Directors’ Meeting.
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The Board of Directors has established the policy to offer
the opportunity to non-executive directors to have independent
meetings at least once a year in order to consider the Company’s
management and corporate governance.

11. Determination of Policy and Rules for Remuneration of
the Directors. In each year, the Administration Division shall
propose the remuneration of the Directors to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee to consider the reasonable remuneration
whereas it is compared with those of other companies in the
same business. Such remuneration shall be proposed to the
Board of Directors for reconsideration before further proposing
to the Shareholders’ Meeting for approval.

12. Performance Evaluation of the President, Board of
Directors and Subcommittees.

The performance evaluation of the President, Board of
Directors and 4 Subcommittees shall be conducted at least once
a year for the purpose that each Director shall have the opportunity
to review his/her works, issues and obstacles during the previous
year, which would enable his/her performance to be more effective.

The evaluation is created on the basis of guidelines for
evaluation proposed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand.
However, it is improved to be suit for the Company’s operation
and in accordance with the charter. The criteria are as follows:

Scores Level

5 Very Good
4-4.99 Good
3-3.99 Standard
2-2.99 Average
1-1.99 Poor

Performance Evaluation of the President

The performance of the President has been evaluated by
the Board of Directors, considering from:

1) Leadership

2) Strategy Formulation

3) Complying with strategies

4) Financial planning and performance

)
)
)
5) Relationship with the Board
6) Relationship with outside.
7) Administration and relationship with personnel
8) Knowledge of products and services

)

9) Personal qualifications

The result of the performance evaluation of the President
of the fiscal year of 2013/2014 was at the average score of 4.72
from 5, which was in the good level.
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Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors

has been done individually whereas the results of self-evaluation
and performance evaluation of the Board are summarized as
follows:

miﬂim‘iuwm’mmmnssun‘mﬂm’lﬂqﬂﬂa
Individual Performance Evaluation

N3dssiuNaN1IUH TR UVRIAMSNITHAIITNIAMUS
Performance Evaluation of the Board

Tagnalsaann
It shall be considered from:

1) amanTfva9InNTINT
Qualifications of the Director

2) UNUINHINALAZANNSUANTOUBINTINANS
Roles, duties and responsibilities of the Director

3) MIVHRINNVBINTTNAT
Preforming duties of the Director

L o & U o
4) ANNFTNANUSNUHIEIANTT
Relationship with the Management Division

5) MIRAWIAULBIYDINTTHMIUAS M IRAUWE LIS
Self-development of the Director and executive
development

asUmsdszifiunamsdfifnusasnssumaduneyaa 18
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AZLUWLRANE 4.72 AMNASLULLAN 5 emaglummsmmm

The result of individual performance evaluation was

at the average scores of 4.72 from 5, which was in

the good level.

TagAansanann
It shall be considered from:

1) lassa¥uaznuiaudfvosnmenIsuns
Structure and qualifications of the Board

2) UNUINAINALAZANSUAATOLUDIAHSNTINAT
Roles, duties, and responsibilities of the Board

3) M3l guAmMINIINMS
The Board of Directors’ Meeting

4) MAVRINNVDINTINNT
Preforming duties of the Board

5) anuaNAuSIuieaInng
Relationship with the management

6) mﬁﬁ@um@mawaﬁﬂiiumma:miﬁ@umc}j’u'%mi
Self-development of the Board and executive development

agﬂwamsﬂmﬁuwamsﬂﬁﬁ’amwaoﬂmzﬂismmiﬁ%ﬂmz
IEazuuniaiy 4.72 Mnazuuuy 5 %qagﬂummsﬁi:ﬁuﬁ
The result of performance evaluation of the Committee
was at the average scores of 4.72 from 5, which was in
the good level.

n5UseAnn1sUN TR UTaIAMLATINANTE AL B Y

AMUIU 4 AU AD AUZNTTHNITATIAFOYU AMSATINANTATIAN
LAZIABAAIN LN AMNITHMINNUQUANAMI/UTTENNNS
- d 4 oaea -

LAZAMSATINNNTUSUITANNEEY Feaaleidunisdssiiulae
AULDY LALNAITINAIN

1) Tassaouazananiia

2) UNUINHEINNLAZANNSURATEY

3 miﬂizﬁ;u

5) anNdNAusAuEeTanIg

)
)

4) MIVATNN
)

6) NIWEAWIAULDG

Performance Evaluation of 4 Subcommittees, namely

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Governance Committee and Risk Management
Committee, has been done by self-evaluation considering from:

1) Structure and qualifications

2) Roles, duties and responsibilities

3) Meeting

)
)

4) Duty performance

5) Relationship with the management division
)

6) Self-development
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Summary of results of performance evaluation of 4
Subcommittees in the fiscal year of 2013/2014:

AMAZNIINNIYALIE
Subcommittees

astlnansdsziiunsdifausasamenssunsyadas
Results of Performance Evaluation of Subcommittee

1. AUSNITHAITAIIARAU
Audit Committee

2. AAZNTINNSHTTAILAZIAUAAINDULN
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3. AMZNITNNIAAUQUANANI/UTTENALIN
Corporate Governance Committee

4. AATNIINNIIUINITANINLEEN
Risk Management Committee

Idazuumiade 5 nazuumdn 5 Seagluinumsziud
Average scores of 5 from 5, which was in the very good level.

Ifazuuniade 4.46 anazuuwdn 5 Tagluinmiaziud
Average scores of 4.46 from 5, which was in the good level.

Ifazuuniade 4.99 anazuuwdn 5 Gaglunmiaziud
Average scores of 4.99 from 5, which was in the good level.

Ifazuuniaie 4.81 anazuuwdn 5 Geaglunmnaziud
Average scores of 4.81 from 5, which was in the good level.
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13. Knowledge Development of Directors

The Company realizes and gives importance on the
development of the directors’ knowledge. Therefore, it is defined
in the policies of corporate governance in writing as follows:

- Every new director shall be given advice on the
overall perspective of the Company’s operation, organization
structure, procedure, rules, regulations, important policies and
code of conduct for directors in accordance with the rules of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and Security and Exchange
Commission, Thailand.

- Every director shall be encouraged and supported to
enter the training on the directors’ roles and duties, and other
courses enlarging knowledge and being useful for performing
duties of directors whereas the Company shall be responsible
for all expenses.

- Every director has entered the training with Thai
Institute of Directors.

- In the year of 2013/2014, Directors who attended a
seminar are detailed as follows:

1. Mr. Lec Sicoravit, The Challenge of a Compliance
Director with the Sustainable Development of Listed Companies
Course, held by Securities and Exchange Commission.

2. Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee, Handling of Thai
Economics In The Year of 2014 What Each Executive For Each
Industry Thinks, held by The Listed Companied Association.

14. Roles, Duties and Scope of Responsibilities of the
Company Secretary (Details are shown in the topic of
Management Structure).
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Subcommittees

The Board of Directors has appointed 4 subcommittees
consisting of the directors who are knowledgeable and capable
in several areas to assist in studying and scrutinizing details in
accordance with their authorities as specified by the Board and
all of them are independent directors, having details as follows:

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of 3 independent directors
serving 3 year term. All the members of the Audit Committee,
as listed below, meet the qualifications as specified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange
of Thailand.

seu s1eda ALHIY
No. Name Position
1 Wigay e lnlead 13251UNIINNINTIAFDL
Mr. Manu Leopairote Chairman of the Auidt Committee
2 mﬁqwqﬁ wqmawwﬁa NITHNITATIAFDL
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij Member of Auidt Committee
3 WIPLAN F299N8 NITHNITATIAFDLY (L‘ﬂuﬂiiumimaaaauﬁlﬁmwﬁ anudnla uag
MR. Lec  Sicoravit dszaumsmdudnTuaznadu lunssaunmuwiunstiuaasuizny)
Member of Auidt Committee (Member who has knowledge,
understanding and experience in the field of accounting and finance
in auditing the Company’s financial statements)
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Miss Supitsara Sunthornwatanapong is the Secretary to the
Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors has resolved to approve Charter of
the Audit Committee in accordance with policies outlined by the
SEC and SET, which is announced and effective from August
27, 2012. The Audit Committee’s qualifications and
responsibilities are specified as follows:

Qualifications of an Audit Committee

1. Being appointed by the Board of Directors or
shareholders’ meeting;

2. Every Audit Committee Member must be an independent
director;

3. Not being a director assigned by the Board of Directors
to make a decision on the business operation of the
Company, subsidiary company, associated company or
the juristic person with potential conflict of interest to the
Company;

4. Not being a director of subsidiary company or
associated company;

5. Having the duties as specified by the Stock Exchange of
Thailand;

6. Atleast 1 Audit Committee shall be sufficiently skilled
and experienced to assume the duties of auditing
accountability of the financial statements.
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Authority of Audit Committee

1. Audit the Company’s financial statement to be accurate
and sufficient.

2. Arrange the Company to sustain appropriate and efficient
internal control and internal audit and consider independency of
the internal audit section; and approve appointment, rotation and
employment termination of a chief of internal audit section or
other section being in charge of internal audit.

3. Audit that the Company comply with the laws governing
securities and stock exchange, stock exchange requirements,
and other laws applicable to the Company’s business.

4. Consider, select, nominate, re-appoint and employment
termination the person of independent nature to assume the
duties as the Company’s auditor and propose his/her
remuneration; and attend a meeting with the auditor in absence
of the management at least once a year.

5. Consider the related items or the items that may induce
conflict of interests to be in compliance with laws and
requirements of stock exchange to ensure that such items are
reasonable and most beneficial to the Company.

6. Prepare a report of the Audit Committee to be disclosed
in the Company’s annual report, such report must be signed by
the chairman of the Audit Committee and be at least
incorporated with the following details:

(a) Opinions on accuracy, completeness and accountability
of the Company’s financial statement;

(b) Opinions on adequacy of the Company’s internal
audit system;

(c) Opinions on compliance with laws governing
securities and stock exchange, stock exchange requirements or
laws applicable to the Company’s business;

(d) Opinions on suitability of auditor;

(e) Opinions on the items which may induce conflict of
interest;

(f)  Number of board’s meetings and attendance of each
Audit Committee;

(g) Overall opinions or comments given to the Audit
Committee on compliance with charter;

(h) Other items which are considered to be known to the
general shareholders and investors under the scope of duties
and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s board.

7. Other performance assigned by the Company’s board
with Audit Committee’s approval.
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Appointment of Audit Committee

The Board of Directors and/or the Company’s Shareholders’
Meeting is responsible for appointment of 3 Audit Committee
who possess the above qualifications. The office term of the
Audit Committee will be specified by the Board of Directors or
resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

2.Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of
3 independent directors serving 3 year term, namely:

BRIz NeTa AT
No. Name Position
1 WIELEN fU5IN8Y 1J925IUNTTNMTITTHILAZATARUAA IR DULNY
Mr. Lec Sicoravit Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
2 WigNY e lnlsast ATTUATATIHILALINAUAAIADL LN
Mr. Manu Leopairote Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3 mﬂqw\‘iﬁ "ﬁqmamﬁa ASTNNTAITHILALINAUAAIN LN
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Miss Wanpen Kuprasertwong is the Secretary to the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Board of Directors has resolved to approve Charter of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee which has been
announced and effective from August 27, 2012. The Nomination
and Remuneration Committee’s qualifications and responsibilities
are specified as follows:

Qualifications of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
1.The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is the
Company’s directors.

2. The Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is the Independent Director, and majority members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are the Independent
Director.

3. Other than Clause 2., the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall be the directors who are non-executive
directors.

4. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee are the persons
possessing knowledge, ability, experience, comprehension of
qualifications, duties and responsibilities as being the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.
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Responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

1. Setting the policies, criteria and procedures for recruiting,
selecting and proposing the persons to assume the position of Directors,
Subcommittees, and Executives (over or equivalent to director level)
by taking the number of Committees as well as their qualifications into
consideration for proposing to the Board of Directors’ Meeting and/or
the Shareholders’ Meeting for approval in case of vacancy due to out
of term or any other cases.

2. Searching, selecting and proposing the person to assume the
position in the Board of Director, other Committees and Executives
(over or equivalent to President level) for proposing in the Board of
Directors’ Meeting and/or the Shareholders’ Meeting for approval in
case of vacancy due to out of term and in any other cases.

3. Setting the policies, criteria, procedures for remuneration
payout for the Board of Directors, Subcommittees in each position
and Executives (over or equivalent to director level) in various forms
such as meeting allowance, commission, bonus, welfare and other
returns both in cash and in any kind including an Employee Stock
Option Plan (ESOP Scheme) by taking into consideration the duties,
responsibilities, and works, comparison with other companies in
similar business and the expected advantage of the Directors for
proposing to the Board of Directors’ Meeting and/or the Shareholders’
Meeting for approval as the case may be.

4. Determining and fixing the frame of yearly bonus payment,
rate of salary increment and other benefits proposed by Executives.

5. Prescribing the performance evaluation rules of the Board of
Directors and other Committees in order to apply in evaluating the
holistic performance of the directors.

6. Being responsible for explaining and answering any questions
regarding details of nomination of directors and the directors’
remuneration in the Shareholders’ Meeting.

7. Reporting policies and principles/reasons of nomination
procedures and in determining the remuneration of the Board of
Directors, other Committees’ members and management according
to the SET guidelines by disclosing them in the Company’s annual
information disclosure form (56-1) and annual report.

8. Organizing to have the Internal Nomination and Remuneration
Charter reconsidered every year for proposing in the Board of
Directors’ Meeting for approval.

9. Performing any other duties as assigned by the Board of
Directors.
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. 3. Corporate Governance Committee
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The Corporate Governance Committee consists of 4
independent directors serving 3 year term, namely:

s Jede ALAIS
No. Name Posotion
1 WIANIA Y HEERURE U525UNITHMIIALQUANANT/UTTENALIN
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
2 WENY welnlsan NITUNMIMNALQUAAINI/UTTENALIA
Mr. Manu Leopairote Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
3 WIELAN Fu5IN8 NIINMIANLQUANANI/UIIENALNA
Mr. Lec Sicoravit Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
4 QERILIPR SIINATINHNA NIINMIANLQUANANT/UTIINALNA
Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
loafweangias gunsiauned wauunszasams Miss Supitsara Sunthornwatanapong is the Secretary to
NITNMIMNUQUANINY/UITENALIA the Corporate Governance Committee.
AMZNITHNITUIENY vl@umlauumﬂg]u@liﬂmmiwmi The Board of Directors has resolved to approve Charter of

o W

ﬂ’m‘uﬂLLaﬂ’Qﬂ’ﬁ/‘Uii‘M“nﬂ‘lﬂa‘ﬂu amvl,@]ﬂiq,mml,awu Namﬂumum the Corporate Governance Committee which has been announced

o
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TuN 27 Feman 2555 I@mvl.@m%u@ﬂmauumm mmwmw and effective from August 27, 2012. The Corporate Governance
ﬂa@ﬂmwﬂii&lﬂ’liﬂ’m‘u@]LL@ﬂQﬂ’]‘J/‘UiTHV]ﬂ‘U’]a mu Committee’s qualifications and responsibilities are specified as
follows:
AMANTAVDIAMSNIINAIANUQUANANI/UITHNALA - _
Qualifications of the Corporate Governance Committee
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1. The Chairman of Corporate Governance Committee is the
Independent Director, and majority members of the Corporate
Governance Committee are the Independent Directors.

2.The Corporate Governance Committee are the persons
possessing knowledge, ability, experience, comprehension of

o 4 qualifications, duties and responsibilities as being the Corporate
2IUIARUINUASAMNIVHATBUIDIAMSNTINAITAINUVQUA

AaN5/UTTENALIA

Governance Committee.

Responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee

1. auaulang nanns u,mmﬁm'iﬂfjﬁ’ﬁmwﬁmﬁ’umﬁ
mﬂmuaﬂamﬁm memawaﬂgmlumimmu (Code of Ethics)
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1. Proposing to the Board of Directors for approval of the
policies, criteria, guidelines for work performance as to the Good
Corporate Governance and Code of Ethics and their updates for
the suitability of the Company’s operation and in conformity with
the international standard or practices and/or advice of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange
Commission as well as the relevant government sectors.

2.Monitoring performances of the Company to ensure that
they are in conformity with their policies.

3. Proposing the provisions of Code of Business Conduct and
Code of Best Practices to the Company’s directors, executives
and employees, with comments to the guidelines and suggestions
for improvement as proper.

4.Promoting the culture dissemination of Good Corporate
Governance to all level of employees for their comprehension

and effective practices.
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5.Considering to appoint working groups and to prescribe
their responsibilities for supporting the operation of corporate
governance and business conduct as deemed appropriate.

6. Having authority to invite and/or hire the third party possessing
knowledge and skill to be a consultant and join the meeting with
the Company’s cost.

7.Reporting the performance of the Corporate Governance
Committee by disclosing it in the Company’s annual information
disclosure form (56-1) and annual report.

8.0rganizing to have the Internal Corporate Governance
Committee Charter reconsidered every year for proposing in the
Board of Directors’ Meeting for approval.

9. Performing any other duties as assigned by the Board of
Directors.

4. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee consists of 4 independent
directors serving 3 year term, namely:

58

aAUN NeTD ALAUS
No. Name Position
a & A a
1 Wiy e lnlsat 1328NUNTINNITUINIIANNLEL
Mr. Manu Leopairote Chairman of the Risk Management Committee
2 WIEFNWIG TEYATINAA NIINNTUIRITANINLEEN
Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij Member of the Risk Management Committee
3 WIELAN FUTINg NIINMITUIMHITANNLFLS
Mr. Lec Sicoravit Member of the Risk Management Committee
4 A3.YN SIINNTINHNA NITNNTLIAITANNLFLY
Dr. Boonwa Thampitakkul Member of the Risk Management Committee

loaflwanaias qunsiauned uaaunszasame
NIINNITUSHITANLELS

ﬂm"ﬂii&lﬂ’]iﬂiiﬂ‘ﬂ EJVL@]N3~I@l@uN@]ﬂ{]U@ﬁﬂm“ﬂiiNﬂ’]iﬂi“ﬂ’]i
ﬂ’)’]NLﬁfJ\‘ﬂJ% ‘ﬁﬂi@ﬂi”ﬂ’]ﬁua NN@‘U\?@U@NLL@I')W‘(} 27 Firneau
2555 Imimmwummauumm mmwmw’uammwnﬁumi
‘i_li'ﬂ’]iﬂ’ﬂ&lmil\‘i @1\‘1%

qmauﬁ’ammﬂmznssumiﬁmsmwmam

1. dezomdunssunmadaszuaznssumasiulngidunssnns
BERH

%

2. AMSNTINANTUSHNITANNLFES Lﬂuéﬁmwg AMNAEINITD
v Y

1szaunsas mm§ mmm’jﬂaﬁmmamﬁ’a UUIN LAZANNI
AAr0UlUgIUSNITHMILIAITANHFLY

USE aenuaRadweasiutuLUa 109 (NrnTu)
Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

Miss Supitsara Sunthornwatanapong is the Secretary to the
Risk Management Committee.

The Board of directors has resolved to approve Charter of
the Risk Management Committee which has been announced
and effective from August 27, 2012. The Risk Management
Committee’s qualifications and responsibilities are specified as
follows:

Qualifications of the Risk Management Committee

1.The Chairman of Risk Management Committee is the
Independent Director, and majority members of the Risk
Management Committee are the Independent Director.

2.The Risk Management Committee are the persons
possessing knowledge, ability, experience, comprehension of
qualifications, duties and responsibilities as being the Risk
Management Committee.
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Responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee

1.Prescribing the Company’s overall risk management
policy and framework covering significant risk factors, e.g. Strategic
Risk, Operational Risk, Financial and Accounting Risk,
Compliance Risk, Information System Risk, etc.

2. Determining strategies in consistency with risk management
policy, which can measure, monitor, and maintain acceptable
risk levels of the Company.

3.Advocating and carrying forward for the cooperation in
operation of the Company’s overall risk management, and
reviewing the adequacy of the risk management policy and
system, which includes the system’s effectiveness as well as the
implementation of the prescribed policy.

4.0rganizing to systematically and continuously evaluate
and analyze damage that may incur both in normal and crisis
circumstances, to ensure that the risk survey covers the whole
business operation processes.

5.Supporting and developing the risk management
throughout the organization in conformity with the international
standard.

6. Regularly reporting the Board of Directors regarding areas
to be improved in accordance with the prescribed policy and
strategies.

7.Having authority to hire the outsourced consultant for
advisory, with the Company’s cost, after obtaining the Board of
Directors’ consent.

8.Reporting the performance of the Risk Management
Committee by disclosing it in the Company’s annual information
disclosure form (56-1) and annual report.

9.0rganizing to have the Internal Risk Management
Committee Charter reconsidered every year for proposing in the
Board of Directors’ Meeting for approval.

10. Performing any other duties as assigned by the Board of
Directors.
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Nomination and appointed Director and Executives
1. Independent Director

Qualifications of Independent Director

The Board of Directors consists of 5 independent directors
which is more than one-third of the directors in total. The Board
has approved the new definition and qualification of the independent
director which is more rigid than the terms of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand (SET) and in line with good corporate governance
practices as follows:

1.not hold shares in excess of 0.90 percent of the total
number of voting shares of the Company, subsidiary, associated
company, major shareholder or any person having controlling
power over the Company, whilst the number of shares held by
any related person of such an in independent director must also
be counted,

2.not be and have not been a director participating in
management role of the Company, or an employee or an officer
of the Company, or an advisor of the Company which receives
regular salary from the Company, and not be and have not been
a person having controlling power over the Company, subsidiary
or associated company, unless such an independent director
has not been a person referred to above for at least two years
prior to the date on which the application for being an independent
director is filed with the SEC, provided always that such restriction
or prohibition shall not apply to an independent director who has
been a governmental officer or an advisor of a government
authority, which is the major shareholder of the Company or the
person having controlling power over the Company;

3. not be a person having relationship either through blood
or lineage or legal registration as a father, mother, spouse,
sibling or child, including as a spouse of a child of any
management person or major shareholder of the Company or
the Company’s subsidiary, or of any person having power to
control the Company or the Company’s subsidiary, or of the
person being nominated to be a management person of or a
person having power to control the Company or the Company’s
subsidiary;

4. nothave and have not had any business relationship with
the Company, subsidiary, associated company, or major
shareholder, or with the person having power to control the
Company that may have conflict of interest, in the manner in
which his/her independent discretion might be affected, and not be
and have not been a substantial shareholder of or a person having
power to control the person that has business relationship with
the Company, subsidiary, associated company major shareholder
or the person having power to control the Company unless such
an independent director has not been a person referred to above
for at least two years prior to the date on which the application
for being an independent director is filed with the SEC,
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Business relationship referred to in the first paragraph above
shall mean to include any ordinary course of business or trade
for business engagement purpose, any lease taking or lease out
of any property, any transaction relating to asset or service, any
financial support or acceptance of financial support by way of
either borrowing, lending, guaranteeing or collateral providing or
any other manner similar thereto that could result to an obligation
required to be performed by the applicant or the party thereto in
an amount of three percent or more of the net tangible asset
value of the applicant or twenty million baht or more, whichever
is lesser. In light of this, the method for calculation of the value
of connected transaction pursuant to the Capital Market
Supervising Committee’s Notification, Re: Regulations in respect
of an Entering into a Connected Transaction shall be applied
mutatis mutandis for the purpose of calculation of such amount
of debt of the applicant, provided that the amount of debt incurred
during the past one year prior to the date on which such a
business relationship with such person exists;

5.not be and have not been an auditor of the Company,
subsidiary, associated company major shareholder or of any of
the person having power to control the Company, and not be
and have not been a substantial shareholder of, a person having
power to control over, or a partner of any auditing firm or office
in which the auditor of the Company, or subsidiary, or major
shareholder, or the person having power to control the
Company is working, unless such an independent director has
not been a person referred to above for at least two years prior
to the date on which the application for being an independent
director is filed with the SEC;

6. not be and have not been a professional advisor, including
legal or financial advisor who obtains fee more than two million
baht a year from the Company, subsidiary, associated company
or major shareholder, or from the person having power to control
the Company, and not be and have not been a substantial
shareholder of, a person having power to control over, or a
partner of any of such professional service provider firm or office,
unless such an independent director has not been a person
referred to above for at least two years prior to the date on which
the application for being an independent director is filed with the
SEC;

7. not be a director appointed as a representative of a director
of the Company, a representative of a major shareholder of the
Company, or a representative of a shareholder of the Company
which is a related person of the major shareholder of the
Company;
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8. not engage in any business the nature of which is the same
as that of the Company or the Company’s subsidiary and which,
in any material respect, is competitive with the business of the
Company or the Company’s subsidiary, or not be a substantial
partner in a partnership, a director participating in any management
role, an employee or officer, an advisor obtaining regular salary
from, or a shareholder holding more than one percent of the
voting shares of a company engaging in any business the nature
of which is the same as that of the Company or the Company’s
subsidiary and which, in any material respect, is competitive with
the business of the Company or the Company’s subsidiary;

9. not have any characteristics by which his/her independent
comment or opinion on the Company’s operation may be
affected. If a person having qualifications stated in (1) to (9)
above is appointed as an independent director of the Company,
such appointed independent director may be assigned by the
Company’s Board of Directors to make decision in respect of
business operation of the Company, or subsidiary or associated
company, the major shareholder of the Company, or the person
having controlling power over the Company, provided that such
decision making by such appointed independent director must
always be made on a collective decision basis.

(A related person includes any person who is related to or
associated with the Company to the extent that limit independent
or flexible performance of duties, for example, as a product
seller, customer, creditor, debtor or any person significantly
related to the business.

A director who is engaged in management means a director
who holds a position as an executive, a director who perform
his/her duties like an executive and an director who signs binding
the Company unless the power to sign binding is approved by
the Board of Directors and jointly with the other directors.)

Appointment of the Independent Director
The Board of Directors and/or the Meeting of Shareholders
will appoint the Independent Director who possesses the above
qualifications. The Independent Director’s office terms will be
specified by the Board of Directors or resolved by the Shareholders’
Meeting. The Independent Director is now composed of 5 directors
(equivalent to 45% of the Board of Directors).
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2. The Nomination of the Directors and Executives

The nomination of the Directors, President or any positions
equal to the Company’s Chief Executive as well as the Committees’
members shall be conducted for consideration and screened by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee before proposing
to the Board of Directors and/or the Shareholders’ Meeting. The
nomination will be conducted in conformity with the Company’s
policy and taken into consideration appropriate qualifications
which they shall possess knowledge and ability and have adequate
time for providing service to the Company.

According to the Articles of Association, the Board of Directors
consists of at least 5 directors and no less than half of the total
number of directors shall reside in Thailand. The Board of Directors
may or may not be the Company’s shareholder.

The Directors shall be appointed by the Shareholders’
Meeting on the following criteria and practices:

1.0ne share for one vote.

2.Each shareholder may exercise all his/her votes provided
in 1, for the election of one or a group of directors but the votes
may not be split for different parties.

3.The nominee receiving the highest votes shall be elected
to fill the seat. In the case where the number of nominees gaining
equal votes exceeds the number of seat (s) available, then the
chairman shall have the casting vote.

- At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, in every
year, one-third of the directors, or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to one-third must retire from
office.

- Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors otherwise
than by rotation may be filled up by the Board of Directors’ Meeting,
but any person so appointed shall retain his office during such
time only as the vacating director was entitled to retain the same.

Corporate Governance of Subsidiary and Joint Venture Company

The Company’s Committees’ mechanisms for governing,
controlling, managing and being responsible for the operation of
subsidiary and joint venture Company so as to maintain benefits
in the Company’s investment fund are as follows:

1.The Company’s representatives serve as directors
and executives in accordance with the shareholding proportion
in subsidiary and Joint Venture Company. Such representatives
shall be given approval from the meeting of Company’s
Committee, whereby, the aforementioned and executive will
participate in implementing important policies for the business
operations of the subsidiary and joint venture company.

e9udszany 2557 63
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2.Persons appointed as directors in the subsidiary or join
venture company have the duty to administer for the best benefits of
the Company including the subsidiary and joint venture.

Moreover, the subsidiary company is specified to possess
the practice concerning connected transactions, the acquisition
and disposition of assets in full and correct manners like the
Company’s principles. These also include the collection of
information and bookkeeping of the subsidiary to enable the
Company to inspect report and prepare the overall financial
statement in time.

Insider Information Management

The Company has prepared the Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics in writing which covers the use of insider
information as follows:

- Directors, executives and employees of the Company are
prohibited from the use of undisclosed insider information for the
purpose of purchasing, selling, transferring or accepting a transfer
of securities issued by the Company, prior to the disclosure of
such information to the public.

- Directors and executives shall report all their securities
holding to the Security and Exchange Commission, Thailand, for
every time of purchasing, selling, transferring or accepting a
transfer of securities issued by the Company, within 3 working
days commencing from the date of purchasing, selling, transferring
or accepting a transfer of securities and deliver one copy of the
said report to the Company Secretary for safekeeping as evidence.
In this regard, the Board of Directors has followed up the results
of compliance with such measure by arranging the Company
Secretary to report the changes in securities holdings of all
directors in every Board of Directors’ meeting.

- Directors, executives and employees of the Company are
asked for collaboration to not purchase or sell securities for a
period of 1 month prior to the disclosure of information relating
financial statements or other information having effects on
securities trading prices to the public.

- Information relating to the Company’s business operation,
e.g. commercial agreements, product prototypes and commercial
information, is considered as secrets of the Company. Such
information is not allowed to be disclosed to other persons unless
the disclosure is in compliance with laws or for the Company’s
management benefit, provided that the Company’s approval shall
be obtained prior to any such disclosure.

- In the case where there are persons who fail to adhere to
the above terms, they shall be deemed to be in violation of the
Company'’s disciplines, and the punishment for such violation
will be from caution, suspension from service to termination of
service (as the case may be).
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(Details are shown in (Form 56-1) the topic of Corporate
Social Responsibility and on website www.furnituresystem.com

Chapter Investor Relation)

The Board of Directors gives priority to good corporate
governance in order to strengthen and enhance competitive
performance and to build confidence with all groups of the
stakeholders. The policy of corporate social responsibility (CSR)
then are formed a part of the good corporate governance as
guidelines for the Company’s business operations with the
corporate social responsibility, the occupational safety, health
and environment including protection and preservation of the
environment within the Company and surrounding community in
order to maintain an environmentally friendly condition.

Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility

1.Manage and proceed with activities which emphasize
business development and progress based on the corporate
governance principles, compliance of laws, regulations, business
ethics and other appropriate and efficient standards.

2.Carry out activities by adhering to protect the lawful
benefits of all groups of stakeholders properly and efficiently.

3. Support and encourage community development whether
in economic, social and environmental fields on sustainable
basis and within the Company’s proficiency.

4.Encourage and cultivate knowledge, understanding and
conscience in the importance of the corporate social responsibility
in the employees as well as other persons participating in the
Company’s business operation.

5.Encourage activities in the field of corporate social
responsibility by continuously developing as well as improving
the activities and disseminating them to the public.

Policy on Occupational Safety, Health and Environment

1. Perform works according to the occupational safety, health
and environment management systems based on ISO 14001,
OHSAS 18001 standards and in compliance with the terms of
laws, rules, regulations, conditions and other requirements
relating to the Company’s business operation.

2. Perform works based on the basis of systematic protection,
avoidance and control of environmental effects which may occur
as a result of Company’s business operation whether in water,
air, noise, garbage and waste including the improvement of
safety standards and the removal dangers as a result of machines,
tools, chemicals, electricity, dust, heat radiation, fire, working at
high altitude, illness from work and other risky dangers.

3. Support energy conservation and consumption of natural
resources to obtain maximum benefits and to conform to
Energy Management Systems.
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4.Encourage and cultivate knowledge and understanding,
good conscience on the occupational safety, health and
environment in the employees, contractors and other persons
participating in the Company’s business operation, moreover, to
make them realize the importance of and strictly cooperate by
performing work safely, in accordance with the occupational
safety, health and environment as stipulated by the Company.

5.Support activities reducing risks and effects on
occupational safety, health and environment to be carried on,
developed and improved continuously and disseminating them
to the public.

Policy on Energy Conservation

1. Energy conservation is a part of duties of the Company’s
operation.

2.Comply with laws and other requirements relating to
energy conservation and management.

3.Encourage energy conservation and effective natural
resource allocation to bring about maximum benefits subject to
energy management methods.

4.Encourage activities based on energy conservation to be
carried out with regards to feature and amount of energy consumed
to be in line with practical goals and measures of energy
conservation in order to reduce the energy using, as well as
continuously observe and develop efficiency in the energy using.

5.Encourage, create and educate all of the Company’s
employees including other persons participating in the Company’s
business operation to make them understand the Company’s
policy on energy conservation. This is to bring about
consciousness and understanding so that the policy on energy
conservation can be applied in all working processes.

6. Disseminate the policies and activities reducing the energy
consumption to the public, and provide corporation with all both
governmental and private sectors in the energy conservation.

Operation

o Good Corporate Governance

The Company gives priority to good corporate governance
in order to increase transparency and to build confidence in its
employees, customers, shareholders, stakeholders and overall
societies including both domestic and foreign general investors
by the adoption of Corporate Governance Policy and Code of
Conduct and Business Ethics. Whereas, the directors, consultants,
executives and all employees of the organization are required
to strictly adhere to the Corporate Governance Policies (Details
The
Company has established 6 CSR Working Groups to supervise

are shown in the topic of Corporate Governance).

the works relating to CSR, consisting of executives from all
divisions as follows:
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SIAM STEEL

1.Corporate Social Responsibility Working Group, having
the President presiding over it, having duties and responsibilities
to set out, giving directions for operation including approving
guidelines relating to the social responsibility;

2.0ccupational Safety, Health and Environment
Management System Committee (ISO 14001 & HOSAS 18001);

3.Quality Management System Committee (ISO 9001);

4.Energy Management Working Groups (ISO 50001);

5.Complaint Management Committee;

6.Welfare Committee.

All 6 Working Groups shall review the progress and work

performance according to plans for Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) 4 times per year.

« Fair Business Engagement (Details are shown in the

topic of Corporate Governance Chapter No. 3 - Regard for Role
of Stakeholders.)

 Anti-corruption
The Company has specified anti-corruption issues against

any conflict of interest, forbidding bribery or alluring offer or
acceptance as prescribed in the Corporate Governance Policy
and Code of Conduct and Business Ethics to which the directors
and employees must strictly adhere. Furthermore, if the internal
audit result shows any point which will incur risk in the said
issues, the Audit Committee shall inform Administration Division
to proceed with inspection and resolve the said problem.
In addition, the Company has the preventive operation against
being involved with any corruption as follows:

1. Let both internal and external interested persons
inform or make a complaint concerning any offences against
laws, ethics, incorrect financial statements or defective internal
governing system to the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee, including describe the measure to protect the
informer’s rights from any violation.

2. Theemployees witnessing any violation or disobedience
against the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics shall notify
the Senior General Manager at Human Resources and General
Affairs Division for proceeding with the fact inspection. In case
where any law violation is found, the result of fact inspection
shall be informed to the General Affairs-Government Division for
proceeding with the further civil and/or criminal action. In the
case where the essential ethics of the organization is violated,
the petitioner shall report the said violation to the Company’s
Audit Committee. In this regard, the Company has adopted
measures to protect the informer’s rights against any violation.

In the previous fiscal year, no complaint relating to any
corruption violating laws, ethics, incorrect financial statements
or defective internal governing system was informed to the
Company by any means.
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» Respect for Human Rights

The Company respects for the rights, freedom, human
dignity and personal equality without any discrimination against
racial, religious, sexual, senior, educational or physical and
mental similitude and diversity of all employees, business partners
or any other person who is relevant to the Company’s business
operation (Details are shown in the topic of Corporate Governance
Chapter No.3 — Regard for Role of Stakeholders).

 Fair Treatment to Labor

The Company recognizes that all of the employees are
valuable resources and the essential factor which will bring
success to the Company; therefore, the Company gives
its priority to the personnel management and development
and the good working atmosphere building by:

- Complying with the laws and other regulations relevant
to the employees.

- Creating the human-resources management system
establishing equality to all employees without any discrimination.

- Managing remuneration and welfare to achieve the
level which is affordable and comparable with any other
company in the same or similar business field.

- Developing personnel and knowledge transfer
continuously in order to provide the personnel with the knowledge,
abilities and skills which are necessary to rapidly and
effectively cope with any changeable situation.

- Providing any proper welfare to the employees in order
to encourage them in working.

- Supporting any works for the employees’ environment,
health and safety.

(Details are shown in the topic of Corporate Governance
Chapter No.3 - Regard for Role of Stakeholders and on the
website www.furnituresystem.com in the chapter of the Investor
Relation.)

» Responsibility for Consumers and Corporation for
Community and Society Development (Details are shown in the
topic of Corporate Governance Chapter No.3 - Regard for Role
of Stakeholders.)

« Environmental Management

The Company has set the environmental policies for the
purpose of managing and developing the environmental quality
both in the factory and the surrounding areas starting from
material, manufacturing process and package selections by
considering the effect to the environment, providing the
environmental management which strictly conform to
environmental laws or regulations so that the Company is
certified the environmental management standard ISO 14001 by
the Bureau Veritas Quality International (BVQI) and the Green
Label by the Thailand Environment Institute.


http://www.furnituresystem.com
http://www.furnituresystem.com

1. Yag@y (Raw Material)

[ a

mq@mmulwmlummmmswﬁm aslfinsninaalu
sznauazsindnainatedseine muﬁuaﬁnmmmwua“mm
Mm‘“mumsmmaﬂa flamndniindu me“mm"hﬂ%slu
ﬂswmumswamau 9 Lwalﬁm@uﬂﬂwam L% vaﬂLmssﬂmu
Sudmfifanadnes Safuiudndenlaenausasniaiu
AN mummamvlummmu;ﬂsgﬂvl,@aﬂﬂgﬂmmwamiﬂ
FloidAa (Recycle) uazdnl#inismugumsdaiy dununis
Q(ﬂﬂ’]i'ﬂmﬂ(ﬂBQVLNI‘MNNaﬂ‘iw‘Vl‘U(ﬂaaﬁLL’ma@N
2. 'ﬂsﬂaw (Press Line)
%u@mmaﬂmmammmaﬂmm”mmmﬂi“mumi
Tlane I@ﬂslfm,ﬂ3a\1ﬁuen\ﬂ°nmmuvlamaaﬂLﬂiaqﬂm“mmLLami\a
SneifetlaetlldiimsSlnauonhdilansain Susuns
a@mma“mﬁa@mumﬂmaﬂui‘ﬁmam“wumaamnmaama”
shitilaasasniliiuiaes mnaamﬂl,wamvlﬂ'svlmﬂa (Recycle)
3. msﬂmamau‘[aw (Spot and Welding Process)
ranTUTIRRTHannTLuMsanSAuasdonTans 1Eun
sy, A uazinaiAsanmsen v wu anduanlaaanlod,
mivaunauaanlsd wia ywvaslalans mmu‘[mmm@m
szuUQAdy (Wet Scrubber) " Rolal¥Snansznudetouandon
wazflununsaatalEsnoeTunasine Lwammuvl,ul‘wmmu
HIATTIUNTNLTIUATIWNTIH UAZNTHAILANNANY
4. wud (Painting Process) HaNIzNUfiAAaNNNIZLIUMG

1. dudgannszuIun1saresisunaslasiu (Oil and

Grease)
901 a = a v =3

2. 4 FannNITLIBNISIAaRURIRnANNaF NG
(Iron Phosphate)

3.mnd

4. nMneznauninaaNsTuuLTaLinLEe

a v YV k% a % 1

5.0MMedgaINN IR Ind (Hasauudanazaus) Taun

fwesuaulesanlsd uazduazandd

nMImIuaNswIedan

1. hiFsfiAnduainnszuaunsnanas mmmmmh
59 uummmmﬂmuwimmmsmua muwmmm AN
NINIIUNINLTINUIATINNTIN

2. MMmade azruIzuUgAdu(Wet Scrubber) Wathila
nautlasgnanuasiukiunsaindInimaiunasineg Lﬁ'amuﬂu
TallAenAneN AT UNTHLTINUATINNTINUAZNTNAILANNANY

3. NINFLAZAINAZNABATNTZUULNTA erLﬁumn
a@1amﬂﬁmwmaﬂﬁmwwﬂmuaum@mﬂmﬂs\‘mmﬂuw
mmmmﬁmiﬂm@aaLLauﬂaaﬂmmaﬂmLawaam@aau

SIAM STEEL

1. Raw material
The majority of raw material in the manufacturing
process is steel produced in domestic part and imported from
overseas depends on the qualities and prices. In the steel cutting
process, the steel scraps are produced; however, they will be
used in the other process for their maximum application namely
being transformed into the smaller pieces which are the
component of the steel product. The residue which cannot be
transformed will be sold for being recycled and stored under
control and correct managing plan causing no effect to the
environment.
2. Press Line
The steel part cut from steel coil will enter the press line
process producing by the pressing machine using hydraulic oil.
The pressing machine will be maintained in order to prevent any
hydraulic oil leakage, which has the proper management and
storage plan causing no effect to the environment, and the used
hydraulic oil will be sold for being recycled.
3. Spot and Welding Process
The effects caused by spot and welding process, e.g.
heat, fume and combustion gas namely carbon dioxide, carbon
monoxide or metallic fume, will be controlled by the installation
of the Wet Scrubber in order to protect the environment from
any effect. There is also a plan for inspection of fume and gas
quantity in order to prevent the same from exceeding the
standard values of the Department of Industrial Works and
Pollution Control Department.
4. Painting Process The effects caused by the painting
process are as follows:
1. Sewage from oil and grease cleaning process;
2.Sewage from iron phosphate coating process;
3. Color residue;
4. Precipitate produced by the sewage treatment system;
5. Polluted air from combustion (Drying and color-baking
rooms) namely carbon dioxide and color fume.

Environment Control

1. Sewage produced by the manufacturing process will be
treated in the chemical treatment system having standard and
control of the waste water value subject to the standard of the
Department of Industrial Works.

2. Polluted air will enter into the Wet Scrubber system in
order to be treated prior to release, there is the inspection plan
of the fume and gas quantity in order to prevent the same from
exceeding the standard values of the Department of Industrial
Works and Pollution Control Department.

3. Color residue and precipitate from the treatment system
which is industrial residue will be delivered to the other company
approved by the Department of Industrial Works for treatment
with the proper and safe process for human and environment.
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4. Environment will be controlled by the lawful supervisor
namely the supervisor of the treatment systems for water, air
and industrial residue pollutions.

Social and Environmental Disputes - In the previous year, no
social and environmental disputes have arisen between the
Company and other corporation.
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SIAM STEEL

The Company hereby appoints Dharmniti Audit Company
Limited since June 2009 to June 2014 to be the Company’s
Internal Auditor, being independent and shall report directly toward
the Operation Internal Audit Committee for assessment of its
performance of the internal audit system and provision of advice
for development thereof to be consecutively in good standing.
The Internal Audit Committee shall review an Internal Auditor’s
report, thereafter report to the Company’s Board of Directors
Meeting.

The Board of Directors’ opinion pertaining to the internal

control system
The Board of Directors has evaluated the Company’s

internal control system from the internal auditor’s report
regarding the effectiveness of the internal control system, the
Audit Committee’s report, the information obtained from
Management and conclude that from the evaluation of the
Company’s internal control system in 5 areas, namely the
organization’s internal control, risk assessment, operation control,
information and communication system and monitoring system,
the Board of Directors deems that the Company’s internal
control system is sufficient and appropriate as the Company has
arranged sufficient personnel with efficient performance in
compliance with the system as well as having the adequate
internal control system in monitoring and supervising the
Company'’s subsidiaries’ operations, to prevent any illegitimate
or unauthorized utilization of the Company’s or its subsidiaries’
properties by the directors or executives including preventing
any transactions made with persons having conflicts or any
other related persons. For other areas, the Board of Directors
deems that the Company has sufficient internal control.
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Information and experiences of The Chief of the Dharmniti Audit Company Limited’s Internal Audit.
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Position
Certified Professional Internal Auditors of Thailand
Education

Internal Auditing experience in the same business
with the company

Experience
1992 — 1997
1997 — 2001
2002 — 2003
2003 — 2007
2008 — 2009

2014 — Present
No. of shares held as of appointing date

Contact information
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Head of risk management and internal audit
CPIAT-2008
BBA Accounting (Ramkhamhaeng University)

7 years

Assistant Auditor

Assistant Audit Manager Section 4

Audit Manager Section 4

Manager of Internal Audit and Management Service

Senior Manager of Risk Management and Internal Audit Department
Head of Risk Management and Internal Audit

None

Tel. 02 - 587-8080 ext. 209
Email saksri@dharmniti.co.th
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SIAM STEEL

Dear Shareholders of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited,

The Audit Committee, consisting of 3 persons who are
independent directors completely qualified as per the regulations
and good practice guidelines of the Audit Committees of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand, has been appointed by the 2006
Annual Ordinary General Meeting and by the Board of Directors’
Meeting No. 3/2012 on August 27, 2012 with a period in office
for 3 years. The Audit Committee of the Company currently
consists of Mr. Manu Leopairote as Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Supong Chayutsahakij and Mr. Lec Sicoravit as
members of Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has performed duties as per the scopes,
duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors of
the Company which are in line with the regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. During the accounting year of 2013/2014,
4 meetings of the Audit Committee were held, all of which were
attended by every members and in which were the meetings with
executives, auditors and internal auditors, as might be appropriate.
The essence of the meetings can be summarized as follows:

1. Verification of quarterly and annual financial statements of
2013/2014 by inquiring and listening to the clarification from the
executives and auditors regarding the correctness and
completeness of the financial statements, information disclosing
sufficiency as well as acknowledgement of the audit plans of the
auditors for 2013/2014, on which the Audit Committee is of the
opinion concordant to the auditors that the essence of such
financial statements was correct as it should be under the
general certified accounting standards.

2. Verification of information on operations and internal
control systems in order to evaluate the sufficiency, suitability
and effectiveness of internal control systems which will lead to
operations being accomplished as per the goals set by taking
into account the annual report of internal audit of 2013/2014,
which covers the Company’s essential working systems, under
the approved plans. In this regard, no significant weakness or
error was found. Maintenance of assets was properly done and
disclosure of information was correct, complete and reliable.

3. Verification of compliance with laws regarding Securities
and Stock Exchange, regulations of Stock Exchange of Thailand
and laws relating to the Company’s businesses. The Company
has established the legal department and the compliance
department to keep track of, analyze and report on changes of
laws and regulations relating to the Company and caused the
Company to correctly comply with the laws and regulations.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that there was no
significant issue regarding the incompliance with the said laws or
regulations.
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4. Verification of and provision of comments on relevant
matters or matters which may lead to conflict of interests as well
as disclosure of information on such matters under the regulations
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Office of the Securities
and Exchange Commission on which the auditors are of the
opinion that the said matters were reasonable and of maximum
benefits to the Company’s business operations and that the
disclosure of information was correct and complete.

5.Performance evaluation of the whole committee by
annual self-evaluation comparing with the good practice
guidelines and charters, the results of which were at the satisfactory
level. The Audit Committee’s performance was effective and in
compliance with the prescribed charters, the results of which
have been reported to the Company’s Board of Directors.

6.Consideration for selection of, nomination of and
proposal for compensation of the auditors of 2014/2015 for
presentation to the Board of Directors to further request for
approval from the 2013 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, for which
the Audit Committee has considered the results of performance,
independence and suitability of remuneration, and deems as
proper to appoint Mr. Somkid Tiatrakul, certified public accountant
No. 2785 and/or Mr. Teerasak Chuasrisakul, certified public
accountant No. 6624 of Grant Thornton Co., Ltd. as the
Company’s auditors of 2014/2015 with the remuneration fixed
at Baht 1,650,000, on which the Audit Committee is of the
following opinions regarding such nomination of auditors:

« In order to comply with the regulations of the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission regarding the provision
requiring the listed company to rotate an auditor who affixes his/
her signature certifying financial statements every 5 accounting
years, in the accounting year of 2014/2015, if Mr. Somkid
Tiatrakul, the auditor, is appointed as auditor, it will be his second
consecutive year and if Mr. Teerasak Chuasrisakul, the auditor,
is appointed as auditor, it will be his first year.

» Such auditors have no relationship with the Company or
its subsidiaries.

« As the management is of the opinion that standards of an
audit firm are essential, only qualifications and remuneration of
audit firms having the same level of standards were then proposed
to the committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has
considered and is of the view that the remuneration of
nominated auditors is at the reasonable rate compared to
proposals of other auditors.

« The auditors are experienced and specialized in auditing.
Previously, the auditors have performed works with knowledge
and capabilities in their profession; have provided advices in
relation to internal control systems and risks; and have been
independent in their performance.
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In summary, the Audit Committee is of the opinion that the
Company has correct financial and operation reports; has
appropriate and effective internal control systems, internal audit
and risk management; has complied with laws, regulations and
obligations; has correctly disclosed related matters; and has
sufficiently, transparently and reliably operated its businesses in
conformity with the good corporate governance system.

a/?z%

( Mr. Manu Leopairote )
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR YEAR 2013/2014

The Board of Directors is responsible for the financial statements
of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited and the
financial information reflected in the annual report. Such financial
statement was prepared according to the generally accepted
accounting standards in Thailand by choosing to use appropriate
and consistently-complied accounting policies and carefully
exercising the Best discretion for the preparation as well as
having adequate disclosures of essential information in the notes
to the financial statements.

An effective system of internal control has been provided by
the Board of Directors to ensure accuracy and completeness
of the accounting information records The financial statements
of the Company and subsidiary company have been audited by
the auditors of Grant Thornton Ltd. For the audit, the Board of
Directors provided the auditors with information and documents
so that the auditor can perform an audit and give an opinion
according to the accounting standards The auditor’'s comments
are reflected in the auditor’s report shown in the annual report.

In this regard, we also appointed the scrutiny committee,
comprising independent directors as experts having all
qualifications in accordance with provisions of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, who are responsible for the quality of financial reports,
the internal control system and opinions of the scrutiny committee
in this matter as reflected in the scrutiny committee’s report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the overall
Company’s internal control system is satisfactory and can
reasonably assure us that the financial statements of the
Company and subsidiary company for the fiscal year 2013/2014
ended on June 30, 2014 are reliable as the generally accepted
accounting standards and other laws and regulations are
complied with.

%

(Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul)
The President



unnaniiwaus:fvgLsouNa:s1vN1SS:HI VAU
- MUTUAL INTEREST PERSONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

sensAuuSENadag ANMNFNRUTIEHINUSHNY LA USEN N8
Transactions with Related Companies Relationship SIAM and Related Company
~ I - o . ”
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9 20 a s 1
83 UIneag
5 Subsidiaries Companies
> o)
e o a < a W v ov 1 A - o o o
223 yan. ﬁ%LQi@ﬁum@%LWﬁ%Lm@ WILAUA 10,177.72 | 11,919.23 munumﬂmvl,immwu%%a UNA. FENFRADULADS | 100% | WeTude AMUUNNA
§§e- Sri Chareon International Co., Ltd. Sales and service Income FIAPNAANAITINAU LT ULLUA Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
o% Cost plus margin or agreed | Siam Steel International o £ o
g3, orice Pl WegIANa AMUUNNA
EES ' Mr.Surasak Kunanantakul
<% [ a [ o I a I 9
5§ mm@]qﬂu/aaﬂiﬂmuua: 115.23 67.72 é’unumnm%mmwu NENAMIUUNNA -
g2 Talddu Cost plus margin Kunanantakul Group

Sales of raw materials/factory
supplies and others

e e 24.00 24.00 | 31AOHAANRITINAT
Rental revenue Agreed price
X A v o o= a ' )
BOAUAIR IR 1,293.55 0.00 | :1ANUNANAITINNY
Purchases of finished goods Agreed price
van. asulaayszdueaiuduuua |unadud 5,520.56 |  3,920.69 | funuuinmladiwinuvie | UNa. aonafadumed | 51% |weTude AONUUNNA
Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd. | Sales and service Income FIAAINAANAITIND U LATULUE Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
Cost plus margin or agreed | Siam Steel International o & o
) WBFIFANG AUUNNA
price Plc. 9 ) q
; Mr.Surasak Kunanantakul
1einndu/iaglaseiuuaz | 11,001.73 | 13,885.11 |Gunuuinilsdiwiia [ nauaantiunna - ~
Nelaan Cost plus margin Kunanantakul Group WITHMNWS WU
. Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee
anlgaglunmaafiuewuazen 60.00 0.00 | fuvmuanm ladaninnmae .
oA 3 .:.' L e WEFINE AUUNNA
THanadu FIAANNNANAITINNY : : |
" ) ) Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul
Administrative expenses and Cost plus margin or agreed
other expenses price WIANITE AONUUNNA

Mr.Sittichai Kunanantakul
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> Fau3En 318019 112557/2014 |?J2556/2013 wlaynansiivuasian Jagazn1Inaviu NITNAITTINAY
§"_§: Company Name Transaction #uwm (Thousant Baht) The Policy pricing % Holding Share Directorship
§§ van. seNafa lad IWRUA 72.00 0.00 | funuianrilsmmnavia (Una. aouafadunes | 51% u’lmpﬁﬂé aonTuNna
EE Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd. Sales and service Income FIONAGANAITINAY | LUTULUA Mr.Surasak Kunanantakul
B2 Cost plus margin or agreed | Siam Steel International _
H orice Plc. WNWNINT NN ULLE?
DE . Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee
ézé mwaggqﬁu/ﬁ’aqiﬁmuuax 1.48 0.00 éiuv;umﬂﬁﬂ"l,iaf’hw,ﬁu naNaaNTUNNA - wnagawa Aontunna
2 g; elddu . Cost plus margin Kunanantakul Group Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul
25 Sales of raw materials/factory
53 supplies and others
g ,
eldaa 145.25 0.00 | 1MAHAANRITINAY
Rental revenue Agreed price
UIHNTIN
Associated Companies .
van. agulaeyszada 2IBRUM 286.45 326.79| fiuyuuanmlssiuiinrie| UNA. aUNAANDWABT | 40% |waTude AnNTunNa
Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. Sales and service Income NANMNAANRITINAY | LUTULUR Mr. Wanchai ~ Kunanantakul
Cost plus margin or agreed| Siam Steel International o £ o
orice Plo. WEgIANa AINTUNNA
. Mr.Surasak Kunanantakul
meTngdu/iaqlsseiunas | 1571536 | 16,853.44 [dunuuinilsdiwdn | nauaansiunna ) .
Talddu Cost plus margin Kunanantakul Group wIgIna AEuunna
Sales of raw materials/factory Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul
supplies and others
el@e 9,315.00 1,552.50 | 1ANANNANRITINAY
Rental revenue Agreed price
%ai’@q@u 59.42 262.13 | Gunuunmladauiu
Purchases of raw materials RIDTIMANNNANNITIN
%
Cost plus margin or
agreed price
%aauﬁﬂd’wﬁa;;ﬂ 32,352.81 | 46,741.24 | IANOHNANRITINAY
Purchases of finished goods Agreed price

e e —
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Py FauIEN 18013 112557/2014 |112556/2013 | ulauian1sniuuasian Jagazn1Inaviu ATINNNTIINNY
[
3 e : o H i~ o, i i i
%; Company Name Transaction #uwm (Thousant Baht) The Policy pricing 7o Holding Share Directorship
(o)
—_z '
32 |unaguduinamdnanu 2IURUA 136.97 414.04 | Sunuminilsdinvia | uua. aouafadwead  [22.76% wiaTude ANTUNNA
3o . . . 1 o L .
2z Siam Steel Service Center Plc. Sales and service Income FINHAANNITINAY | LU ULUE Mr. Wanchai  Kunanantakul
B o Cost plus margin or agreed | Siam Steel International o £ o
25 . UIBFIFNG AUUNNA
gz price Plc. 9 ) a
ot Mr.Surasak Kunanantakul
S v a o % o | a ] o
32 ¥ 9 o
oE! mggamq@u/aﬁ@lmmmmnm 35.22 23.68 munuuaﬂmvl,iafnumu NQNAMIUUNNA 8.48% | 4190575 AN
2z 150u Cost plus margin Kunanantakul Group Mrs.Orachorn qunanant;kul
— . ’
%g Sales of raw materials/factory .
=T supplies and others WINUNTWT NANUSLE
¥ . 5 i Lo Mrs. Naphaporn Hoonthanasevee
TINYAY 439.84 | 12,801.47 @unumﬂmvl,?mumu o
Purchases of raw materials NIDTMMHNANAITIN WIgINa Auunne
i Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul
Cost plus margin or WEANS e ﬂm’,{mﬂqa
agreed price Mr.Sittichai Kunanantakul
aldanglunsdniineunazean 304.62 502.22 | funuaniilsaunamia
Tdanadn NAPIHNANRITINA
Administrative expenses and Cost plus margin or agreed
other expenses price
e A4 v
UIBNNLNEIVDY
Related Companies
yan. gildradia Unity Service Co., Ltd. | 18 innau/ianlssnuuazineg 1,833.57 | 2,490.35 | funuuinilsd@imuin | nauaaniunna 99.50%| w18 St ADNTUNNA
1@au Cost plus margin Kunanantakul Group Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
Sales of raw materials/factory WeEsEn a’ ATUNNG
supplies and others q ) q
Mr.Surasak Kunanantakul
Alfaalumsdniiunuuaze | 12,985.50 | 12,874.57 | funuuaniilsdunamie
IHansdn TNAAIHNANRITINA
Administrative expenses and Cost plus margin or agreed
other expenses price
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Fauswn 18019 112557/2014 |?J2556/2013 wlaugn1sinuasIan Sasaznmsnaviu NITNNIITINAY
Company Name Transaction #uwm (Thousant Baht) The Policy pricing % Holding Share Directorship
van. Waslufin (Waznelng) 2WRUM 42.14 128.96 | funuuanmlsshuinmio | uxa. aeuadadwead | 5% |waiude AnNTuNNa
Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Sales and service Income AAHNANRITINA LA Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
Cost plus margin or agreed | Siam Steel International
price . Plc.
18I0 AL/ a9 lIeULaz 2,449.49 | 2,152.74 | funuuinmlsdiwiu
1Hau Cost plus margin
Sales of raw materials/factory
supplies and others .
e ldaan 13,929.30 | 13,708.20 [ 0@ HAANAITINGY
Rental revenue Agreed price .
%a’a’mqﬁu 6,486.61 |  7,541.45 | funuinniilsdmuinmie
Purchases of raw materials NAAIHNANRITINA
Cost plus margin or agreed
price
van. wiwlsila dla logdu PBRUM 0.00 322.80 | funuuanrilsdmwnarie [uNa. aowafaduned | 5% |weudy ANTuNNa
(Usznelne) Sales and service Income IOANAANNITINY | LUTULUS Mr. Wanchai ~ Kunanantakul
Panasonic Eco Solutions Steel Cost plus margin or agreed | Siam Steel International
(Thailand) Co., Ltd. price Plc.
218300 AL/ THALT9ULAZ T 9.49 15.27 | funuuanmlsdauiig
16u Cost plus margin
Sales of raw materials/factory
supplies and others
yan. agnslawe PIBFUA 224.17 124.98 | funuianmlsshuiamvie | Una. aenuafadunad  (0.0004% -
Siam Chitose Co., Ltd. Sales and service Income FTIANNANAITINAY | LUTULUS
Cost plus margin or agreed | Siam Steel International
price Plc.
18I0 AD/ a9 lIeeHLaz 3,874.67 | 11,096.76 | funuuaninlsdauliu
1&du Cost plus margin
Sales of raw materials/factory
supplies and others
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- Fau3En 318019 112557/2014 |?J2556/2013 wlaynanisiivuasian Jagazn1Inaviu NITNATTINAY
5",’-%2 Company Name Transaction WL (Thousant Baht) The Policy pricing % Holding Share Directorship
g2 ¥ o A Y w2
=5 WINOAY 6,775.83 2,664.49 mu“qumﬂmvlﬁmw,wwm
é?g Purchases of raw materials NAAHNANRITIN
223 Cost plus margin or agreed
é:%«- price
%% %aauﬁﬂai’u‘%ﬂgﬂ 83,586.30 | 127,390.43 | 1ANMNNANAITINA
k! = Purchases of finished goods Agreed price
<z ” .
53 yan. aan-Aefan PIUFUA 21,229.57 | 27,752.21 ﬁunumﬂﬁﬂ"lﬁdamﬂw%a - - |wetugy AnNTUNNA
82 Eumes (umﬁ“nam) Sales and service Income NAANAANRITINAY Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
Lucky-Kingdom Center (Nakorn- Cost plus margin or agreed
ratchasima) Co., Ltd. price .
28 TANAU/THATINUUAZ T 168.44 65.98 | GunuunladuLin
1dau Cost plus margin
Sales of raw materials/factory
supplies and others
van. San-aedenifunas (Fodwsl) | 2nedudn 21,029.47 | 20,387.86 %unumnfj’ﬂsdamﬁm‘%a - - [ wedudy anntunna
Lucky-Kingdom Center (Chiangmai) |Sales and service Income NAPIHNANRITINA Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
Co., Ltd. Cost plus margin or agreed
price .
e InnAL/IaglaenuLa e 142.04 63.82 | fuvnuunm s uiy
16@ou Cost plus margin
Sales of raw materials/factory
supplies and others
van. gilausalawiin 1LFUA 375.04 472.90 | Fuvmunilsdmuiavia | nauanntiunng 1.72%| wier Iude ADNTUNNA
Union Autoparts Manufacturing Co., |Sales and service Income AN AANRITINAY Kunanantakul Group Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul
Ltd. Cost plus margin or agreed a aw o
price WaAN5TY AINUUNNA
, Mr.Sittichai Kunanantakul
218300 AL/TRAlT9ULAZ I 0.18 1.05 | funuuanilad@imiy
18au Cost plus margin
Sales of raw materials/factory
supplies and others ( w
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. - S . . ) )
Company Name Transaction Wuun (Thousant Baht) The Policy pricing %o Holding Share Directorship
van. dlalnz(Usznelna) VIURUA 49,871.92 | 52,904.08 | fuvmianmlssiwinuvize - Ataviuniuiu
Hirokoh (Thailand) Ltd. Sales and service Income ANANAANRITINAY Same shareholder
Cost plus margin or agreed
price .
21830 AL/ A9 lT09ULAZ I 2,203.57 539.61 | fuvnuuanmlssuwia

1#7u
Sales of raw materials/factory
sypplies and others

Cost plus margin

TaINOAU 29.03 981.08 | dunuuniilsduiinmia

Purchases of raw materials AANAANRITINAU
Cost plus margin or agreed

Ny price

FaaumdnTag 7,167.02 0.00 | IIANNAANAITINGY

Purchases of finished goods Agreed price ,

abdanglunisaiiuauazan 409.47 | 1,018.00 | Funuianrilsduamia

THanadu FIAANHAANNITINY

Administrative expenses and Cost plus margin or agreed

other expenses price

AMFING ADNTUNNAURZAMTND alfaelumedniunuuaze | 10,150.00 | 17,400.00 | Funuuanilsaiunamia - NITNNTTINAU

AONUUNNA
Mr.Surapol and Mr.Sittichai
Kunanantakul

T du
Administrative expenses and
other expenses

NAPIHNANRITINA
Cost plus margin or agreed
price

Directorship
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION FOR

2013/2014 AND 2012/2013 SIAM STEEL
NANTTA AW FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
(W28 1 WuUIN) (Unit : thousand baht)

maasuutas

2556/2557 * | 2555/2556 * (%azlaz)
2013/2014 * | 2012/2013 * | Change (%)
eldsinanmseieuwazuinig Total revenues from sales & services 2,141,922 3,558,815 -39.81
imvl,éiﬁlu Other income 90,724 51,888 74.85
s lszasuSEnaneuisanlage Equity in net income 90,322 92,110 -1.94
of associated companies
él’u"qumﬂ Total costs 1,831,607 2,948,850 -37.89
anldanglunseuazusnig Selling & administrative expenses 549,529 713,876 -23.02
ANTALTENNTUATIIAUNNTDY Compensation for defect products 189,067 - -
AUNUNIINIEY Financial costs 4,207 2,908 44.67
misuld Income tax (42,140) (6,412) 557.21
duléiideiilaiaglugnamunslusidnges  Non - controlling interests 18,340 34,260 -46.47
in subsidiaries
ﬁﬁli%uéllu Gross profit 310,315 609,965 -49.13
s (1anu) naudununinatu Profit (Loss) before financial costs, (247,235) 40,087 -716.75
uaznBRule and income tax

finls (21anw) qnd Net profit (loss) (227,642) 9,331 -2633.33
fils (manw) daviu (un) Profit (Loss) per share (Baht/Share) (0.38) 0.02 -2633.33

elATINANNNTVBBAZLSNNG
Total revenue from sales & services

&uun Million Baht

WwMIRUN - seuszeznadyd fe nsngiaw - dgwen
Consolidated Financial Statement - The fiscal year is July - June

&1 Million Baht

mls (1enw) and
Net profit (loss) (Consolidated)

5,000 5,000
4,479
4,000 4,000
3,559
3,000 3,000
2,142
2,000 2,000
1,000 1,000 . 346
(228)
0 0
2556/2557 2555/2556 2554/2555 2556/2557 2555/2556 2554/2555
2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012
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Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

For the Year Ended 2013/2014, the consolidated financial
statements of the Company’s total revenues amounted to Baht
2,142 million, decreased by Baht 1,417 million or 40 percent
from the previous year. This was mainly resulted from the export
sales and services of “Lucky” Hi-tech Building System were
decreased. However, the Company has action plans of human
resources development in marketing and production, as well as
design and development of new products to response to
customer’s needs and to increase sales volume with a focus on
development and enhancement of furniture products, thus,
revenues should be increased.

Total Revenues

The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
total revenues in 2013/2014 was Baht 2,142 million, decreased
by Baht 1,417 million or 40 percent from the previous year. This
was mainly resulted from the decrease of export sales and
services of special project of “Lucky” Hi-tech Building System
while the total revenues in this year are as the following ;

- Domestic sales and services of furniture and “Lucky”
Hi-tech Building System amounted to Baht 1,961 million,
decreased by Baht 380 million or 16 percent from last year.This
was mainly due to the decrease of sales of furniture from the
sales agents of the company, and the decrease of sales of
furniture from one subsidiary of the company.There is none of
domestic revenues from construction services this year, while
last year’'s revenue from construction services was Baht 66
million from one construction service.

- Export sales and services of furniture and “Lucky”
Hi-tech Building System amounted to Baht 181 million,
decreased by Baht 1,037 million or 85 percent. This was due to
the decrease of export sales and services of special project of
“Lucky” Hi-tech Building System.

Other Income

The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
other income in 2013/2014 was Baht 91 million, increased by
Baht 39 million or 75 percent from the previous year. Most of
them were increased in profit of the foreign exchange rate.
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SIAM STEEL

Cost of Sales and Expenses

The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
total cost of sales in 2013/2014 was Baht 1,832 million, decreased
by Baht 1,117 million or 38 percent from the previous year. This
was mainly decreased in total revenues, resulted to total cost of
sales decrease. For total cost of sales rate of total revenues in
2013/2014 and 2012/2013 were 86 percent and 83 percent
respectively. This was mainly increased in total cost of sales rate
due to the higher wage rate, the transportation expenses, the
product development and quality inspection expenses, and the
increase in fixed cost rate resulted from the burden fixed cost
amount while the total revenues decreased.

- The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
selling and administrative expenses in 2013/2014 was Baht 549
million, decreased by Baht 165 million or 23 percent from the
previous year. This was resulted from a decrease in sales. The
selling and administrative expenses rate of total revenues in the
year 2013/2014 and 2012/2013 were 26 percent and 20 percent
respectively. The ratio of selling and administrative expenses
rate increased, resulted from the first quarter of this year, the
Company has transferred Bangna factory overhead expenses
partially from the cost of sales to be administrative expenses,
resulted from there was no production, bad debt and doubtful
accounts from account receivable of customer in Australia for
prefabricated buildings from 3 customers of special projects. As
well as the higher administrative expenses from fixed
administrative cost, while total revenue decreased.

- The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
compensation in product defects was Baht 189 million, resulting
from the shipments of prefabricated buildings exported to our
3 Australian customers. Later the customers have notified to
the company about the product defects and claim for the
compensation. After the negotiation with the customers, finally
the Company agreed to pay the compensation to the customers
amounted Baht 189 million being 5.13% of the revenues from
such customers.

- The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
corporate income tax in 2013/2014 were included current tax
expenses under the Revenue Code amounted to Baht 11 million
and deferred tax incomes amounted to Baht 53 million, net
deferred tax was recognized in incomes amounted to Baht 42
million. For the Year Ended 2012/2013 corporate income
tax included current tax expenses under the Revenue Code
amounted to Baht 21 million and deferred tax incomes amounted
to Baht 27 million, net deferred income tax was recognized in
incomes amounted to Baht 6 million.
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Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

Gross Profit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s
gross profit in 2013/2014 was Baht 310 million, decreased by
Baht 300 million or 49% from the previous year. The gross
profit ratio in 2013/2014 and 2012/2013 represented 14 and 17
respectively, as the decrease of gross profit from revenues
decreased but increased in total cost of sales rate from the
increase of the wage rate, the transportation expenses, the
product development and quality control expenses, and the
increase in fixed cost rate resulted from the burden fixed cost
amount while the total revenues decreased, resulted to higher
fixed cost rate.

Net Profit (Loss)

The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s net
loss in 2013/2014 was Baht 228 million, net profit in 2012/2013
was Baht 9 million, decreased by Baht 237 million or 2,633
percent from the previous year resulting from the decrease in
revenues, and in 2013/2014 the Company’s compensation in
product defects was Baht 189 million, resulting from the defects
of prefabricated buildings exported to our 3 international

customers in Australia, which the Company has completely
shipped to our international customers with recognized in net
deferred revenues since the accounting period 2009/2010 to
2012/2013. Afterward, in the second quarter 2013/2014 those
3 customers have claimed to the company about the product
defects and asking for the compensation. After the negotiation
with the customers, finally the Company is required to pay the
compensation to those customers amounted Baht 189 million
being 5.13% of the revenues from such customers with
recognized in net deferred revenues since the accounting period
2009/2010 to 2012/2013. Those international customers are not
related to the Company. However, the Company is aware and
emphasizes such problem on the quality control in every
process of the manufacturing in order to avoid such problem.
And the increase in loss from the previous year, partly resulted
from the Company has made depletion of bad debt and made
provision for doubtful debts of account receivable, Australia,
3 customers from special project of prefabricated building for the
amount of Baht 58 million. For the net profit (loss) 2013/2014
and 2012/2013 were net loss 11 and net profit 0.3 respectively.
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION FOR 2013/2014

AND 2012/2013 SRMISIEEE
g’mzmiﬁm FINANCIAL POSITION
(W8l : WiLN) (Unit : thousand baht)
madasuuda
2556/2557 * 2555/2556 * (%azlaz)
2013/2014 * | 2012/2013 * Change (%)
funSndsan Total assets 2,911,461 3,404,933 -14.49
Wﬁau‘s’m Total liabilities 381,079 669,016 -43.04
druvavtadu Shareholders’ equity 2,530,382 2,735,917 -7.51
3%%%’?15%31%581%@‘6%%@%%&%58% (111) Current ratio (times) 3.35 2.74 22.26
auﬂ%fwilrmg]uﬁﬂuﬁwia%ﬁaumﬂuﬁw (,v11)  Quick ratio (times) 2.19 1.88 16.49
mwmmm‘l,umiﬁhmamﬁ/ﬂ (1911) Interest coverage ratio (times) (63.13) 2.00 -3,256.50
wﬁau@iadaumaaé’gﬁaﬁu (t91n) Debt-Equity ratio (times) 0.15 0.24 -37.50
* JUMIRUTIN - 39UZ8TATYT AD NINGIAN - Ngwew
* Consolidated Financial Statement - The fiscal year is July - June
funswdsan nildusan CRIRTENALP

Total Assets
& uu1n Million Baht

5,000

4,000 3700

3,405
3,000

2,911
2,000

1,000

0
2556/2557
2013/2014

2555/2556
2012/2013

2554/2555
2011/2012

Total liabilities

& uu1n Million Baht

Shareholders’ eauity

&1uun Million Baht

5,000 5,000
4,000 4,000
3,000 3,000
2,000 2,000
1,000 895 1,000
381 669
0 0
2556/2557 2555/2556 2554/2555
2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012

2,805
2,530 2,736

2556/2557
2013/2014

2555/2556
2012/2013

2554/2555
2011/2012
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ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Assets

As at June 30, 2014, the consolidated financial statements
of the Company had total assets of Baht 2,911 million, decreased
by Baht 494 million or 15 percent from June 30, 2013. This was
mainly due to the decrease in cash, trade accounts receivable,
inventory and retention receivables

As at June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013 the total assets of
the consolidated financial statement of the Company were
comprised of the following items;

- Cash and cash equivalents were 12 percent and 13 percent
respectively.

- Trade accounts receivable were 15 percentand 20 percent
respectively.

- Inventories were 13 percent and 15 percent respectively.

- Other current assets were 1 percent and 1 percent
respectively.

- Investment in the associated companies and other
companies were 25 percent and 18 percent respectively.

- Property, plant and equipment were 26 percent and 23
percent respectively.

- Other non-current assets were 8 percent and 10 percent
respectively.

- Cash and cash equivalents as at June 30, 2014 was Baht
333 million which decreased by Baht 118 million from June 30,
2014. This was mainly due to net cash provided for operating
activities resulted from loss.

- Trade accounts receivable as at June 30, 2014 was Baht
450 million, decreased by Baht 248 million were foreign trade
receivable of prefabricated buildings from special projects
decreased. Trade accounts receivable less than 3 months at 55
percent, and trade accounts receivable over 3 months at 28
percent. However, trade accounts receivable by the Company,
subsidiaries and its joint ventures have been followed closely
the collectors. Some debtors that have been in the process of
debt collection would be considered allowance for doubtful
accounts. Thus, as at June 30, 2014 the allowance for doubtful
accounts was Baht 48 million, who is one of the account
receivable from Australia for prefabricated buildings from special
projects for Baht 43 million and other for Baht 5 million,
subsidiaries and its joint ventures considered that it was
sufficient. For the receivable turnover times were 3.73 as at June
30, 2014 and 5.13 as at June 30, 2013 and account receivable
days were 98 days as at June 30, 2014, and 71 days as at June
30, 2013. The account receivable days was decreased, trade
accounts receivable was increased due to as at June 30, 2014,
the export sales of “LUCKY” Hitech Building from special project
was decreased, and also there was a number of outstanding
trade receivables.

- Inventories as at June 30, 2014 were Baht 390 million,
decreased by Baht 113 million or 22 percent. This was mainly
due to the decrease in special project of the export sales and
services. The inventory turnover was 4.10 as at June 30, 2014
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SIAM STEEL

and 5.55 as at June 30, 2013. This was decreased from the
previous year, resulted to total cost of sale decrease from a
decrease in sales.

- Investments as at June 30, 2014 were Baht 725 million,
increased by Baht 103 million or 17 percent. This was mainly
due to the increase in equity in net income of one associated
company, as the result and the decrease of provision in value
investments in shares of one related companies, resulted value
investments increased. The company has invested in shares of
one associated company for the amount of 1.12 million shares
equivalent to Baht 60.2 million because the company has dividend
such as the shares held in this associated company existing
during the past years, moreover the performance and potential
of business of the company was considered that the investment
will benefit to the company in future to increase the income from
dividend increased.

- Property, plant and equipment - net as at June 30, 2014
was Baht 750 million, decreased by Baht 17 million or 2 percent
from June 30, 2013. This was mainly due to the depreciation of
plant and equipment for the period.

- Other non-current assets as at June 30, 2014 was Baht
241 million, decreased by Baht 101 million or 30 percent from
June 30, 2013. This was mainly due to the decrease in retentions
receivable from the export customers of special project of “Lucky”
Hi-tech Building System.

As at June 30, 2014, the consolidated financial statements
of the Company had total liabilities of Baht 381 million, decreased
by Baht 288 million or 43 percent from June 30, 2013. This was
mainly due to an decrease in trade accounts payable as at June
30, 2014, which total of Baht 184 million, decreased by Baht 236
million, due to the decrease in sales and services, thus, the
purchase was decreased accordingly.

For the short-term loans from financial institution were
increased Baht 52 million as at June 30, 2014, the Trust Receipts
amounted Baht 4 million used for purchase raw material and
Promissory Notes amounted Baht 50 million for current operation.

Shareholders’ equity

As at June 30, 2014, the consolidated financial statements
of the Company had the shareholders’ equity of Baht 2,530
million while as at June 30, 2013 was Baht 2,736 million,
decreased by Baht 206 million or 8 percent. This was resulted
from this year the consolidated financial statements of the
Company had net loss amounted Baht 228 million, profit with
non-controlling interests in subsidiaries Baht 19 million,
actuarial gains Baht 13 million and dividend payment of
subsidiary company Baht 10 million.

Book value as at June 30,2014 was Baht 4.27 per share,
while as at June 30, 2013 was Baht 4.61 per share, decreased
by baht 0.35 per share or 8 percent from the previous year.
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LIQUIDITY AND KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Liquidity of the consolidated financial statement of the
Company as at June 30, 2014 had balance cash and cash
equivalents at the end of period was Baht 333 million while as
at June 30, 2013 was Baht 451 million, cash flow decreased by
Baht 118 million, this was mainly due to :-

- Cash flows from operating activities decreased by Baht
119 million, due to the operation loss increased and trade
accounts payable.

- Cash flows from investing activities decreased by Baht 42
million, most used in the investment of the ordinary shares in
subsidiary company by Baht 60.2 million.

- Cash flows from financing activities increased by Baht 43
million, increased in short-term loans from financial institutions
by Baht 52 million and decreased from dividend paid to
non-controlling interest by subsidiary by Baht 10 million.

For the current ratio as at June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2014
were 2.74 and 3.35 respectively, the quick ratio as at June 30,
2013 and June 30, 2014 were 1.88 and 2.19 respectively. It was
showing that the Company subsidiaries and its joint ventures
had good liquidity assets.

The Company, subsidiaries and its joint ventures had good
capacity to pay liabilities. The debt ratios as at June 30, 2013
and June 30, 2014 were 0.24 and 0.15 respectively.
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FINANCIAL STATISTICS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

SIAM STEEL

(28 : NULN)
( Unit : thousand baht)

2556/2557 *| 2555/2556 *| 2554/2555 *
2013/2014 *| 2012/2013 *| 2011/2012 *
NANIIA LI 1% OPERATING RESULTS
Meldnnmsnsuazmslduing - and Sales & services - net 2,141,922| 3,492,615| 4,284,564
aldanmslfusnssumannaa3ie Revenues from construction work = 66,200 194,811
saldsinannismenazusnng Total revenues from sales & services 2,141,922| 3,558,815| 4,479,375
él’u"qumﬂ Total costs 1,831,607 2,948,850 3,542,446
anldane Total expenses 738,596 713,876 682,807
i’]al‘l@]’ﬁlu Other income 90,724 51,888 161,773
fls (1anu) naudwudnilsvaswisnian Income (loss) before equity in net income of (837,557) (52,023) 415,895
audsdmlads Gununaiu associated companies,financial costs
wazaEdnle and income tax
é\'u"qumﬂmiﬁu Financial costs 4,207 2,908 2,765
s (e nausuladalumlsvanidsmmn Profit (loss) before equity in net income (341,764) (54,931) 413,130
Lta::i'mmiﬁlu of associated companies & others
dwldidaluilsvas3gnm - and Equity in net income of associated companies 90,322 92,110 80,595
mlsnaundtiule wazdulaida Profit before income tax and non - controlling (251,442) 37,179 493,725
ﬁ‘lu'ag"luémwmuqu’luu‘%ﬁ’miaﬂ interests in subsidiaries
MaEsule Income tax (42,140) (6,412) 113,819
d’suvl,é't?mﬁivl,aiagﬂué’wmamuqﬂuu‘%ﬁwﬂasJ Non - controlling interests in subsidiaries 18,340 34,260 33,593
mls (9Nw) gnd NET PROFIT (LOSS) (227,642) 9,331 346,313
s (1anu) dasiu (un) Profit (Loss) per share (Baht) (0.38) 0.02 0.58
Had’nﬁmﬂ% (um/¥in) Par value (Baht/Share) 1 1 1
aanduifunallszniaans (Un/¥u) Dividend per share (Baht/Share) = - 0.19
FIUSNIITU FINANCIAL POSITIONS
auﬂwwﬁﬂquﬁﬂu Current assets 1,195,326 1,674,312 2,175,034
Fuasnuluudsniiisdasiuazmieasmu  Investment in related companies and unit trusts 725201  621,368| 580,776
ﬁau mmmazqﬂnﬁzﬁ, Property , plant and equipment 750,297 766,913 658,250
auﬂ%fw{l‘gu Other assets 240,637 342,340 285,874
Auniwdsan = wilduuazdiuzasfatiu Total assets = total liabilities 2,911,461| 3,404,933| 3,699,934
and shareholders’equity
%ﬁau'ﬁaﬂufiﬂu Current liabilities 356,632 612,444 837,701
witaulsinauon Non - current liabilities 24,447 56,572 57,216
ﬂﬁaui’m Total liabilities 381,079 669,016 894,917
auvavinaiu Shareholders’ equity 2,530,382| 2,735917| 2,805,017
?i’”lmuﬁu (131:%) Number of shares (Share) 593,125,849 593,125,849| 593,125,849
WasaNDYT (UMW) Book value (Baht/Share) 4.27 4.61 4.73
Ao Feport 3074 91
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(a8 : Nuu1n)
( Unit : thousand baht)

2556/2557 *| 2555/2556 *| 2554/2555 *

2013/2014 *| 2012/2013 *| 2011/2012 *
MINATNEADATIEIUNIINTIRY FINANCIAL RATIO ANALYSIS
dasdnIngnIwaaag LIQUIDITY RATIO
SeTE@UTUURLUILU(L) Current ratio (times) 3.35 2.74 2.60
dandudunungudsuia(ii) Quick ratio (times) 2.19 1.88 1.85
Cash Cycle (744) Cash Cycle days 127.43 74.26 72.89
dasamiaanuaiunsalunisvinnls PROFITABILITY RATIO
Farnlstudu (308a2) Gross profit margin (%) 14.49 17.14 20.92
danrils (1enu) and (Sesaz) Net profit (loss) (%) (10.63) 0.26 7.73
danmanauLnudasuYestiovu (auas) Return on equity (%) (8.65) 0.34 12.93
FaTHanauuNUAaAUNIWETIN (3a8az) Return on total assets (%) (7.07) 0.34 9.20
Samdrmanunasalunistszwil FINANCIAL POLICY RATIO
Famrauurenil (1) Debt ratio (times) 0.15 0.24 0.32
Fandmenuasnsngnoniiy (1917) Interest coverage ratio (times) (63.13) 2.00 167.41
dasamilszandnn EFFICIENCY RATIO
5mwmuﬁmmm§nwﬁ (1) Receivable turnover (times) 3.73 512 6.83
SuuTulumsiiunil () Account receivable days 98 71 53
é’mmguﬁﬁummﬁmﬁ (111) Payable turnover (times) 6.14 5.82 6.33
Sudulumsinetseni (Tn) Account payable days 59 63 58
dnTmyuleuIasFuiAuMa (1) Inventory turnover (times) 4.10 5.55 473
Fnuwiulun e uan (Tu) Inventory days 89 66 77
*wMIRunN - seuszaznandyd Ae nIngiaw - Aguwau
* Consolidated Financial Statement - The fiscal year is July - June

02 | e irmatana Pa Company Lo
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OTHERS FACTORS AFFECTING INVESTMENT DECISION

- LEGAL DISPUTES NONE
- COMMITMENT ON SHARE ISSUANCE
IN THE FUTURE NONE

INFORMATION CONCERNING DEBENTUTRES
OR PROMISSORY NOTES NONE

MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW
- SUBSEQUENT EVENT TO THE DATE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT NONE

- LEGAL DISPUTES

As at 30 June 2014, the Company and subsidiaries have
outstanding guarantees of approximately Baht 328.26 million
and Bath 3.44 million, respective which were issued by certain
local banks in respect of certain performance bonds required in
the normal course of business of the Company.

As at 30 June 2014, the Company had outstanding
commitments for the project work of the Company with major
contractor of Baht 48.03 million.

The Company has commitment for land and factory building
lease agreement with the Company’s director. This lease
agreement is for a period of three (3) years commencing 1
December 2011 with annual rental totalling Baht 17.40 million
for total areas of 32 rai 1 ngan. The Company has anoption to
renew the lease terms if required.

As at 30 June 2014, subsidiary company has various
operating lease agreement covering its office premises,
showroom, warehouse and related utility service and vehicles
for periods of 1-3 years,approximately Baht 10.66 million per annum.

During the year 2012, a contractor sued the Company as
joint defendant with other party for compensation totaling
approximately Baht 41.53 million, plus interest at the rate of 7.50
percent per annum from 24 March 2011 to the payment date.
On 6 July 2012, the Company submitted a counterclaim to such
contractor because the plaintiff was at fault by the delay and the
delivery of a defect and the Company has lien to hold the
payment. The default of the contract of the plaintiff affects
damage to the Company because it was fined by the customer
following the contract and modified the defect work by itself. The
Company, therefore, counterclaimed for the fine following the
contract of approximately Baht 22.72 million and the damage
from modifying the defect work approximately Baht 26.76 million,
plus interest at the rate of 7.50 percent per annum. Currently,
such case is in the process of waiting for the plaintiff submission
of alibi for the counterclaim. The Company believes that there
will be no damage from such case. The Company therefore, has
not set up any provision in its accounts.
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MUTUAL INTEREST PERSONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

- REASONS AND NECESSITY

OF THE TRANSACTIONS NONE

- COMMENTS OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OR
EXPERTS CONCERNING THE TRANSACTION The first
paragraph of notes item 6 in the report by the certified public
accountant is as follow :-

A portion of the Company’s assets, liabilities, revenues,
costs and expenses arose from transactions with related
companies which are related through common shareholding and/
or directorship. These financial statements reflected the effects
of significant transactions with related companies based on
market prices in the normal course of business, or based on the
basis mutually agreed to for transactions with non-comparative
market prices.

- COMMENTS OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS CONCERNING THE
COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMMITMENT
SPECIFIED IN THE REPORT ON SALES
OF SHARES AND THE DRAFT PROSPECTUS.

NONE



S19V1UYDVEAOUUIYISUDUYIC

SIAM STEEL

@ua dfadunas 13N annafadwaaiiuduuua e (NH1aw)

'
=

I G TIFOLILNTRUTINGYDY LSHN FUINAARDULADSIUTULUR 31NA (NHN1TW) LazUSEnedas uasian1sTandn G
Usznaudig JULAAIIIUEMIIUIIN 4 TUH 30 Agwieu 2557 uazsurlsmenuidaaasin suuaasmsildsuudasdinacdie

Y
4

WUIIN UASIUNTZUARIUAATIN ﬁm%fu?]éjuq@’mlﬁmﬁu LLawmﬁL%@;ﬁ;ﬂ%lﬂunan15ﬁ’tﬁﬁﬁﬁmvu,a:‘ﬂmsjm@;ﬁ'mﬁ'w] wazdIwian
1§ Asrasansumsinuanzass 139n auuafadwnodiuduuua iin (NAN2) FeUsznaudae JULAAITIUSNNTIIN 4 Sudi 30
finwien 2557 wazsumilsmanwdaiada \‘mLLa@]\iﬂ'ﬁLﬂ?{ﬂuLLﬂmdau"ua\i%5@1’?\2% LAZIUNTELR LS afm%fuﬂéuq@ﬁwﬁmﬁ’u LAy
%mam@;agﬂuiamﬁﬁ’mu%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ’cyuazﬁmamqﬁfaﬂé‘le

ANHTUANTDUVDIALIMIIABILNITY

HUSWn29u3n Lﬂu%’%’uﬁmaﬂumﬁ@ﬁwLLazﬁﬂLauaqumif&umdwﬁimagné’aﬂmwuﬁmsmmmmgﬂumiimmumﬂms
Ruaaslng LLE\]$°§‘Ua@]"ﬂa‘uLﬁﬁ?ﬁUﬂﬁiﬂluﬂNﬂ’]ﬂiwﬁl%U%ﬂ’]iﬂﬂ’]im’]’j’ﬁ’]Lﬁjul,ﬁlas[,ﬁa’]N’]595@1‘VT’N‘].Iﬂ’]iﬁwﬁlﬂi’]ﬁﬁl’lﬂﬂ’]il,l,a@\ﬁllm;lva
Aidasedaifiaasedumduaszady Lidnaziieanmamazaniadaianain

CRREHTDEL G ERDE B LI

fdudufiuAereulunmsuaasanuidudasumatudsnananramaanaseusasiwidy lagld fideuanasauans
eI IRaULIvasing G?jl\iﬁmu@sl,ﬁ%"lwﬁhﬂﬁﬁ’amwu%’aﬁmu@é’masimmim i'guﬁ\nwLl,ww,l,axﬂﬁﬁ'amum’maauLﬁalﬁ
VL@imw34L"'Tj'asfll’uaa'wammqa:uwm'wum’sﬁuﬂimmﬂmmamﬁasdaﬁ'*ﬁ’@@iaﬁaLﬁaﬁ\ié’mﬂumszﬁﬂﬁcy%%avm

a

mIasasaunszileemalfianuieiidn 9 weldldndemangumsseuliyinsiuimutuuazmalamsdaya

Tugunasu 3’%mmmaaauﬁLﬁaﬂi%fuaﬂ'ﬁ’maﬂﬁﬁwms’iaauﬁ’m% 6?}@53Nﬁ\ﬁmiﬂimﬁummLéﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂil,l,a@ﬁauaﬁ%’@w@iaéﬁa
Wia 39 duanszd A 109 UM Itu VLN’J"IQ iannMInaianzadaianain slumsﬂsumumwLammﬂan waauumjwmitm
msm‘uﬂNmaﬂ,uﬂmmmmﬂumia@mua mimLaumumiwuimmmmmuwmimmmww \WooanuuLIEmansasauiinans
ANAUANIUNITL Lvasﬂ,mwamqﬂs:mmummﬁmmmmumaﬂszemﬁwamaqmimuqumaﬂmawsww N19ATIARBUTINAING
Uimﬁumwmmxammu‘lﬁmﬁmiﬁ’mﬁﬁ%u’%mﬂ%ua:mwaumqauija\1'1Ji:mmmsmqﬁ’mﬁﬁﬁ'@ﬁﬂ%ﬂmégu%mi e

MU TABNTHNEUBIUNNTIRUIAE TN

Fwdudahmingumasseutitiwinlinunaniuismeuannanzan e lhihunasilumauaasenuiiuoasimd
ANALRU

FrwEndud sunstudenandiefulansguensiusInwesusEm aonuaRadumasLTuLLa 170 (HWN2U) LAZUTEN
dag uazAanisTIndn o Yui 30 HQwgu 2557 LATHAMIAUUIUTINLAZNTZLANUAATIN ém%fuﬂéuq@ﬁ’mﬁmﬁ’u LAZUEAN
FIULNIIIUANIZVDIUTEN aenuaRadwaeduuLLa AR (NATW) oh TuR 30 {8 2557 UAZHANIALHUULAZNITUE
Wuan ﬁm%fuﬂéuq@i’mﬁmﬁ’u Iﬂagﬂé}'aamNﬁﬂaﬂumszéwﬁ’@m34mmgmmsswmmmamsﬁma\‘ivlms;l

= 1

T uTaslnan

qummmmmaamww amm@aaumasmmmma e (vaju) LAZUSHNEDEWAZAANITIINAT LAZIUNITRUANIZUDY
1557 FeNaRaBuADSIUTULLA A0 (NPTU) T Fudi LLa“mmuﬂauamuw 30 dquwsu 2556 (ﬂau‘ﬂiuﬂiﬂ%u asyadaulae
w9guna lradatiug GmLﬂugaaumyﬂumummmmnuﬂumwlm GINVL@Lauaswmmmimqaaaua\nwn 28 FINNAN 2556 LAAS

= | P A a a Ao o A A 2 = =
anuwnadldidiionly swuansgUeNIRUTINLAZIUNMIRUANIZ LTI ot TUA 30 dquiau 2556 Fududiunilennsey
mMadudena eimaliudlslnimuildesuslilununawmadsenavsumsiuda 2 WashauaeIsudiey

EAPE AT
WgaNda 1Hensena
Haauiiyduayge
nzdiouaait 2785

NILNWHHIUAT
27 FINIAN 2557

eudszany 2557 95
Annual Report 2014




vulaQvYIuNISIou

USHN FENNaRasuaaIuTuLLa 100 (NH1T1) USENdas LazAan15IIN@n

SIAM STEEL EEPNIET RN Nnweu 2557 uaz 2556
(W38 1 un)
JUNIINUIIN JUNTNWANIZTDIUTEN
30 figuwian | 30 Agwiew 30 Hguien | 80 Hgwiew 30 dgwien 30 Hgwew
WUIELAG 2557 2556 2555 2557 2556 2555
(USudgelna)  (UJ3udgslng) (USudgdlna)  (U3udsslna)
Auniwd
Guniwdnyuiau
RusauazemMIigumEuean 5 333,077,863 450,931,317  860,303,271| 114,887,482 281,450,798 739,292,197
Qﬂﬁﬁm‘sﬁwmnmimﬂLLaz’lﬁ‘u%mi
- anéialy - and 7 425,490,358 667,040,376  624,855,335| 275,311,155 455,386,879 428,513,388
- Usinfiieadeeiu 6,7 22535214 29,814,341 21,851,757| 24,104,738 31,761,740 26,971,371
Qﬂﬁﬁmsﬁﬂmﬂmﬂﬁﬁ%mi%’ummn'aa%w
- UiimfiReadasiu - qnd 6,7 2,376,815 2,376,815 2,376,815 4,660,422 4,660,422 4,660,422
eldidslildFangs: - gnévialy - - 41528975 - - 41528975
dudauwide - and 8 390,225,448 502,501,789  559,858,671| 300,196,939 430,155,091 482,924,524
Qﬂﬁﬁuazﬁmwmmdw
- BsinfiReadeeiu 6 3,078,578 3,264,112 4,604,111 4,514,502 4,948,245 6,733,210
auw%fwémuﬁauéu 9 18,541,858 18,382,991 59,654,816| 13,785,341 13,808,397 54,140,182
MAUNINInyULIau 1,195,326,134 1,674,311,741 2,175,033,751| 787,460,579 1,222,171,572 1,784,764,269
dunindlainguiau
Guehnswnansisidesialunsly 10 324,585 184,356 460,625 = - -
gnwﬁﬁuﬂsxﬁuwamu 94,822.417 250,841,066 235,648,678 94,822,417 250,841,066 235,648,678
RHuaenu
- U3tingay - gnd 11 - - -| 82,399,300 32,399,300 22,199,300
- USENIIN 11 671,914,412 576,763,177  533,057,374| 162,627,400 102,427,400 102,427,400
- U3nau - and 11 53,287,486 44,604,589  47,718,903| 48,287,486 39,604,589 42,718,903
- fAMsTINd - gnd 11 - - - 16,000 16,000 16,000
Adu 013 uazgunanl - gnd 12 581,474,991 766,912,575  658,249,957| 566,695,400 757,550,096 648,468,233
Aunsnd Ll Fenfine - gns 13 168,821,755 - -| 168,821,755 - -
miyasuinsaiFoniu 1,603,061 3,983,353 7,232,025 - 2,097,729 5,821,840
MBEULEF o fiane 13,275,768 9,727,587 4,212,617 9,142,578 5,594,391 -
duninwdnmsduldsanadalind - and 14 100,267,612 46,788,522 19,092,206 111,821,564 57,203,295 31,877,765
ﬁuﬂ%’wﬂsimguﬁwﬁ'u - qnd 30,342,927 30,816,427  19,227,389| 19,520,417 20,051,043 11,131,630

swAunindlaingwiau

1,716,135,014

1,730,621,652

1,624,899,774

1,214,154,307

1,267,784,909

1,100,309,749

TINFUNSHE

2,911,461,148

3,404,933,393

3,699,933,525

1,951,614,886

2,489,956,481

2,885,074,018

a @ 1 P a &
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vulidaoFuMmsiou (do)

SN FEnNEfatuaauFuLUa 100 (1K) USEvdas LazAan1sIINan

o Sufi 30 {nwsu 2557 way 2556 SIAM STEEL
(W : 1)
JUNIINUIIN JUNTNBANIZVDIUTEN
30 dguwian 30 Agwiew 30 Agwien | 30 Agwien 30 Agwien 30 Hwew
2557 2556 2555 2557 2556 2555
AHIEULHAG (USudlgelna)  (USurlgslna) (USudgelnsl)  (USualgelng)
wﬁﬁmmsahmm@'ﬁaﬁu
ﬂﬁaumﬂuﬁﬂu
ﬁurﬁﬁuixm&gumﬂamﬁumiﬁu - gnd 15 53,460,579 1,076,629 - 53,460,579 1,076,629 -
Bwitnsdn - %ﬁn«ﬁﬂu 113,905,343 333,524,124 445,287,154 83,105,139 302,835,613 414,667,903
Ewiluazitunaseseanuitiiiieadesin 6 70,092,984 86,549,360 97,242,511 31,198,676 43,606,998 58,775,372
Ruiamihuasduiadnangnd
- anély 19,774,768 53,118,719 120,280,549 18,692,391 49,004,816 118,362,338
- Uiniiiendaeiu 6 5,034,825 5,034,825 3,095,400 5,034,825 5,034,825 3,095,400
madulddgans 2,615,110 1,373,725 17,235,475 - - 233,068
wﬁﬁuwgm“auéu 16 91,748,426 131,767,160 154,560,092 77,081,321 114,112,286 137,758,738
iwwi{aumguﬁﬂu 356,632,035 612,444,542  837,701,181| 268,572,931 515,671,167 732,892,819
wﬁauvlaimﬂuﬁﬂu
wfy@umum‘s:;dﬂﬁuﬁmﬁ'ﬁ_lwaﬂiﬂﬂ"ﬁﬂwﬁnmu 17 21,955,691 50,146,107 ~ 47,850,852 19,438,962 40,506,817 39,201,186
wﬁﬁuiaiwguﬁauéu 2,491,202 6,425,660 9,365,079 2,051,213 5,684,790 9,365,079
sauwﬁaulsimguﬁw 24,446,893 56,571,767 57,215,931 21,490,175 46,191,607 48,566,265
JIuwiian 381,078,928 669,016,309  894,917,112| 290,063,106 561,862,774 781,459,084
dmzavinaiu
NWFaUY - AUy gadviuaz 1 um
- nuaanziiou 593,125,849 #iu 593,125,849 593,125,849  593,125,849| 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849
- nuieuiiufisenuazsutisiudn
q 593,1;5,849 Wu 593,125,849 593,125,849  593,125,849| 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849
diuyaevin 72,403,683 72,403,683 72,403,683  72,403683 72,403,683 72,403,683
lsazan
- Ansraiiadnsaemungrang 18 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585
- d9lll@dnass 1,612,609,121 1,830,758,785 1,934,117,730| 936,709,663 1,203,251,590 1,378,772,817
IINAUBDIE NN UBDILTEN 2,337,451,288 2,555,600,902 2,658,959,847 | 1,661,551,780 1,928,093,707 2,103,614,934
dulideluidndasilioglusnnamugn 192,930,982 180,316,182 146,056,566 - - -
MudImvavinaRu 2,530,382,220 2,735,917,084 2,805,016,413| 1,661,551,780 1,928,093,707 2,103,614,934
unilauazdimvasifatiu 2,911,461,148 3,404,933,393 3,699,933,525| 1,951,614,886 2,489,956,481 2,885,074,018

a & 1 2 a &
ViN']ElL“ﬁ@!ﬂizﬂaﬂﬁﬂﬂq‘sk\iulﬂuajuﬂu\jﬂa\‘]\‘]ﬂﬂ']‘il\‘]uu
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vumiszianuiiaias

USENFUNFARDWADTIUTULUR I NA (NHNTY) LSENDY Wazian15IINAN

dwmIulaugaiui 30 dguau

SIAM STEEL .
(B8 : uIn)
SUNITNUIIN UM INUANIZVDILIEN
2557 2556 2557 2556
ANHLAG (U5u1lyelnsi) (UF1l5¢lnsi)
el
Maldnnmansuaznsliuing - and 2,141,921,890  3,492,614,971| 1,133571,842  2,315,563,223
Teldannslusnssumannaadie o 66,199,998 o 66,199,998
unele 2,141,921,890  3,558,814,969 | 1,133,571,842  2,381,763,221
dunu
FUNUIBUAZLINNT 1,831,607,352  2,888,551,997 | 1,011,207,647  1,944,483,380
Funumslduinmsiumannaaing - 60,298,092 - 60,298,092
TINGUNY 22 1,831,607,352  2,948,850,089| 1,011,207,647  2,004,781,472
lsdudu 310,314,538 609,964,880 122,364,195 376,981,749
ls (21991) ndasuaniUauiiuns
fgilazine 21,733,375 (26,411,505) 20,954,285 (28,435,511)
Nuiunadu 5,392,146 19,286,195 70,940,726 77,889,655
el 21 63,598,781 59,013,937 71,991,705 70,196,770
lsnaualdans 401,038,840 661,853,507 286,250,911 496,632,663
aldanalunisune (180,225,715)  (372,425,860) |  (179,373,831)  (371,412,652)
anldanglunsusnng (320,344,155)  (337,139,158)| (191,546,161)  (206,237,683)
ANTALTLINNTUATIFAUNNTD (189,067,209) -] (189,067,209) -
difonilaiazguuanilgy - and (67.641,599)  (1,197,342)|  (57,641599) (1,225815)
Tounauaiia (ALHD) NN UDIIUNINY 11 8,682,897 (3,114,314) 8,682,897 (3,005,948)
Tmalane 22 (738,595,781)  (713,876,674)| (608,945,903)  (581,882,098)
219NU ANNIIARHUITU (337,556,941) (52,023,167) (322,694,992) (85,249,435
dauuderinlsvasuiEnianenaisdulide - and 90,322,062 92,109,963 = -
il (1anu) AaudununenisiuuaznBiuld (247,234,879) 40,086,796 |  (322,694,992) (85,249,435)
Fununan I (4,206,902) (2,907,705) (3,695,693) (2,907,705)
il (manu) naumdiuld (251,441,781) 37,179,091 | (326,390,685) (88,157,140)
nadszlamsin@tuldannnanienienan 14 42,139,736 6,411,897 54,618,259 25,325,530
il (manu) gnidmivil (209,302,045) 43,590,988 |  (271,772,426) (62,831,610)
ﬁ'lvl,imm!mﬁmﬁﬁu :
ndusIeMsALianadseleatiniineu
aundanamaenandlsziude 17 13,567,881 - 5,230,499 -
Twmmls (219NW) WataSadnsudl (195,734,164) 43,590,988 | (266,541,927) (62,831,610)
nautieifurinls (aanu)
dauiua avi{DaviuvasUIEm (227,641,725) 9,330,672| (271,772,426) (62,831,610)
duléideluusndosilioglusnnamunx 18,339,680 34,260,316 - -
9N (209,302,045) 43,590,988 |  (271,772,426) (62,831,610)
nsudeifurnls (manu) aada
doufiuvesifiefuasith (218,149,664) 9,330,672| (266,541,927)  (62,831,610)
d’guvl,é’l,?laﬂuu%ﬁ’miaaﬁiaiagﬂuéwmamqu 22,415,500 34,260,316 = -
9N (195,734,164) 43,590,988 |  (266,541,927) (62,831,610)
il (1anu) daviu
il (anu) qw%d'mﬁ'l,ﬂmaqﬁﬁaﬁqwaw%ﬁw
(UmeaRu) (0.38) 0.02 (0.46) (0.11)
NnunaTyin Ladgnemin (Hiw) 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849

a R 1 d! a dv
14mﬂm@aniznamummmﬂumuﬂmmawummuu
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AN UTUNAVDILSENE DY

(W8 © )
dauvesiNaRUBRILTEN
laszan
, Faassiie suldEed
gul,n%auﬁ%luﬁ sawifiu 813090 sfl’\‘ivl,zivl,@i SEEE laiagluguna
RHIELA  SUTITTUAD Naa1ru NHANTEY (ﬂiﬂﬂ;ﬂﬂu) 3 AIUAN 3
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,913,106,952  2,637,949,069 145,174,053 2,783,123,122
- - - 21,010,778 21,010,778 882,513 21,893,291
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,934,117,730 2,658,959,847 146,056,566 2,805,016,413
- - - - - 9,800,000 9,800,000
- - - 9,330,672 9,330,672 34,260,316 43,590,988
- - - - - (9,800,700) (9,800,700)
- - - (112,689,617)  (112,689,617) - (112,689,617)
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,830,758,785  2,555,600,902 180,316,182 2,735,917,084
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,782,588,192  2,507,430,309 179,362,357 2,686,792,666
- - - 48,170,593 48,170,593 953,825 49,124,418
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,830,758,785 2,555,600,902 180,316,182 2,735,917,084
- - - (218,149,664)  (218,149,664)  22,415500  (195,734,164)
- - - - - (9,800,700) (9,800,700)
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,612,609,121 2,337,451,238 192,930,982 2,530,382,220
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vunaavmsidagundavlugougovdionu

UIHN RUNAARDULADTIUTULUR I0A (NI1TU) LIENLDE UaZ NaNITTINAN

a & 1 ] a &
‘WN'lf;lL“ﬂ@l'ﬂigﬂaﬂﬂﬂﬂqilﬂulﬂuaqu“ﬂuﬂ’ﬂaﬂﬂﬂﬂqil\iuu

SIAM STEEL e a4 (W28 : UIN)
fsUTAUFAIUN 30 Hguwian
- lsazan
8 . .
. NUTaUAUN LR RELN golalaanasy
Dﬁ: WG FUT9TUAD saniinyaeu AHNYUNE (JFuielng) EPLY
% gn LN BANIZTDILIEN
g%« HAAAYLVIAD T ’“a'uﬁ 1 nIn1axN 2555 - @l'mﬁml\ﬂuvlr’il,au 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,346,895,052 2,071,737,169
gi ﬂ%f‘uﬂ‘goNaazamla\amigﬂgﬂmmmﬂmmamiﬁwﬁ
% WAeafumBaulEsadatiyd 2 - - - 31,877,765 31,877,765
25 uaenunda o Sudl 1 nengran 2555 - Yugslusl 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,378,772,817  2,103,614,934
mMeanuwdaadadmiul - Ysudqdlna - - - (62,831,610) (62,831,610)
AU UNAVDILTEN 19 - - - (112,689,617) (112,689,617)
gaanawde o Jufl 30 Agwian 2566 - U3uulpdlnsl 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,203,251,590  1,928,093,707
goaAuWaD ] Tufl 1 nangan 2556 - aanmaeuliieu 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,146,048,295 1,870,890,412
ﬁ%fuﬁgﬁwaa:ama\‘imsmﬁlﬂuuﬂmu‘[ﬂmamsﬁtﬁ
Aeafumatulésadaiyd 2 - - - 57,203,295 57,203,295
gaanavda o Fufl 1 nangan 2556 - Yuydln 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,203,251,590  1,928,093,707
meanudaaTadmivll - - - (266,541,927) (266,541,927)
ganAILAAD M ’a’uﬁ 30 ﬁqmﬂu 2557 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 936,709,663 1,661,551,780




vuns:ldmuda
USHN FOINFRRDULADIIUTULUA INT9 (NH1TH) USHNE8UAZAANTTIINAN
dwmiullaugaiui 30 Aguweu

SIAM STEEL
(W8 )
JUNINBIIN JUNINWANIZUDILIEN
2557 2556 2557 2556
(Uurgslna) (U3urgslna)
NIUANUIAIINAAINTINA AU
mls (enu) noumsTuld (251,441,781) 37,179,091 | (326,390,685)  (88,157,140)
Yiuilgernls (manw) naumsBiuldidulduaaiy ()
ANAANTINATAUITU:-
@hlfﬁ"amwm 51,779,010 45,370,492 48,879,534 41,772,290
difionilasiazgy uazvilga - and 57,641,599 1,197,342 57,641,599 1,225,815
dndie (Toundudnifia) Ausianyad - qni 4464040  (2,442,639) 4,464,040  (1,833,559)
ALl (‘[aunéz’mhn,ﬁ'a) MINAYAAIUDINURIY Y (8,682,897) 3,114,314 (8,682,897) 3,005,948
210mu (f1ls) ANNMITERFY 81013 wazgunsat 1,499,524 (795,555) 1,512,629 (215,477)
1AW (rﬁlﬁ) Q’mé/(ﬂi’]l,l,aﬂL‘l_]g]"&lul,‘\:‘lu@]iﬂ@]"]\‘lﬂ‘i&ﬂﬂ (12,977,595) 24,873,270 (12,977,595) 24,873,270
fAfslsiAnTuass
Fununemadu 4,206,902 2,907,705 3695693 2,907,705
dauudeinlsvasniiniinanadsauldide - and (90,322,062)  (92,109,963) - -
ﬁwl%dwamumizaﬂﬁuﬁw%fuNaﬁsﬂwﬁwﬁmm 2,510,382 2,664,585 1,750,243 1,948,983
nazuanuanlaxnan (1ldlu) nsaniueunaunis
wWaznudadludmasiuninduaznilaudiinem (241,322,878) 21,958,642 | (230,107,439) (14,472,166)

AuUnSndaiiuauanad (N

£

anniimsfiannsueuaslduine

'
o

- gnéaly 191,156,697  (71,057,027) | 129,682,402  (43,324,596)

- UsTAizadas 7,279,127 16,879,178 7,657,002 7,630,512
Qﬂwﬁmiﬁwmmﬂﬁﬁmﬁummn'aa%w

- UsTAizades - 2,832,882 - 14,164,409
selEngsllESondrse

- gnénvialy - 41,528,975 - 41528975
Audnanin 107,812,301 59,799,521 | 125,494,112 54,602,991
anwiluaziuneasasdns - UiEniiieadas 185,534 1,339,999 433,743 1,784,965
AuniwinaIoudu (158,867) 40,457,098 23,056 39,517,058
anﬁﬁuﬂizﬁ’uwmm 162,502,686  (42,421,711) | 162,502,686  (42,421,711)
auw%’wﬁmmuﬁmﬁu (9,396,342) (8,340,366) (919,832)  (10,789,693)

Wi AU LAWY (anav)

Hwitnsén - gEnly (220,087,580) (109,041,587) | (220,199,273) (109,110,846)
Fmiluaziiunasasgannuigniiedos (16,456,376)  (10,677,880) | (12,408,322)  (15,168,374)
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(a8 )
JUNIRUTIN JUMINUANIZUDILTEN
2557 2556 2557 2556
(U3urgslna) (U3urgslna)
(33,629,872) (64,704,576) (30,598,346)  (66,900,268)
(40,018,734) (22,808,730) (37,030,965)  (23,646,979)
(18,999,713) (2,114,062) | (18,999,713)  (1,990,300)
(3,934,458) (2,939,419) (3,633,577) (3,680,289)
(115,068,475)  (149,309,063) | (128,104,466) (172,276,311)
(2,340,849) (1,162,446) (2,283,578)  (1,560,229)
(1,373,725)  (42,661,139) - (233,068)
(118,783,049) (193,132,648) | (130,388,044) (174,069,608)
(140,229) 276,269 - -
(37,069,674) (154,138,929) |  (28,734,928) (150,887,518)
406,968 901,374 375,706 248,842
(60,200,000) -|  (60,200,000) -
- - - (21,560,000)
- - - 108,365
55,349,280 48,404,160 - -
(41,653,655) (104,557,126) |  (88,559,222) (172,090,311)
52,383,950 1,008,137 52,383,950 1,008,137
- (112,689,617) - (112,689,617)
(9,800,700) (9,800,700) - -
- 9,800,000 - -
42,583,250 (111,682,180) 52,388,950 (111,681,480)
(117,853,454) (409,371,954) | (166,563,316) (457,841,399)
450,931,317 860,303,271 281,450,798 739,292,197
333,077,863 450,931,317 114,887,482 281,450,798
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SIAM STEEL

To the Shareholders of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries and joint ventures, comprising the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes disclosure
summarizing significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. | have also audited the separate financial statements of Siam
Steel International Public Company Limited, comprising the separate statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, and the related
separate statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes disclosure
summarizing significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and the fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal controls as management determines to be necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with
Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | perform the audit under ethical requirements, including planning and performing
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidences about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The selected audit procedures depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement on the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidences | have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position as
at 30 June 2014 and the consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended of Siam Steel International Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries and joint ventures, and the separate financial position as at 30 June 2014 and the results of operations
and cash flows for the year then ended of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards.

Prior year report

The consolidated financial statements of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries and joint ventures
and the separate financial statement of Siam Steel International Public Company Limited as at and for the year ended 30 June 2013 (before
restatement) were audited by Mrs. Sumalee Chokdeeanant, an auditor in the same office as mine, who issued her audit report dated 28
August 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. The consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 30 June 2013,
which are integral part of such audited financial statements, were restated as discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, for

Mr. Somckid Tiatragul

comparative purpose.

Certified Public Accountant
Registration No. 2785

Bangkok, Thailand
27 August 2014
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SIAM STEEL SIAM STEEL INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 | 30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Notes (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 333,077,863 450,931,317 860,303,271 114,887,482 281,450,798 739,292,197
Trade accounts receivable from sales and
services

- general customers - net 7 425,490,358 667,040,376 624,855,335 275,311,155 455,386,879 428,513,388

- related companies 6,7 22,535,214 29,814,341 21,851,757 24,104,738 31,761,740 26,971,371
Trade accounts receivable from construction
work

- related companies - net 6,7 2,376,815 2,376,815 2,376,815 4,660,422 4,660,422 4,660,422
Unbilled accrued income - general customers - - 41,528,975 - - 41,528,975
Inventories - net 8 390,225,448 502,501,789 559,858,671 300,196,939 430,155,091 482,924,524
Receivables from and advances
to related companies 6 3,078,578 3,264,112 4,604,111 4,514,502 4,948,245 6,733,210
Other current assets 9 18,541,858 18,382,991 59,654,816 13,785,341 13,808,397 54,140,182
Total current assets 1,195,326,134 1,674,311,741 2,175,033,751 737,460,579 1,222,171,572 1,784,764,269
NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Restricted deposit with bank 10 324,585 184,356 460,625 - - -
Retentions receivable 94,822,417 250,841,066 235,648,678 94,822,417 250,841,066 235,648,678
Investments

- Subsidiary companies - net 11 - - - 32,399,300 32,399,300 22,199,300

- Associated companies 11 671,914,412 576,763,177 533,057,374 162,627,400 102,427,400 102,427,400

- Other companies - net 11 53,287,486 44,604,589 47,718,903 48,287,486 39,604,589 42,718,903

- Joint ventures - net 11 - - - 16,000 16,000 16,000
Property, plant and equipment - net 12 581,474,991 766,912,575 658,249,957 566,695,400 757,550,096 648,468,233
Assets not used in operation - net 13 168,821,755 - - 168,821,755 - -
Refundable value added tax 1,603,061 3,983,353 7,232,025 - 2,097,729 5,821,840
Income tax withheld at sources 13,275,768 9,727,587 4,212,617 9,142,578 5,594,391 -
Deferred income tax asset - net 14 100,267,612 46,788,522 19,092,206 111,821,554 57,203,295 31,877,765
Other non - current assets - net 30,342,927 30,816,427 19,227,389 19,520,417 20,051,043 11,131,630

Total non - current assets

1,716,135,014

1,730,621,652

1,624,899,774

1,214,154,307

1,267,784,909

1,100,309,749

TOTAL ASSETS

2,911,461,148

3,404,933,393

3,699,933,525

1,951,614,886

2,489,956,481

2,885,074,018

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SIAM STEEL INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

SIAM STEEL

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated F/S

Separate F/S

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

30 June 2012

30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2012

Notes (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short - term loans from financial institution 15 53,460,579 1,076,629 - 53,460,579 1,076,629 -
Trade accounts payable - general suppliers 113,905,343 333,524,124 445,287,154 83,105,139 302,835,613 414,667,903
Payables to and advances from related 6 70,092,984 86,549,360 97,242,511 31,198,676 43,606,998 58,775,372
companies
Advances and deposits from customers
- general customers 19,774,768 53,118,719 120,280,549 18,692,391 49,004,816 118,362,338
- related companies 6 5,034,825 5,034,825 3,095,400 5,034,825 5,034,825 3,095,400
Accrued income tax 2,615,110 1,373,725 17,235,475 - - 233,068
Other current liabilities 16 91,748,426 131,767,160 154,560,092 77,081,321 114,112,286 137,758,738
Total current liabilities 356,632,035 612,444,542 837,701,181 268,572,931 515,671,167 732,892,819
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities under employee benefits obligation 17 21,955,691 50,146,107 47,850,852 19,438,962 40,506,817 39,201,186
Other non - current liabilities 2,491,202 6,425,660 9,365,079 2,051,213 5,684,790 9,365,079
Total non - current liabilities 24,446,893 56,571,767 57,215,931 21,490,175 46,191,607 48,566,265
TOTAL LIABILITIES 381,078,928 669,016,309 894,917,112 290,063,106 561,862,774 781,459,084
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital - common share at Baht 1
par value
- Registered 593,125,849 shares 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849
- Issued and paid - up 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849 593,125,849
shares
Premium on share capital 72,403,683 72,403,683 72,403,683 72,403,683 72,403,683 72,403,683
Retained earnings
- Appropriated for legal reserve 18 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585 59,312,585
- Unappropriated 1,612,609,121 1,830,758,785 1,934,117,730 936,709,663 1,203,251,590 1,378,772,817

Shareholders’ equity attributable

2,337,451,238

2,555,600,902

2,658,959,847

1,661,551,780

1,928,093,707

2,103,614,934

to the Company’s shareholders

192,930,982

180,316,182

146,056,566

Non - controlling interests in subsidiaries

2,530,382,220

2,735,917,084

2,805,016,413

1,661,551,780

1,928,093,707

2,103,614,934

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2,911,461,148

3,404,933,393

3,699,933,525

1,951,614,886

2,489,956,481

2,885,074,018

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SIAM STEEL FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
Notes (Restated) (Restated)

REVENUES

Sales and services - net 2,141,921,890  3,492,614,971 1,133,571,842  2,315,563,223
Revenues from construction work - 66,199,998 - 66,199,998
Total revenues 2,141,921,890 3,558,814,969 1,133,571,842 2,381,763,221
COSTS

Costs of sales and services 1,831,607,352 2,888,551,997 1,011,207,647 1,944,483,380
Costs of construction work - 60,298,092 - 60,298,092
Total costs 22 1,831,607,352  2,948,850,089 1,011,207,647  2,004,781,472
Gross income 310,314,538 609,964,880 122,364,195 376,981,749
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange rates 21,733,375 (26,411,505) 20,954,285 (28,435,511)
Dividend income 5,392,146 19,286,195 70,940,726 77,889,655
Other income 21 63,598,781 59,013,937 71,991,705 70,196,770
Income before expenses 401,038,840 661,853,507 286,250,911 496,632,663
Selling expenses (180,225,715) (372,425,860) (179,373,831) (371,412,652)
Administrative expenses (320,344,155) (337,139,158) (191,546,161) (206,237,683)
Compensation for defect products (189,067,209) - (189,067,209) -
Provision for doubtful debts and bad debt - net (57,641,599) (1,197,342) (57,641,599) (1,225,815)
Reversal of allowance (provision) for declin value of
investment 11 8,682,897 (3,114,314) 8,682,897 (3,005,948)
Total expenses 22 (738,595,781) (713,876,674) (608,945,903) (581,882,098)
Loss from operations (837,556,941) (52,023,167) (322,694,992) (85,249,435)
Equity in net income of associated companies - net 90,322,062 92,109,963 - -
Income (loss) before finance cost and income tax (247,234,879) 40,086,796 (322,694,992) (85,249,435)
Financial costs (4,206,902) (2,907,705) (3,695,693) (2,907,705)
Income (loss) before income tax (251,441,781) 37,179,091 (326,390,685) (88,157,140)
Income tax benefits from timing differences 14 42,139,736 6,411,897 54,618,259 25,325,530
Net income (loss) for the year (209,302,045) 43,590,988 (271,772,426) (62,831,610)
Other comprehensive income :
Reversal of liabilities for employee benefits obligation 17 13,567,881 - 5,230,499 -
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year (195,734.,164) 43,590,988 (266,541,927) (62,831.610)
Attribution of income (loss)
The Company’s shareholders (227,641,725) 9,330,672 (271,772,426) (62,831,610)
Non - controlling interests in subsidiaries 18,339,680 34,260,316 - -
Total (209.302.045) 43,590,988 (271.772.426) (62,831.610)
Attribution of comprehensive income (loss)
The Company’s shareholders (218,149,664) 9,330,672 (266,541,927) (62,831,610)
Non - controlling interests in subsidiaries 22,415,500 34,260,316 - -
Total (195.734.164) 43,590,988 (266.541.927) (62,831.610)
Basic earnings (loss) per share
Income (loss) of the Company’s shareholders
(Baht per share) (0.38) 0.02 (0.46) (0.11)

Weighted average number of common shares (share) 593.125.849 593,125,849 593.125.849 593,125,849
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

SIAM STEEL FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE

P |L€L

54

Consolidated F/S

3

Balance as at 1 July 2012 - as previously reported

Cumulative effect adjustment for change in accounting policy

BULE BMINGHIERWINCOYIBNLEBE WML

for deferred income tax

penwi Auedwo) oljgnd [eUOHBUISIU| [881S WEIS

(HILWN)

Balance as at 1 July 2012 - as restated
Share increment of subsidiary
Comprehensive income for the year - restated
Dividend payment of subsidiary company
Dividend payment of Company

Balance as at 30 June 2013 - as restated

Balance as at 1 July 2013 - as previously reported

Cumulative effect adjustment for change in accounting policy
for deferred income tax

Balance as at 1 July 2013 - as restated

Comprehensive income (loss) for the year

Dividend payment of subsidiary company

Balance as at 30 June 2014

(Unit : Baht)
Shareholders’ equity of the Company
Retained earnings
Appropri-
Paid - up Premium on  ated for legal Unappropriated Non-controlling
Notes share capital ~ share capital reserve (Restated) Total interests Total

593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,913,106,952 2,637,949,069 145,174,053 2,783,123,122

2 - - - 21,010,778 21,010,778 882,513 21,893,291
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,934,117,730 2,658,959,847 146,056,566 2,805,016,413

- - - - - 9,800,000 9,800,000

- - - 9,330,672 9,330,672 34,260,316 43,590,988

- - - - - (9,800,700) (9,800,700)

19 - - - (112,689,617)  (112,689,617) - (112,689,617)
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,830,758,785 2,555,600,902 180,316,182 2,735,917,084

593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,782,588,192 2,507,430,309 179,362,357 2,686,792,666

2 - - - 48,170,593 48,170,593 953,825 49,124,418
593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,830,758,785 2,555,600,902 180,316,182 2,735,917,084

- - - (218,149,664)  (218,149,664) 22,415,500 (195,734,164)

- - - - - (9,800,700) (9,800,700)

593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585  1,612,609,121  2,337,451,238 192,930,982 2,530,382,220




STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED)

SIAM STEEL FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE (Unit : Baht)

Retained earnings

Paid - up share Premium on Appropriated for Unappropriated
C;é Notes capital share capital legal reserve (Restated) Total
g-_gg Separate F/S

g?; Balance as at 1 July 2012 - as previously reported 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,346,895,052 2,071,737,169
i—’,gz Cumulative effect adjustment for change in accounting policy

éf% for deferred income tax 2 - - - 31,877,765 31,877,765

:ggf Balance as at 1 July 2012 - as restated 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,378,772,817 2,103,614,934

%g Comprehensive loss for the year - restated - - - (62,831,610) (62,831,610)

Dividend payment of Company 19 - - - (112,689,617) (112,689,617)

Balance as at 30 June 2013 - as restated 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,203,251,590 1,928,093,707

Balance as at 1 July 2013 - as previously reported 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,146,048,295 1,870,890,412
Cumulative effect adjustment for change in accounting policy

for deferred income tax 2 - - - 57,203,295 57,203,295

Balance as at 1 July 2013 - as restated 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 1,203,251,590 1,928,093,707

Comprehensive loss for the year - - - (266,541,927) (266,541,927)

Balance as at 30 June 2014 593,125,849 72,403,683 59,312,585 936,709,663 1,661,551,780




STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE SIAM STEEL

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S

2014 2013 2014 2013
(Restated) (Restated)
Cash flows from operating activities
Income (loss) before tax (251,441,781) 37,179,091 (326,390,685) (88,157,140)
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) before tax to net cash
provided from (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 51,779,010 45,370,492 48,879,534 41,772,290
Provision for doubtful debts and bad debt - net 57,641,599 1,197,342 57,641,599 1,225,815
Reversal of allowance (provision) for decline value of 4,464,040 (2,442,639) 4,464,040 (1,833,559)
inventories - net
Reversal of allowance (provision) for decline value of (8,682,897) 3,114,314 (8,682,897) 3,005,948
investment
Loss (gain) on sales of property, plant and equipment 1,499,524 (795,555) 1,512,629 (215,477)
Unrealized loss (gain) on foreign exchange (12,977,595) 24,873,270 (12,977,595) 24,873,270
Financial costs 4,206,902 2,907,705 3,695,693 2,907,705
Equity in net income of associated companies - net (90,322,062) (92,109,963) = -
Employee benefits obligation expenses 2,510,382 2,664,585 1,750,243 1,948,983
Cash provided from (used in) operations before changes in
operating assets and liabilities (241,322,878) 21,958,642 (230,107,439)  (14,472,165)

Decrease (increase) in operating assets;

Trade accounts receivable from sales and services
- general customers
- related companies

Trade accounts receivable from construction work
- related companies

Unbilled accrued income
- general customers

Inventories

Receivables from and advances to related

companies
Other current assets
Retentions receivable
Other non - current assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities;
Trade accounts payable - general suppliers

Payables to and advances from related companies

191,156,697
7,279,127

107,812,301
185,534

(158,867)
162,502,686
(9,396,342)

(220,087,580)
(16,456,376)

(71,057,027)

16,879,178

2,832,882

41,528,975
59,799,521
1,339,999

40,457,098
(42,421,711)

(8,340,366)

(109,041,587)
(10,677,880)

129,682,402
7,657,002

125,494,112
433,743

23,056
162,502,686
(919,832)

(220,199,273)
(12,408,322)
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(43,324,596)

7,630,512

14,164,409

41,528,975
54,602,991
1,784,965

39,517,058
(42,421,711)
(10,789,693)

(109,110,846)
(15,168,374)



SIAM STEEL

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 30 JUNE

Advances and deposits from customers
Other current liabilities
Employee benefits obligation
Other non - current liabilities
Cash used in operating activities
Interest payment
Income tax payment

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Decrease (increase) in restricted deposits with banks
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment
Increase in investment in associated company

Increase in investment in subsidiary company and joint

venture
Received back from investment in joint venture
Dividend received from associated company

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in short - term loan from financial institution
Payments for cash dividend
Dividend paid by subsidiary
Increased share capital of subsidiary company

Net cash provided from (used in) financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents - net
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated F/S

Separate F/S

2014 2013 2014 2013

(Restated) (Restated)
(33,629,872) (64,704,576) (30,598,346) (66,900,268)
(40,018,734) (22,808,730) (37,030,965) (23,646,979)
(18,999,713) (2,114,062) (18,999,713) (1,990,300)
(3,934,458) (2,939,419) (3,633,577) (3,680,289)
(115,068,475)  (149,309,063) (128,104,466) (172,276,311)
(2,340,849) (1,162,446) (2,283,578) (1,560,229)
(1,373,725) (42,661,139) - (233,068)
(118,783,049) (193,132,648) (130,388,044) (174,069,608)
(140,229) 276,269 - -
(87,069,674) (154,138,929) (28,734,928) (150,887,518)
406,968 901,374 375,706 248,842
(60,200,000) - (60,200,000) -
- - - (21,560,000)
- - - 108,365
55,349,280 48,404,160 - -
(41,653,655) (104,557,126) (88,559,222) (172,090,311)
52,383,950 1,008,137 52,383,950 1,008,137
- (112,689,617) - (112,689,617)
(9,800,700) (9,800,700) - -
- 9,800,000 - -
42,583,250 (111,682,180) 52,383,950 (111,681,480)
(117,853,454) (409,371,954) (166,563,316) (457,841,399)
450,931,317 860,303,271 281,450,798 739,292,197
333,077,863 450,931,317 114,887,482 281,450,798

o




SIAM STEEL
SIAM STEEL INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED, SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
30 JUNE 2014

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as a juristic company on 28 August 1979 under the Civil and Commercial code of Thailand and
become a public company on 27 December 1993. The Company’s core businesses are manufacturing and sales of steel office
equipment and furniture and furniture parts, and the construction business. The Company’s registered office is located at 51
Moo 2 Poochao Road, Bangyaprak, Phrapradaeng, Samuthprakarn.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Company has major shareholders as follows :

Percentage of Shareholding

Name 2014 2013

Mr. Pongsak Pongphundacha 30.11 30.11
Mr. Wanchai Kunanantakul 17.19 17.19
Mr. Surapol Kunanantakul 16.52 16.52
Thai NVDR Company Limited 2.78 2.27
CLSA SINGAPORE PTE 2.24 -
Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 2.03 2.03

2. BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION

2.1 Basis of financial statement preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been officially prepared in Thai in accordance with Thai Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543 and Thai Accounting Standards promulgated under the Accounting
Professions Act B.E. 2547 and the financial reporting requirements promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission

under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535. The translation of these financial statements to other language should
conform to the official report in Thai.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except as otherwise disclosed specifically.

During the year 2013, the Federation of Accounting Professions has announced the application of accounting standards,
the financial reporting standards that were amended in 2012, and the interpretation of accounting standards and reporting
standards, effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The Company’s management has considered the
impact to its financial statements when these accounting and financial reporting standards are initially applied.

These financial statements have been prepared by using the same accounting policies and methods of computation as were

used in the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2013, except for the adoption of TAS 12 :
“Income tax” as follow:
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SIAM STEEL

TAS 12 Income tax

This accounting standard requires the Company to identify temporary differences between the carrying amounts of asset or liability
used for accounting purpose and related amounts used for income tax computation in order to recognize the income tax
effects as deferred income tax asset or liability subject to certain recognition criteria. Effective 1 July 2013, the Company
has changed this accounting policy and restated the prior year financial statements, presented as comparative information,
as if the Company had recognized the tax effects as deferred income tax asset or liability in the previous years.

The income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred income taxes. Current income tax and deferred income tax
are recognized in profit or loss accounts, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.

Current income tax
Current income tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using income tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to income tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purpose and the amounts used for taxation purpose. Deferred income tax is measured at the income tax
rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and

reduced to the extent that it is probable that the related income tax benefit will be realized.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF THE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Effective 1 July 2013, the Company has initially adopted of TAS 12: Income Taxes. The cumulative effect of the change in
the accounting policy has been separately presented in the statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

The adjustments affecting the statements of financial position and statements of comprehensive income are as follows :

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
30 June 2013 1 July 2012 30 June 2013 1 July 2012
Statements of financial position
Increase in investment in associated company 2,336 2,801 - -
Increase in deferred income tax asset 46,789 19,093 57,203 31,878
Increase in unappropriated retained earnings 48,171 21,011 57,208 31,878
Increase in non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 954 883 - -

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
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2.2.

2.3

2.4

25

2.6

SIAM STEEL

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
For the years ended 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013

Statements of comprehensive income

Increase (decrease) in equity income in associated company 1,711 (465) - -
Increase (decrease) in income tax expense (53,479) (27,696) (54,618) (25,326)
Increase (decrease) in non-controlling interests in subsidiaries (299) 71 = -
Increase (decrease) in basic earnings per share (Baht per share) 0.09 0.05 0.09 0.04

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries for which the Company

owns shares more than 50% of voting right, and joint ventures which the Company can proportionately exercise control
as follows :

Percentage of shareholding

Company 2014 2013 Type of business
Subsidiaries
Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd. 51 51 Distribution of office furniture
and furniture used for public
Sri Chareon International Co., Ltd. 99.99 99.99 Distribution of office furniture

and furniture parts
Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd. 51 51 Distribution of finished buildings,

wall and relating products

Joint ventures

Siam Steel — Kanok Furniture 49 49 Interior decoration service

Siam Steel — Thai Service 80 80 Interior decoration service

Significant intercompany transactions with subsidiaries and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial
statements have been eliminated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared with the same accounting policy for the same accounting
transactions or accounting events used by the Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures.

As of 30 June 2014 and 2013, the total assets of subsidiaries represent 17.30 percent and 14.68 percent, respectively,
of the total assets in the consolidated financial statements, and total revenues of subsidiaries for the years ended
30 June 2014 and 2013, represent 44.25 percent and 32.35 percent, respectively, of the total revenues in the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements as at 30 June 2014 and 2013, and for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013
included the proportion of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint ventures as follows:
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In Thousand Baht

Joint Venture financial infor' mation

2014 2013
Current assets 295 314
Non-current assets 2,501 2,500
Current liabilities 2,757 2,764

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated F/S
For the years ended 30 June
2014 2013

Revenues - 1

Expenses i3 72

The construction work with Siam Steel-Wangsingcome Joint Venture and Siam Steel-Kanok Furniture Joint Venture was 100%
completed since the 1% quarter of year 2010/2011. Consequently, starting the 2" quarter of year 2010/2011, there have
been no revenues from construction work of both Joint Ventures.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and highly liquid cash at banks (which do not have restriction of usage)
that are readily convertible to cash on maturity date with insignificant risk of change in value.

Restricted deposit with bank is presented under non - current assets in the statement of financial position

3.2 Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful debts
Trade accounts receivable are carried at anticipated realizable value. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based
on past collection experiences and a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off during the

year in which they are identified.

3.3 Inventories

The Company and its subsidiaries value their inventories as follows:

Valuation Method

Merchandises - The Company Lower of cost (moving average method) or net realizable value
Merchandises - The Subsidiary Lower of cost (moving average method and first-in first-out method) or
net realizable value
Own manufactured finished Lower of cost (standard cost which approximate actual cost) or
goods net realizable value
Work in process Standard cost which approximates actual cost/at cost
Raw materials Cost (specific identification method)
Supplies Cost (moving average method)

Net realizable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and
selling expenses. Provision is taken up in the books, where necessary, for obsolete, slow - moving and defective inventories,
based on the physical status of inventories.
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3.4

3.5

SIAM STEEL

Investments in related companies

Investments in associated companies in consolidated statement of financial positions are valued by the equity method,
and investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures in the separate statement of financial position
are valued by the cost method.

Investments in securities of related and other companies that are not subsidiaries, not associated companies and/or
not joint ventures, held as “General investment”, are valued at costs.

The Company makes the adjustments to devalue those investments when there is an indication of impairment.

Related companies

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by the Company, whether directly
or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the Company
that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel, directors and officers with authority
in the planning and directing the Company’s operations.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those companies controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of a company so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Associates

Associates are those companies in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s share of profits and losses of associates
by the equity accounting method, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant
influence ceases. When the Company’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the Company’s carrying
amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate companies.

Joint ventures

The joint ventures are those companies in which the Company has joint control, established by contractual agreements.
The consolidated financial statements include the Company’s proportionate share of the joint ventures’ assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses combined with items of a similar nature on a line by line basis, from the date that joint control
commenced until the date that joint control ceases.
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3.6

Property, plant and equipment

Land is stated at cost with no depreciation.

Equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

The Company and its subsidiaries depreciate their plant and equipment by the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follow:

Year
Buildings and improvements 3-20
Leasehold right and improvements 10
Improvements of leased factory 5
Machinery and equipment 5-10

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Transportation equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are recognized
in the statement of comprehensive income.

Expenditures for expansion, renewal and betterment, which result in a substantial increase in an asset current replacement
value, are capitalized. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized as expenses when incurred.

3.7 Assets not used in operation

3.8

Assets not used in operations are stated at cost which measured initially with its cost, including transaction costs.
Moreover, after recognition, it is measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment (if any).

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the statement
of income in the period when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of assets

The Company, subsidiaries, and joint ventures review the impairment of assets for property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets whenever events indicate that the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount (the
higher of an asset net selling price or value in use). The review is made for individual asset or for the cash-generating
unit, whichever the case may be.

In case that the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the Company, subsidiaries, and joint ventures
recognize the impairment losses in the statement of comprehensive income or reduce the revaluation increment of the
related assets previously recorded under the caption of shareholders’ equity. The reversal of impairment is recorded
when there is an indication that the impairment are no longer exist or have decreased, by crediting to “other income”.
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SIAM STEEL
3.9 Leases - where a company is the lessee

Leases of equipment, where the Company assumes substantially all the benefits and risks of ownership, are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the fair value of leases of assets or estimated present value of the
underlying lease payments whichever is lower. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the outstanding lease payments. Lease payments net of financial charges,
is recognized as liabilities under financial lease agreements. The interest expense is charged to statement of income
over the lease period. Assets acquired under finance lease agreements are depreciated over the useful lives of the
assets.

Leases of assets, under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to statement of income on a straight — line
basis over the lease period. When an operating lease is terminated before expiry date of the lease period, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place.

3.10 Revenue recognition

The Company and its subsidiaries recognize sales when goods are delivered and the significant risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to customers.

Revenues from construction services are recognized on the basis of percentage of completion. The recognized revenues,
which are not due for billing as per contracts, are shown under the caption of “Unbilled accrued income” in the statement
of financial position. Provision for foreseeable loss on project will be made in the accounts as soon as the possibility of
loss is ascertained.
Service income is recognized after the delivery of services.
Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

3.11 Foreign currency translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates prevailing the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of reporting period. Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
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3.12

Employee benefit

Short-term employment benefits
Salaries, wages, bonuses, contribution to the social security and provident fund, are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company and subsidiaries and their employees have jointly established a provident fund plan whereby monthly contributions

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

are made by employees and the Company and its subsidiaries. The fund assets are held in a separate trust fund from the
Company'’s and its subsidiaries’ contributions are recognised as expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plan

The Company and subsidiaries have obligations in respect of the severance payments they must make to employees upon
retirement under labor law. The Company and its subsidiaries treat these severance payment obligations as a defined
benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on
actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains or losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in statement of comprehensive
income.

The defined benefits liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Dividend payment

Dividend payment is recorded in the financial statements in the year in which they are approved by the Shareholders or
Board of Directors.

Financial instruments

Financial assets in the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, investments, and receivables.
Financial liabilities include trade accounts payable and borrowings. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed
in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

Segment information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures businesses. The primary
format, geographical segments, is based on the Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures management and internal reporting
structure.

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is determined by dividing the net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the years.
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3.17 Accounting estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
of the Company and its subsidiaries to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures for contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

3.18 Provisions for liabilities and charges and contingent assets
The Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures account for estimated liabilities and accrued expenses in the books of
accounts when legal or constructive obligations occurred as the results of past events with probable outflows of resources
to settle the obligations, and where a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. The contingent asset will be recognized

as a separate asset only when the realization is virtually certain.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTION AND JUDGMENT AND CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Critical accounting estimates, assumption and judgments
4.1.1 Construction revenues

The stage of completion of any construction contract is assessed by management by taking into consideration
all information available at the reporting date. In this process, management carries out significant judgement
about milestone, actual work performed and the estimated costs to complete the work. Significant assumptions
are required to estimate the total contract costs and the recoverable variation works that will affect the stage of
completion. Actual outcome in terms of actual costs or revenue may be higher or lower than estimates at the
reporting date, which would affect the revenue and profit to be recognised in future years as an adjustment to
the amounts recorded to date.

4.1.2 Allowance for project losses
The Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures review their construction work-in-progress to determine whether
there is any indication of foreseeable losses. Identified foreseeable losses are recognised immediately in the
statement of comprehensive income when it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue
as determined by the management.

4.1.3 Impairment of receivables
The Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures account for allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated
collection losses that may incur in the collection of receivables. The estimated losses are based on historical
collection experience couple with a review of outstanding receivables at the reporting date.

4.1.4 Allowance for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories
The Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures estimate allowances for obsolete, slow-moving and defective

inventories to reflect impairment of inventories. The allowances are based on the consideration of inventory
turnovers and deterioration of each category.
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4.2

Plant and equipment

Management regularly determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment and
will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values previously estimated have changed
or subject to be written down or if asset is no longer in used.

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or financial lease, management is
required to use judgment whether significant risk and reward of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred,
taking into consideration term and condition of the arrangement.

Impairment of assets

The Company considers the allowance for impairment of asset when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists with a significant decline in the fair value below its cost, the Company
makes re-assessesment of asset recoverable amount. The determination of recoverable amount requires
judgment.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation. Inherent within this
calculation is assumption as to discount rate, future salary adjustment, mortality rate and other demographic
factor. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management selects an interest rate that reflects the current
economic situation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality table for the country. Actual post-
retirement cost may ultimately differ from this estimate.

Litigation
The Company, subsidiaries and joint ventures normally have contingent liabilities as results of disputes and

litigation. Management uses judgment to assess the results of the disputes and litigation and recognize reasonable
provision for losses in the accounts at the reporting date. However, actual results could differ from the estimates.

Capital risk management

Objectives of the Company and subsidiaries in the management of capital are to safeguard their abilities to continue

as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain

optimal capital structures to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structures, the Company and subsidiaries may adjust the amount of dividends

payment for shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debts.
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5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

In Thousand Baht

SIAM STEEL

Consolidated F/S

Separate F/S

2014 2013 2014 2013
Cash 295 1,414 185 1,292
Deposits with financial institutions
- Current accounts 370 10,862 579 1,150
- Savings accounts 352,790 445,385 132,704 284,868
- Cheques in transit (20,377) (6,730) (18,581) (5,859)
Total 333,078 450,931 114,887 281,451

Savings deposits with banks bear interest at the floating rates determined by banks.

6. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED COMPANIES

A portion of the Company’s assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses arose from transactions with related companies

which are related through common shareholding and/or directorship. These financial statements reflected the effects of

significant transactions with related companies based on market prices in the normal course of business, or based on the

basis mutually agreed to for transactions with non-comparative market prices.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the account balances with related companies are as follows :

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S

Separate F/S

2014 2013 2014 2013
Trade accounts receivable from sales and services
Subsidiary companies
Sri Chareon International Co., Ltd. = - 1,396 1,645
Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd. - - 174 327
- - 1,570 1,972
Associated companies
Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. 94 111 94 104
Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited 10 10 10 10
Total 104 121 104 114
Related companies
Lucky - Kingdom Center (Chiangmai) Co., Ltd. 4,007 5,919 4,007 5,919
Lucky - Kingdom Center (Nakornratchasima) Co., Ltd. 3,561 8,089 3,561 8,089
Siam Chitose Co., Ltd. 968 2,963 968 2,963
Unity Service Co., Ltd. 43 112 43 112
Hirokoh (Thailand) Ltd. 13,618 12,421 13,618 12,421
Others 234 189 234 172
Total 22,431 29,693 22,431 29,676
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In Thousand Baht

2013 2013

Total trade accounts receivable from

sales and services — related companies 29,814 31,762

Accounts receivable from construction work
Joint Venture
Siam Steel-Kanok Furniture 5,600
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (940)
-
(479

Net 4,660

Qutstanding balances and portion of other joint ventures’

partner
Siam Steel-Kanok Furniture

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net 2,377 -

2,377

Total accounts receivable from construction work

- related companies — net 4,660
Receivables from and advances
Subsidiary companies
Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd. 1,538
Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd. 146
Total - 1,684
Associated companies
Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. 3,264 3,264

Total receivables from and advances to related 3,264 4,948
companies
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There is no interest charge for the above receivables and advances.

In Thousand Baht

2013
Trade accounts payable
Associated companies
Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. 14,104
Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited 286
Total 14,390
Related companies
Siam Chitose Co., Ltd. 24,472
Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 2,419
Others -
Total 26,891
Total trade accounts payable - related companies 41,281
Advances from
Subsidiary companies
Sri Chareon International Co., Ltd. -
Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd. -
Total -
Associated companies
Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. -
Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited 57
Total 57
Related companies
Unity Service Co., Ltd. 2,269
Others -
Total 2,269
Total advances from related companies 2,326
Total trade accounts payable and advances
from related companies 43,607
Advances and deposit from customers
Associated company
Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. 1,553
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Related company

Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Total advances and deposits from customers

- related companies

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
3,482 3,482 3,482 3,482
5,035 5,035 5,035 5,035

The significant transactions with related companies for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 and pricing policy are as follows :

Sales and services

Income from construction

Income from sales of raw materials, factory supplies and others
Rental revenue

Purchases of raw materials

Purchases of finished goods

Land and factory rental

Administrative and other expenses

Sales and services income

Revenues from sales of raw materials, factory supplies and others
Rental revenue

Dividend income

Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts

Purchases of finished goods

Purchases of raw materials

Administrative and other expenses

Land and factory rental
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The Policy of Pricing

Cost plus margin or agreed price
Cost plus margin

Cost plus margin

Agreed price

Cost plus margin or agreed price
Agreed price

Agreed price

Cost plus margin or agreed price

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
For the years ended 30 June

2014 2013 2014 2013
93,956 102,968 108,966 118,689
26,690 33,415 37,550 47,255
23,244 15,261 23,413 15,285
5,392 19,286 70,941 77,890
- 2,833 - 2,804
571,217 685,485 124,400 174,132
13,791 24,251 13,791 24,251
83,727 89,949 13,760 14,395
18,282 17,400 10,150 17,400
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In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
For the years ended 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013
Key management personnel compensation
Current employment benefits 24,142 27,427 19,792 22,578
Post-employment benefits 765 765 748 749
Total 24,907 28,192 20,540 23,327

The Company has certain agreement with the Company’s directors to lease land and factory building. The purpose of leases
is to support the special projects and for storage of raw materials and finished products. This lease agreement covers a period
of three years with monthly rental of Baht 1.45 million for total areas of 32 rai 1 ngan.

7. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the aged analysis of accounts receivable are as follows:

Trade accounts receivable from sales and services

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013

Trade accounts receivable — general customers
Current 224,574 260,569 135,248 175,564
Overdue:

Less than 3 months 76,454 288,398 17,168 168,461

3 months — 6 months 11,477 71,664 9,815 64,574

6 months — 12 months 8,109 30,085 8,109 30,502

Over 12 months 152,742 20,661 150,031 17,794
Total 473,356 671,377 320,371 456,895
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (47,866) (4,337) (45,060) (1,508)
Net 425,490 667,040 275,311 455,387
Trade accounts receivable - related companies
Current 20,783 24,263 22,353 25,945
Overdue:

Less than 3 months 1,752 5,551 1,752 5,817
Total 22,535 29,814 24,105 31,762
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Trade accounts receivable — construction work

In Thousand Baht

Trade accounts receivable - related companies
Overdue:
Over 12 months
Total
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Net

8. INVENTORIES

In Thousand Baht

Finished goods 165,207 92,860

Work in process 121,812

121,812

Raw materials and supplies 224,045 224,045

Goods in transit 2,273

2,273

Total 513,337 440,990

Less Allowance for decline value of inventories (10,835)

502,502

During the years, the movements in allowance for obsolete and decline value of inventories are as follows :

(10,835)

Net 430,155

In Thousand Baht

Balance as at 1 July
Add Additional allowance during the year
Less Reversal of allowance during the year

Balance as at 30 June
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9. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
Deposits 7,919 5,661 7,323 5,661
Prepaid expenses 2,775 2,556 2,070 1,650
Undue input VAT 4,050 4,254 2,705 3,387
Cash advances 1,048 2,144 351 1,488
Others 2,750 3,768 1,336 1,622
Total 18,542 18,383 13,785 13,808

10. RESTRICTED DEPOSIT WITH BANK

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, Time deposits totaling Baht 0.32 million and Baht 0.18 million are restricted for usage as they
have been placed as collaterals for bank guarantees in respect of certain agreements required in normal course of business
of the subsidiary.

11. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED COMPANIES

Investment in shares of Lucky-Kingdom Center Co., Ltd. is considered as indirect associated company invested by a subsidiary
company. Such subsidiary company recognizes its equity in the net operating results of such indirect associated company
based on net operating results from unaudited financial statements.. However, the equity in such associated company is not
significant.

Investments in securities of related companies that are not subsidiaries and/or not associated companies, held as “General
investment”, are valued at cost. The Company makes the adjustment to devalue those investments when there is indication
of impairment.

At the Ordinary Shareholders’ meeting of Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd. No. 1/2013 held on 23 September 2013, its
shareholders passed a resolution to pay cash dividend to shareholders from net profit for the year ended 30 June 2013 at Baht
100 per share, for 200,000 common shares totaling Baht 20,000,000 which was paid on 27 September 2013.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the Company had allowance for decline in value of investment in shares of an affiliated company,
Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd., amounting of Baht 1.42 million and Baht 10.11 million, respectively, based on the portion of
investments in such companies. During 2014, the Company reversed allowance for decline in value of investment in shares of
an affiliated company amounted of Baht 8.68 million.

During 2014, the Company mortgaged its investment in totaling 3,361,400 shares of associated company as collateral for the
bills of exchange from financial institution of Baht 50 million, as discussed in note 15.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the balances of investments in subsidiaries and related companies are shown on the following
pages :
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(In Thousand Baht)
Consolidated F/S

SIAM STEEL Paid-up Share capital Percentage of Cost method Equity method Dividend income
shareholding

162,627 102,427 = 665,960 570,639

Type of business 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

é Investments
=

EL

:3; Associated companies - equity method Manufacturing of steel furniture

N Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. Steel cutting services and manu- 88,000 88,000 40 40 35,199 35,199 = 104,044 103,785

%D Siam Steel Service Center Public Company  facturing of element steel parts

gﬂ Limited 639,998 639,998 22.76 21.01 127,428 67,228 | 561,916 466,854

=3

z

5

ol

Indirect associated company — equity

penwi Auedwo) oljgnd [eUOHBUISIU| [881S WEIS

% method

]

- Lucky-Kingdom Center Co., Ltd. Investment in shares 12,000 12,000 40 40 4,800 4,800 5,954 6,124
Total investments in associated companies 167,427 107,227 = 671,914 576,763

Related companies - cost method

Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of melamine lami- 199,150 199,150 5 5 38,052 38,052 - 14,936
nated product

Panasonic Eco Solutions Steel (Thailand) Manufacturing of electrical conduit 170,000 170,000 5 5 11,660 11,660 5,392 4,350

Co., Ltd. pipes

Total investment in related companies 49,712 49,712 5,392 19,286

Less Allowance for decline value of investments (1,425) (10,107)

Net 48,287 39,605

Other company - cost method

Siam Auto Bags Co., Ltd. Sales parts and accessories of car 39,900 39,900 6.39 6.39 5,000 5,000

Total investment by cost method — net 53,287 44,605




(In Thousand Baht)
Separate F/S

SIAM STEEL Paid-up Share capital Percentage of Cost method Dividend income
shareholding
Type of business 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
@ Investments accounted for by cost method
©
Py Subsidiary companies
E] %3 Sri Chareon International Co., Ltd. Distribution of steel furniture 75,000 75,000 99.99 99.99 75,000 75,000 - -
§§* Siam Okamura International Co., Ltd. Distribution of steel furniture 20,000 20,000 51 51 10,199 10,199 10,199 10,199
g% Siam Steel OC Co., Ltd. Distribution of finished buildings, wall 20,000 20,000 51 51 10,200 10,200 - -
B2 and relating products
o=
“C:’ng Total investment in subsidiary companies 95,399 95,399 10,199 10,199
=
g)% Less Allowance for decline in value of investments (63,000) (63,000)
3 2
EES Net 32,399 32,399
=z
[
%—5; Associated companies
a= ] Manufacturing of steel furniture 88,000 88,000 40 40 35,199 35,199 = -
Siam Okamura Steel Co., Ltd. . .
. . . o Steel cutting services and manufactur-
Siam Steel Service Center Public Company Limited 4 of element steel parts 639,998 639,98 22.76 2101 127,428 67,228 55,350 48,405
Total investment in associated companies 162,627 102,427 55,350 48,405
Related companies
Formica (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of melamine laminated 199,150 199,150 5 5 38,052 38,052 - 14,936
Panasonic Eco Solutions Steel (Thailand) Co., Ltd. products
Manufacturing of electrical conduit 170,000 170,000 5 5 11,660 11,660 5,392 4,350
pipes
Total investments in related companies 49,712 49,712 5,392 19,286
Less Allowance for decline in value of investments (1,425) (10,107)
Net 48,287 39,605
Joint ventures
Siam Steel — Kanok Furniture Interior decoration service 100 100 49 49 49 49 = -
Siam Steel — Thai Service Interior decoration service 20 20 80 80 16 16 = -
Total investments in joint ventures 65 65 - -
Less Allowance for decline in value of investments (49) (49)
Net 16 16

Total dividend income from investments accounted for
by cost method 70,941 77,890
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During the years, the movements in investments in associated companies are as follows :
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013

Opening balance 576,763 530,256 102,427 102,427
Effect of change in accounting policy for employee

past service benefits obligation (1,469) 2,336 = -
Purchase of investments in associates increased during the year 60,200 - 60,200 -
Share of profits of investment - equity method 91,939 93,675 - -
Share of loss of investment - equity method (170) (1,100) - -
Dividend income (55,349) (48,404) = -
Ending balance 671,914 576,763 162,627 102,427

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated F/S

2013 Increase Decrease Transfer 2014

At Cost

Land 250,243 - - (41,091) 209,152
Buildings and improvements 911,340 9,553 2,851 (85,225) 832,817
Leasehold right and improvements 1,746 - - - 1,746
Machinery and equipment 623,808 1,288 - (38,254) 586,842
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 261,251 9,865 1,823 (4,074 265,219
Transportation equipment 27,305 - 190 - 27,115
Machinery and building under installation 75,196 16,363 175 (75,435) 15,949
Total 2,150,889 37,069 5,039 (244,079) 1,938,840
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings and improvements 557,343 27,633 1,278 (35,978) 547,720
Leasehold right and improvements 1,746 - - - 1,746
Machinery and equipment 555,842 13,790 - (36,147) 533,485
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 235,353 9,093 1,712 (3,132) 239,602
Transportation equipment 14,572 3,782 142 - 18,212
Total 1,364,856 54,298 3,132 (75,257) 1,340,765
Less Allowance for impairments

Land 6,517 - - - 6,517
Buildings and improvements 12,603 - 2,520 - 10,083
Total 19,120 - 2,520 - 16,600
Property, plant and equipment — Net 766,913 581,475
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate F/S

2013 Increase Decrease Transfer 2014
At Cost
Land 250,243 - - (41,091) 209,152
Buildings and improvements 911,340 9,553 2,851 (85,225) 832,817
Leasehold right and improvements 1,746 - - - 1,746
Machinery and equipment 623,808 1,288 - (38,254) 586,842
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 209,100 1,530 344 (4,074) 206,212
Transportation equipment 21,797 - 190 - 21,607
Machinery and building under installation 75,196 16,363 175 (75,435) 15,949
Total 2,093,230 28,734 3,560 (244,079) 1,874,325
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and improvements 557,343 27,633 1,278 (35,978) 547,720
Leasehold right and improvements 1,746 - - - 1,746
Machinery and equipment 555,842 13,790 - (36,147) 533,485
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 190,823 6,743 252 (3,132) 194,182
Transportation equipment 10,806 3,233 142 - 13,897
Total 1,316,560 51,399 1,672 (75,257) 1,291,030
Less Allowance for impairments
Land 6,517 - - - 6,517
Buildings and improvements 12,603 - 2,520 - 10,083
Total 19,120 - 2,520 - 16,600
Property, plant and equipment — Net 757,550 566,695

Depreciation for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 amounted to Baht 51.78 million and Baht 45.37 million, respectively,
for the consolidated financial statements, and amounted to Baht 48.88 million and Baht 41.77 million, respectively, for the
separate financial statements.

As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the gross carrying amount of fully depreciated building and equipment still in use amounted to
Baht 1,021.90 million and Baht 992.72 million, respectively, for the consolidated financial statements, and amounted to Baht
979.68 million and Baht 954.03 million, respectively, for the separate financial statements.

During 2014, the Company suspended its manufacturing line in Bangna factory and sales office - Prakanong branch. The
Company therefore, reclassifiedthe net book values of land, buildings, machinery and equipments of Bangna factory and land
and buildings of sales office - Prakanong branch, totalling Baht 165.40 million and Baht 3.42 million, respectively, to assets not
used in operation.
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13. ASSETS NOT USED IN OPERATION

Thousand Baht

30 June 2013 Transfer in 30 June 2014
At Cost
Land 41,091 41,091
Buildings and improvements 157,023 157,023
Machinery and equipment 41,891 41,891
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4,074 4,074
Total 244,079 244,079
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and improvements 35,979 35,979
Machinery and equipment 36,146 36,146
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 3,132 3,132
Total 75,257 75,257
Assets not use in operation - net 168,822 168,822

As at 30 June 2014, assets not used in operation are presented at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment
(if any). The Company hired an independent appraiser to appraise its assets not used in operation. Based on the report of the
independent appraiser, the appraised value of land and related assets of the Bangna factory amounted to Baht 401.64 million.
The Company considers the fair value of its land and buildings of Prakanong branch by comparing the appraised price from The
Treasury Department which is approximately Baht 29.44 million. (net of estimated selling expenses)

14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSEST / TAX EXPENSES

Deferred income tax assets/liabilities as at 30 June 2014 and 2013, which were resulted from temporary differences between
those assets/liabilities for income tax computation purpose and assets/liabilities for accounting purpose are summarized below :

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
Deferred income tax assets
From allowance for doubtful accounts of trade accounts receivable
from sales and service 279 863 279 302
From allowance for doubtful accounts of trade accounts receivable
from construction work 96 96 188 188
From allowance for obsolete and decline value in inventories 3,060 2,055 3,060 2,167
From allowance for impairment of investments in subsidiary and other
companies 54 1,756 12,895 14,631
From reserve for employee benefits obligation 4,391 10,029 3,888 8,101
From loss carried forward not exceed 5 years 100,647 35,711 99,771 35,536
Total 108,527 50,510 120,081 60,925
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
Deferred income tax liabilities
From the difference of depreciation of fixed assets between
accounting base and tax base 8,259 3,721 8,259 3,721
Total 8,259 3,721 8,259 3,721
Net 100,268 46,789 111,822 57,204

Tax expenses for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 are as follows :-

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
(Restated) (Restated)
Income (loss) before income tax (251,442) 37,179 (326,391) (88,157)
Add Transaction added back under the conditions
of the Revenue Code 82,846 34,709 79,358 30,307
Loss of the Company and subsidiary companies 376,005 178,555 - -
Less Other tax exempted income (150,713) (157,903) (125,476) (119,828)
Net taxable income (loss) 56,696 92,540 (372,509) (177,678)
Current tax expense under the Revenue Code
- at the rate of 20% (2013 : rate of 23%) 11,339 21,284 - -
Current tax expense under the Revenue Code 11,339 21,284 - -
The amount of deferred income tax expense relating to
temporary differences (53,479) (27,696) (54,618) (25,325)
Income tax benefits from timing differences (42,140) (6,412) (54,618) (25,325)

15. SHORT — TERM LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
Liabilities under trust receipts 4,154 1,077 4,154 1,077
Bills of exchange 50,000 - 50,000 -
Total 54,154 1,077 54,154 1,077
Less Deferred interest (693) - (693) -
Net 53,461 1,077 53,461 1,077

As at 30 June 2014, the liabilities under trust receipts bear interest at rates 2.8214 % per annum.

As at 30 June 2014, the bills of exchange bear interest at rates 5.90 % per annum. These bills of exchange are collateralized
by the pledge of 3,361,400 shares of an associated company.
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16. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued construction costs
Accrued employee expenses

Accrued rental and utilities expenses

Accrued incentive expenses

Other accrued expenses

Other liabilities
Total

17. LIABILITIES UNDER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

In Thousand Baht

Opening net book balance as at 1 July
Current cost recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income

Employee benefits paid during the year

Reversal of liabilities for employee benefits

obligation

Closing net book balance as at 30 June

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
27,884 28,645 27,884 28,645
22,666 30,789 14,387 20,214
2,805 3,803 2,771 3,766
1,043 1,230 1,043 1,230
33,142 60,956 29,994 56,834
4,208 6,344 1,002 3,423
91,748 131,767 77,081 114,112
In Thousand Baht
Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
50,146 47,851 40,507 39,201
4,378 4,409 3,162 3,296
(19,000) (2,114) (19,000) (1,990)
(13,568) - (5,230) -
21,956 50,146 19,439 40,507

The employee benefit expenses were recorded in the statement of comprehensive income for the years ended 30 June 2014 and

2013 as follow :-

Current service cost

Financial costs

Total
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In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S

Separate F/S

2014 2013 2014 2013
2,510 2,664 1,750 1,949
1,868 1,745 1,412 1,347
4,378 4,409 3,162 3,296




SIAM STEEL

Significant assumptions of reserve for employee benefits obligation based on actuarial techniques as at 30 June 2014 and

2013 are as follows;

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S

Separate F/S

2014 2013 2014 2013

Discount rate
: Monthly staff 2.09% - 4.36% 4.41% 4.34% 4.41%
: Daily staff 4.30 % 4.39% 4.30% 4.39%
Average future salary

) 4.34% - 6.16% 3.91% - 7.78% 4.34% - 6.09% 3.91% - 4.22%

increment rate
Mortality rate TMO 2008 TMO 1997 TMO 2008 TMO 1997
Normal retirement age 60 years 55 and 60 years 60 years 60 years

18. LEGAL RESERVE

Under the provision of the Public Company Limited Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to appropriate at least 5% of its

annual net income after deduction of the deficit brought forward (if any) as legal reserve until the reserve reaches not less than

10% of the authorized capital.

19. DIVIDEND PAYMENT

At the Ordinary Shareholder’s meeting held on 26 October 2012, the shareholders passed a resolution to pay cash dividend from
the net profit for the year ended 30 June 2012, for the entitled shareholders, 593,103,249 common shares, totaling Baht

112,689,617 or at the rate of Baht 0.19. This was paid on 23 November 2012.

20. PROVIDENT FUND

The Company established a provident fund under the Provident Fund Act (B.E. 2530). The fund is contributed to by the
employees and the Company and is managed by Kasikorn Asset Management. The fund will be paid to the employees upon

termination in accordance with the rules of the fund. In 2014, Baht 4.69 million has been contributed to the fund by the Company

(2013 : Baht 5.08 million)
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21. OTHER INCOME
Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
Tax compensation income 1,162 4,642 1,162 4,642
Rental revenue 23,244 15,261 23,414 15,285
Interest income 4,536 8,817 2,837 7,070
Other service income 2,706 1,996 2,801 1,992
Income from goods guarantee 3,956 3,956 3,956 3,956
Utilities income 4,196 3,877 4,196 3,877
Commission income - - 10,862 13,783
Others 23,799 20,465 22,764 19,592
Total 63,599 59,014 71,992 70,197

22. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S Separate F/S
2014 2013 2014 2013
Raw materials and supplies used 430,849 1,097,972 430,849 1,097,972
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in process 68,110 30,221 85,915 25,025
Salaries, wages and other employee benefits 398,126 510,548 324,932 436,119
Compensation for product defective 189,067 - 189,067 -
Subcontractor expenses 89,194 243,988 89,194 243,905
Provision for doubtful debts 57,642 1,197 57,642 1,226
Depreciation 51,779 45,370 48,879 41,772
Rental expenses 36,244 66,555 21,929 54,491
Utilities expenses 34,226 48,454 32,060 46,364
Provision (reversal of allowance) for decline value of inventories 4,464 (2,443) 4,464 (1,833)
Provision (reversal of allowance) for impairment of investments (8,683) 3,114 (8,683) 3,006

The Company had produced the unit houses and sold to overseas customer in the previous years. However, during the second
quarter of the fiscal year 2013/2014, such customers submitted the claim for defective units for a significant amount. After
negotiation, the Company agreed to pay compensation for a total amount of Baht 189.07 million, or 5.13% of total revenues for
such customers.
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23. SEGMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Consolidated
Sales and services - net
Costs of sales and services

Gross profit

Revenues from construction work
Costs of construction work

Gross profit

Total gross profit

Gain (loss) on exchange rate
Depreciation

Allowance for doubtful debts
Compensation for product defective

Income (loss) before income tax

Trade accounts receivable from sales
and services - net

Inventories - net

Property, plant and equipment - net

Assets not use in operation - net

Other assets

Total assets as at 30 June

Separate F/S
Sales and services - net
Costs of sales and services

Gross profit

SIAM STEEL

In Thousand Baht

Domestic Export Total

For the years ended 30 June

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

1,961,001 2,274,770 180,921 1,217,845 2,141,922 3,492,615
(1,637,306) (1,792,079)  (194,301) (1,096,473) (1,831,607) (2,888,552

323,695 482,691 (13,380) 121,372 310,315 604,063
- 66,200 - - - 66,200
- (60,298) - - - (60,298)
- 5,902 - - - 5,902

323,695 488,593 (13,380) 121,372 310,315 609,965

21,733 (26,412)

51,779 45,370

(57,642) (1,197)
(189,067) -
(251,442) 37,179

448,025 696,854
390,225 502,502
581,475 766,913
168,822 -
1,322,914 1,438,664
2,911,461 3,404,933

954,500 1,097,718 179,072 1,133,672 2,315,563
(818,493) (848,010)  (192,715) (1,011,208) (1,944,483)
136,007 249,708 (13,643) 122,364 371,080
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Revenues from construction work
Costs of construction work

Gross profit

Total gross profit

Gain (loss) on exchange rate
Depreciation

Allowance for doubtful debts
Compensation for product defective

Loss before income tax

Trade accounts receivable from sales

and services - net
Inventories - net
Property, plant and equipment - net
Assets not use in operation - net
Other assets

Total assets as at 30 June

24, GUARANTEE

In Thousand Baht

Domestic Export Total
For the years ended 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
- 66,200 - - 66,200
- (60,298) - - (60,298)
- 5,902 - - 5,902
136,007 255,610 (13,643) 122,364 376,982
20,954 (28,436)
48,879 41,772
(57,642) (1,226)
(189,067) -
(326,391) (88,157)
299,416 487,149
300,197 430,155
566,695 757,550
168,822 -
616,485 815,102
1,951615 2,489,956

As at 30 June 2014, the Company and subsidiaries have outstanding guarantees of approximately Baht 328.26 million and Bath

3.44 million, respective which were issued by certain local banks in respect of certain performance bonds required in the normal

course of business of the Company.

25. COMMITMENTS

25.1 Asat 30 June 2014, the Company had outstanding commitments for the project work of the Company with major contractor

of Baht 48.03 million.

25.2 The Company has commitment for land and factory building lease agreement with the Company’s director. This lease

agreement is for a period of three (3) years commencing 1 December 2011 with annual rental totalling Baht 17.40 million

for total areas of 32 rai 1 ngan. The Company has an option to renew the lease terms if required.

25.3 As at 30 June 2014, subsidiary company has various operating lease agreement covering its office premises, showroom,

warehouse and related utility service and vehicles for periods of 1 — 3 years, approximately Baht 10.66 million per annum.
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26. DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

26.1

Interest Rate Risk

SIAM STEEL

The interest rate risk arises from future movements in market interest rates that will affect the results of the Company
and its subsidiaries operations and their cash flows. The Company’s and subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk
relate primarily to their cash and cash equivalents, short - term investment, and restricted deposit with bank as follows

Financial assets / liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted deposit with bank
Short - term loans from financial institution

Financial assets / liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Short - term loans from financial institution

Financial assets / liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted deposit with bank
Short - term loans from financial institution

Financial assets / liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents
Short - term loans from financial institution

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S

30 June 2014

Floating rate Fixed rate None - interest Total
333,078 - - 333,078
325 - - 325
- 53,461 - 53,461
In Thousand Baht
Separate F/S
30 June 2014
Floating rate Fixed rate None - interest Total
114,887 - - 114,887
- 53,461 - 53,461
In Thousand Baht
Consolidated F/S
30 June 2013
Floating rate Fixed rate None - interest Total
450,931 - - 450,931
184 - - 184
1,077 - - 1,077
In Thousand Baht
Separate F/S
30 June 2013
Floating rate Fixed rate None - interest Total
281,451 - - 281,451
1,077 - - 1,077
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As of 30 June 2014 and 2013, the financial instruments classified by the periods of time from the statement of financial
position date to their maturity dates are as follows :

In Thousand Baht
Consolidated F/S

30 June 2014
At call 1-6 7-12 Total Interest rate
months months
Financial assets / liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 333,078 - - 333,078 0.37 - 0.70%
Restricted deposit with bank 325 - - 325 0.37 - 0.70%
Short - term loans from financial institution 4,154 49,307 - 53,461 2.8214 - 5.90%

In Thousand Baht
Separate F/S
30 June 2014

At call 1-6 7 - 12 months Total Interest rate
months
Financial assets / liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 114,887 - - 114,887 0.37 - 0.70%
Short - term loans from financial institution 4,154 49,307 - 53,461 2.8214 - 5.90%

In Thousand Baht

Consolidated F/S

30 June 2013
At call 1-6 7 - 12 months Total Interest rate
months
Financial assets / liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 450,931 - - 450,931 0.625 - 1.30%
Restricted deposit with bank 184 - - 184 0.625 - 1.30%
Short - term loans from financial institution 1,077 - - 1,077 2.9225 - 2.9425%

In Thousand Baht

Separate F/S

30 June 2013
At call 1-6 7-12 Total Interest rate
months months
Financial assets / liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 281,451 - - 281,451 0.625 - 1.30%
Short - term loans from financial institution 1,077 - - 1,077 2.9225 - 2.9425%
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26.2 Foreign Exchange Risk

SIAM STEEL

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions that are denominated in foreign

currencies.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 30 June 2014 are summarized

below:
Financial Financial Average exchange rate
Foreign currency assets liabilities as at 30 June 2014
(Thousand) (Thousand) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)
usD 337 170 32.45500
JPY 672 - 0.320348
AUD 6,400 488 30.56725

Below is the summary of the Company’s foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2014 which

were not covered by hedging agreement.

usD JPY AUD
(Thousand) (Thousand) (Thousand)

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 672 9
Trade accounts receivable - net 332 - 6,391
Financial liabilities
Advances from customers 3 - 158
Other current liabilities 11 - 330
Trade accounts payable 156 - -
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26.3

26.4

26.5

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be able to settle obligations to the Company within the
normal terms of trade. To manage this risk, the Company and its subsidiaries periodically assess the financial viability
of customers.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party is unable or unwilling to meet a commitment that it entered into with the
Company and its subsidiaries. To manage this risk, the Company and its subsidiaries periodically assess the financial

viability of customers.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable recorded in the statement of financial positions, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts, is the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
knowledgeable willing parties on arm’s length basis. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments.

- Cash and cash equivalents, trade and non-trade receivables - net - the carrying values approximate their fair values
due to the relative short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

- Short - term loan from financial institution and trade and non-trade payables - the carrying amounts of these financial
liabilities approximate their fair values due to the relatively short - term maturity of these financial instruments.

Long - term investments in shares of subsidiaries and associated companies, and general investments - the carrying
amounts of these financial assets approximate their fair values.

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

28.

During the year 2012, a contractor sued the Company as joint defendant with other party for compensation totaling approximately

Baht 41.53 million, plus interest at the rate of 7.50 percent per annum from 24 March 2011 to the payment date. On 6 July

2012, the Company submitted a counterclaim to such contractor because the plaintiff was at fault by the delay and the delivery

of a defect and the Company has lien to hold the payment. The default of the contract of the plaintiff affects damage to the

Company because it was fined by the customer following the contract and modified the defect work by itself. The Company,
therefore, counterclaimed for the fine following the contract of approximately Baht 22.72 million and the damage from modifying
the defect work approximately Baht 26.76 million, plus interest at the rate of 7.50 percent per annum. Currently, such case is

in the process of waiting for the plaintiff submission of alibi for the counterclaim. The Company believes that there will be no

damage from such case. The Company therefore, has not set up any provision in its accounts.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements have been approved by the Company’s board of directors on 27 August 2014.
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